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Foreword

\

This report records both the performance and the financial situation of the
Department of Trade and Industry over the twelve months to March 2007, Alistair
Darling served as Secretary of State for Trade and Industry during this period.

This is the DTl's last annual report = it ceased to operate as such on 28 June when the
Prime Minister made several changes in the way the Government is organised. This
included the creation of a new Department for Business, Enterprise and Regulatory
Reform (BERR), which has assumed much of the work of the DTI, and incorporated the
work of the Better Regulation Executive, formerly in the Cabinet Office.

We live in a time of massive and rapid economic change. Change that will affect
every one of us as individuals and which brings new challenges for British
businesses and for our economy. The DTl had a significant role to play in this
context; the new BERR will provide new leadership on the challenge of
globalisation by developing Britain's world-class competitive business environment.

The DTl's successor Departments inherit from it a strong relationship with
business and other groups, committed and experienced staff and a record of
success in many policy areas. Achievements in 2006-07 include:

* The Energy Review and Energy White Paper which set out a long term
framework for action to address the challenges of climate change and
maintaining stable and affordable energy supply;

* A further rise in spending for science and technology announced in this
year's Budget from £3.4 billion this year to £3.9 billion in 2010-11;

* Labour market reforms ensuring fairness through new Age Discrimination
Regulations and extensions of maternity leave and the right to request
flexible working; while at the same time ensuring continued flexibility, for
example on the EU Working Time Directive; and

* The Companies Act, which will help ensure Britain remains one of the
best places in the world to set up and run a business by simplifying and
improving company law.

I'am grateful to the many pecple in the Department and its delivery partners for
achieving the outcomes set out in this report. As the first Secretary of State for
Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform, | look forward to working with them
to make the new Department a success.

ALY =y

Rt. Hon. John Hutton MP
Secretary of State for Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform

4
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&

Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn cofnodi perfformiad a sefylifa ariannol yr Adran Masnach a
Diwydiant dros y deuddeng mis hyd at Fawrth 2007. Alistair Darling cedd yr
Ysarifennydd Gwladol dros Fasnach a Diwydiant yn ystod v cyfnod hwnnw,

Dyma adroddiad blynyddecl olaf v DTI - peidiodd & gweithredu o dan yr enw hwnnw ar
28 Mehefin pan wnaeth y Prif Weinidog sawl newid yn nhrefn y Liywodraeth. Roedd
hyn yn cynnwys creu adran newydd sef yr Adran Busnes, Menter a Diwygio Rhecleiddio
(BERR), sydd wedi ysgwyddo llawer o waith y DT, ac wedi ymgorffor gwaith y
Weithrediaeth Gwell Rheoleiddio, a cedd gynt yn Swyddfa'r Cabinet.

Rydym yn byw mewn cyfnod o newid economaidd enfawr a chyflym: newid a fydd
yn effeithio ar bob un ohonom fel unigolion ac sy'n dod & heriau newydd i fusnesau
Prydain ac i'n heconomi. Roedd gan y DTI ran arwyddocaol i'w chwarae yn y cyd-
destun hwn; bydd y BERR newydd yn rhoi arweiniad newydd ar her globaleiddio
drwy feithrin yr amgylchedd busnes cystadieuol o'r radd flaenaf sydd gan Brydain.

Bydd yr Adrannau a fydd yn olynu’r DTI yn etifeddu perthynas gref & byd busnes a
grwpiau eraill, staff ymroddgar a phrofiadol a hanes o lwyddiant mewn llawer o
feysydd polisi. Mae cyraeddiadau 2006-07 yn cynmwys:

* Yr Adaolygiad Ynni a'r Papur Gwyn ar Ynni a nododd fframwaith hirdymor ar
gyfer gweithredu i fynd i'r afael 4 heriau newd hinsawdd a chynnal
cyflenwad ynni sefydlog a fforddiadwy:;

« Cynnydd arall yn y gwariant ar wyddoniaeth a thechnoleg a gyhoeddwyd
yn y Gyllideb eleni, o £3.4 biliwn eleni i £3.9 biliwn yn 2010-11:

* Diwygio’r farchnad lafur gan sicrhau tegwch drwy Reoliadau newydd ar
Wahaniaethu ar Sail Oedran ac estyn absenoldeb mamolaeth a'r hawl i ofyn
am weithio’n hyblyg; gan sicrhau hyblygrwydd parhaol ar yr un pryd, er
enghraifft yngl?n a8 Chyfarwyddeb Amser Gweithio yr Undeb Ewropeaidd; a'r

* Ddeddf Cwmniau, a fydd yn helpu i sicrhau bod Prydain yn parhau’'n un o'r
llecedd gorau yn v byd i sefydiu a rhedeg busnes a hynny drwy symleiddio
a gwella’r gyfraith ar gwmniau.

Rwy'n ddiolchgar i'r nifer fawr o bobl yn yr Adran ac I'w phartneriaid gweithredol
am sicrhau'r deilliannau sydd wedi'u nodi yn yr adroddiad hwn. Fel yr Ysgrifennydd
Gwiladol cyntaf dros Fusnes, Menter a Diwygio Rheoleiddio, rwy'n edrych ymilaen
at weithio gyda nhw | sicrhau bod yr Adran newydd yn llwyddiant.

O b,

Y Gwir Anrh. John Hutton AS
Yr Ysgrifennydd Gwiladol dros Fusnes, Menter a Diwygio Rheoleiddio




About this report
S _/

What is this publication about?

1. This document is the last annual report of the Department of Trade and
Industry. The Department was succeeded by the new Departments for Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform (BERR), and Innovation, Universities and Skills
(DIUS) in June 2007. This Report summarises the Department’s performance over
the year from April 20086 to March 2007, both in terms of achievements against
objectives and financial results.

2. Many of the projects and programmes described in this Report are part of a
longer-term effort that extends beyond 2006-07. Where this Report describes
initiatives or plans extending beyond June 2007, such work is likely to be taken
forward by the DTl's successor Departments, and they will report on it in future
performance reports.

How is this Report structured?

3. In previous years, central Government Departments published separate
Departmental Reports - covering the Department’s work over the year — and
Resource Accounts — containing the Department’s financial accounts. The Report in
front of you is a combined publication of both.

4, The structure of the Report reflects the split between performance
information and financial information.

5.  On performance:

e Chapter 1 (Strategic overview) explains the Department’s strateqy
during the reporting year, as well as the transition from the DTl to its
successor departments DIUS and BERR from June 2007.

e Chapter 2 (Performance report) describes performance during 2006-07
against the Department's targets and objectives,

e Chapter 3 (The Department) provides details on how the Department
works and how it is organised, as well as information on the agencies and
other bodies that form the wider Departmental family.

6. As regards financial information:

s Chapter 4 (Introduction to the Department’s finances) explains the
difference between the two sets of financials in chapters 5 and 6, and
provides a financial review and commentary of the most relevant financial
data.
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e Chapter 5 (Resource accounts) contains the audited accounts 2006-07
for DTl and a number of bodies consolidated with DTI.

e Chapter 6 (Budgetary spend of the Departmental family) contains
(unaudited) budgetary spend figures for the whole DTI “family” of delivery
partners and other associated bodies over a number of years (including
looking ahead).

What should you know to help you read this Report?

7. A tabulator bar on the right-hand side of the page facilitates moving from
chapter to chapter. The report on the Department’s performance in chapter 2 is
kept concise where possible, with notes throughout the text linking to annex B.4
which sets out further reading, source materials and relevant websites. Annex B.1
contains a list of acronyms used throughout the Report, such as "PSAs” (public
service agreements).

8. This Report integrates the Department’s performance report and annual
accounts, and as a result the structure is somewhat different compared to the
separate publications of previous years. Annex B.2 contains a table translating the
structure of last year's reports into this year's, and may be helpful when comparing
the documents.

9. This Report covers the financial year running from April 2006 to March 2007.
However, where possible significant events since the end of the financial year up
to the beginning of July 2007 are reflected. In particular, section 2.7 (energy) has
been updated to cover events up to and including the publication of the Energy
White Paper in May 2007,

How can you obtain copies of this Report?

10. This Report is available both as a printed publication, and onling on the
Department’s website at: www.dti.gov.uk/about/strategy-ocbjectives/annual-
spending/page25111.html

11. Hardcopies can be obtained from TSO, see contact details on the back cover
of this Report. Please quote House of Commons paper number HC 584.

12. This Report can be made available in alternative formats on request.
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1.1 Britain is a major player in the global econcmy. Over the years the DTl played
a big part in keeping it there, with a wide-ranging portfolio: 2006-07 alone brought
the Energy Review (page 88), working for more open and fairer trade through the
Doha Development Agenda (page 72), the Companies Act 2006 (page 84) and
deciding the future of the Post Office network (page 107). These are issues that
impact on everyone'’s lives — from the price of their gas bills to the future of a
nearby post office, from the level of the minimum wage to advice to a budding
entrepreneur.

1.2 The global econcmy is changing at an unprecedented rate presenting
profound challenges to all national economies. The twin trends of globalisation and
technological change are continually reshaping the environment in which
businesses operate, generating ever more intense competition across increasingly
global markets.

1.2 But alongside these challenges are significant new opportunities, with the
greatest rewards for those nations with the highest levels of innovation and skills
and the most dynamic and enterprising business sectors. Ensuring that Britain
seizes these new opportunities is key to the future prosperity of us all. To rise to
the new global challenges, Britain must continue to develop its world-class
competitive business environment as the key to being a dynamic, flexible and
competitive economnmy.

Department for Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform (BERR)

1.4 To lead this work, the new Department for Business, Enterprise and
Regulatory Reform (BERR) was created on 28 June 2007. The new BERR takes
over much of the work of the DTI, and will be responsible for:

e creating the conditions for business success, developing deeper and more
effective engagement with business, with the ability to promote the
competitiveness agenda across critical areas of Government policy;

e promoting choice and quality for consumers through competition policy
and for ensuring an improved quality of life for employees;

e promoting productivity and enterprise across Government and within the
EU - a key priority will be its cross-Government role in promoting better
regulation across the business, public and voluntary sectors. The Better
Regulation Executive has moved to the new BERR to lead that work.




Tha OT] and its successor departmanis

1.5 The Government will be assisted by a new Business Council for Britain in
putting in place the right strategy to promote the long-term health of the UK
economy. The Council will comprise senior business leaders from a range of
sectors, able to provide clear, independent advice on the reform pricrities to enable
business to compete in the global economy.

1.6 In addition, the new Department has assumed from the DTl policy
responsibility for energy, corporate law, and, working closely with the Department
for Communities and Local Government, making sustainable improverments in the
economic performance of all English regions. BERR will have joint responsibility
with the Department for International Development on trade policy, and with the
Foreign and Commonwealth Office on trade promotion.

Porformancs

1 L‘nge.-i. 14113

Report

Department for Innovation, Universities and Skills (DIUS)

1.7 In the years ahead, countries will increasingly derive their competitive edge
from the speed with which they are able to innovate, building on a world-class
research base, creating new products and markets and driving enterprise and
efficiency. Seizing these new opportunities will also require a world-class skills
base - both through the expansion of high-end graduate skills, but also by raising
the skills of the wider adult workforce, including those currently unskilled.

The Dopartmant

Pagas 114167

1.8  To ensure that Britain is equipped to meet these challenges a new
Department for Innovation, Universities and Skills (DIUS) was formed on 28 June
as well. The new DIUS will be responsible for driving forward delivery of the
Government’s long-term vision to make Britain one of the best places in the weorld
for science, research and innovation, and to deliver the ambition of a world-class
skills base.

Introduction to
finances
I Pages 168-189

(

1.8 It has therefore assumed responsibility from the DTI for science and
innevation — including ensuring world-class research and increased business
innovation.

1.10 DIUS has also been given responsibility for ensuring that the UK has the
skilled workforce it needs to compete in & global economy. The Department will,
therefore, be responsible for the development, funding and performance
management of higher education (both teaching and research) and further
education, working closely with the Department for Children, Schools and Families.
The DIUS will also be responsible for taking forward the Government's wider skills
agenda - including the implementation of Lord Leitch's “Review of Skills”,
published last year.

Pages TB0-263

accounts

Aesourco

] ( Budgetary -“Ml
Pages 264-287

Pages J88-324
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1.11 This section describes the Department’s strategy during the reporting year.
Where the DTI's successor departments (BERR and DIUS, see section 1.1) have
assumed responsibility from the DTI, they will build on this to develop their
strategy on business, enterprise, regulatory reform, innovation, universities and
skills.

112 The Departmental statement of purpose during the reporting year was:

to create the conditions for business success and help the UK re
the ehallange of gl:ahaimation.

Background

1.13 The UK’'s domestic policy framewaork has delivered a recent period of
unprecedented growth and stability which, combined with the UK’s free and fair
markets, has resulted in the UK becoming a magnet for foreign direct investment
in both manufacturing and services, and the City occupying a key position in the
global financial system. Internationally, the UK is leading work to maximise the
gains from globalisation, while at the same time leading the thinking on how best
1o mitigate the potential transitional costs associated with the changes
globalisation brings to patterns of employment and consumption.

114 The challenge is to maintain a successful economy against a background of
increasing competition, not only from Europe and the US, but particularly from
China and India. The UK has made steady progress in reducing the productivity gap
with its competitors, against a backdrop of rising employment since 1997 (see
page 20). To go further the Government has identified five key drivers —
investment, enterprise, innovation, skills and competition - all of which are closely
linked to the Department’s policies and activities.

1.15 The Department pursued its statement of purpose by focusing on the
following strategic objectives:

& promoting world-class science and innovation (see section 2.4);

supporting successful business (see section 2.5);

ensuring fair markets (see section 2.6);

secure and sustainable energy (see section 2.7).

116 In addition, the Department managed a portfolio of Government assets and
liabilities (see section 2.8).

12




The Dapartment’s strategy

DTI Strategy:

strategic objectives
' Business plan Public service (with other
objectives agreements «—» Government
departments)
; Key outcomes and ' Technical notes:
activities performance
indicators

Implementing the Department’s strategy through targets and objectives

1.17 Strategic objectives are turned into specific and, as far as possible,
measurable outcomes. through “public service agreements” and “business plan
objectives”. See chapter 2 for the substance of the annual report on performance
both against public service agreements and business plan objectives for each
strategic objective as well as the Department'’s work on managing assets and
liabilities.

1.18 Public service agreements are targets that are agreed across Whitehall for
each spending review. The current PSAs are the ones agreed for 2005 to 2008 in
the Spending Review 2004. A range of data indicators underpins each PSA and
allows performance to be measured. Details on these indicators can be found in
technical notes to the PSAs, available on the Department's website.’

1.19 Business plan objectives are objectives set by the Department to give focus
to each of the Department’s strategic objectives, as identified above. The set of
business plan abjectives covered in this Report was formulated in 2005; each year
the Department draws up a Business Plan that sets out specific key outcomes and

activities to be pursued against each business plan objective. The 2006 Business
Plan covers the current reporting year.’

1.20 Public service agreement targets define the key improvements that the

public can expect from Departments; the business plan objectives cover the
Department’s work more comprehensively,

i3

The Departmant

Pages 114167

Pages 190-263

BCCoOunts

Annexes Budgetary spend
Pages 2B5-324 Pages 264-287
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Section 2.1
Introduction

A

2.1 This chapter contains the report on performance against the Department's
objectives during 2006-07. The Department’s work on productivity cuts across all
objectives, and is discussed in section 2.3. The remainder of the chapter is
structured around the strategic objectives identified in section 1.2: promoting
world-class science and innovation (section 2.4); supporting successful business
(section 2.5); ensuring fair markets (section 2.6); and secure, sustainable energy
(section 2.7). Section 2.8 discusses the Department’s performance on managing
Government assets and liabilities.

Report on performance against objectives and targets

2.2 Each section reports on performance against both public service agreements
(P5As] and business plan objectives (BPOs) that are relevant to the strategic
objective in gquestion. See section 1.2 above for an explanation of what PSAs and
BPOs are, and how they are used to implement the Department’s strategy.

2.3 This chapter focuses on the Department’s performance against PSAs, as
being the key improvements that the public can expect from the Department. The
report on PSAs sets out progress against its performance attributes and indicators,
as detailed in technical notes.' The progress report on BPOs follows the "key
outcomes and activities” set out for each BPO in the business plan we published
at the start of the reporting year.?

Transition from DTI to its successor Departments

2.4 Information in this performance report about the Department’s work beyond
June 2007 = when it was transferred to the new Departments for Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform (BERR) and Innovation, Universities and Skills
(DIUS) - should be taken to refer to these successor Departments.

Overview of spend by objective

2.5 Each section contains a table setting out budgetary spend of the Department
and its delivery partners on the objective in question. Please note that the figures
given in these tables may differ from those in the accounts in chapter 5 due to
different accounting boundaries. Section 4.1 explains the differences.

Integrated report covering the Department and its delivery partners

2.6 Where appropriate, this chapter covers both the work of the “core”
Department and the work of its delivery partners (such as Agencies). More detail
on the specific achievernents of agencies and other Departmental delivery partners
can be found in their own annual reports. Section 3.3 provides references to these.

16






Section 2.2

Summary of performance on
PSA targets

4

Summary of progress on current PSA targets

2.9 Of the eleven PSA targets from SR04, five are assessed as on course to be
delivered, one is assessed as showing slippage and two are split up and assessed
in more detail by sub-target (but each show most of the sub-targets as being on
course). Two further targets are yet to be assessed, and finally one target (PSA 9)
has transferred to the Department for Communities and Local Government and is
no longer covered in this Report.

Performance Page

1. Productivity: On course 20

“Demonstrale further progress by 2008 on the Government's long-term
ahjective of raising the rate of UK productivity growth ovar the economic
cyche, improving compantivenass and narrowing the gap with our major
industrial competitors.” Joint with HM Treasury,

2, Bcience and innovation: On course 25

“Improve the relative international performance of the UK research base
and increase the overall innovation performance of the UK economy,
miaking continued progress to 2008, including through effective
knowledge transfer amongst unversines, research nstitutions and
business,”

3. Competition and consumers: On course 70

"Promote fair competitive markets by ensuring that the UK framework for
compatition and for consumer ampowerment and support is at the level
of the best by 2008, measuring the effectivenass of tha regime through
international comparisons, supported by-a broader evidence base.”

. Energy: Sub-targets: 20
“Lead work to deliver the goals of anergy policy: (i) On course
il Reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 12.5% from 1990 levels in (i} On course

Iine with our Eyoto commitment and to move towards a 20% il S

reduction in carbon dicxide emissions below 1820 levels by 2010, Uil} SSppage

through measures including energy efficiency and renewables. Joint  {iy) On course
with the Department for Emaronment, Food and Bural Atfairs and
Department for Transport.

i Maintain the reliability of enargy supplies.

lim Eliminate fuel poverty in vulnerable households in England by 2010
in line with the Government's Fuel Poverty Strategy objective. Joint
with the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs.

(v Ensure the UK remains in the 1op three most compelitive energy
markets in the EU and G7.”
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Section 2.3

Productivity

44

2.10 This is the Department’s overarching PSA target (joint with HM Treasury),

Productivity growth is important for improving prosperity. The Department has a
role in promoting productivity growth by establishing a competitive environment,
and delivering policies to correct market failures that impede productivity growth.

2.11 The Government has identified five drivers of productivity = competition,
Innovation, skills, enterprise and investment — which provide a framework for policy
development. The Department has a wide-ranging programme of reforms that
support and target all five drivers of productivity. The Department has a number of
other PSAs through which these policies work to improve overall productivity.
Progress on associated PSA targets is outlined elsewhere in this Report.

SR04 PSA 1 - Productivity On Course

“Demonstrate further progress by 2008 on the Government's long-term
objective of raising the rate of UK productivity growth over the economic
cycle, improving competitiveness and narrowing the gap with our major
industrial competitors.” Joint with HM Treasury.

Current position

2.12 The latest data from the Office for National Statistics (ONS), published in
February 2007, shows that the UK’s productivity gap, on the output-per-worker
measure, has closed with Germany and is closing with France. Although the gap
with the US remains large, the UK is the only G7 country to have kept pace with
the impressive productivity performance of the US.

2.13 On the output-per-hour-worked measure, the gap with France is smaller than
previously thought, due to revisions to French hours-worked data in 2006, which
has resuited in the gap from 1995 onwards being revised downwards from 17 to
10 percentage points. The UK has narrowed the gap with Germany, France and the
US since 1995 although gaps with each country remain.

2.14 Together these measures suggest that the UK is moving in the right direction
in terms of closing its overall productivity gap with its major competitars. The UK
also appears to be making progress in raising its long-term productivity growth over
the economic cycle. According to the latest estimates from HM Treasury in Budget
Report 2007, output-per-hour-worked productivity growth between the “on-trend”
points in the first half of the current economic cycle (1997H1 to 2001Q3) was
2.60%, compared to 1.92% over the previous cycle (198602 to 1997H1).

20
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Dapartmant of Trade and Industny = Annual Report and Accounts 2006-07

Key achievements 2006-07

24

Continued high performance of UK science research, second in the
world only to the US on citation scores. Lead G8 on productivity and
efficiency measures (see page 26)

(With DFES) £500 million investment per year in university science
research infrastructure (see page 35)

Prospectus published setting out plans to establish the Energy
Technologies Institute, a public-private partnership on developing low
carbon technologies (see page 34)

The £260 million Diamond Synchrotron opened - the largest scientific
facility built in the UK for 30 years (see page 34)

The creation of the Office of Science and Innovation (0OSl) (see page 33)

Agreement to establish the Science and Technology Facilities Council
(STFC) to improve the strategic management of public investment in
large research facilities (see page 33)

Agreement to establish the Technology Strategy Board as a Non-
Departmental Public Body to support and encourage investment in and
use of technology across all sectors of the UK economy (see page 39)

The creation of the Office of Strategic Co-ordination of Health Research
(OSCHR), following Sir David Cooksey’s report on UK health research,
to provide a unified UK approach to health research (see page 34)

£100 million per year is being invested in implementing the key
recommendations of the Roberts Review on the supply of scientists
and engineers (see page 32)

Winning our EU partners over to an excellence-based approach to the
new €53 billion Seventh Framework Programme for R&D (see page 37)

Working with the Department of Health to explain to Parliament the
draft Human Tissues and Embryos Bill, which enables the UK’s leading
position in embryo research to continue (see page 36)

Helping to transform the UK's long-term transport strategy, with
substantial economic benefits, through follow-up to the Foresight
project on Intelligent Infrastructure Systems (see page 37)

Launch of Europe’s first low earth orbit weather satellite (Metop),
which the Department co-funded (see page 41)
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Promoting world-class science and innowvation

S R R e

Current position

2.27 The methodology for measuring progress on this attribute was agreed in 2006-07,

Universities (HEIs)

2.28 There are two elements to the monitoring arrangements as regards HEls:
institutional framewaorks lor statements) towards achieving long-term sustainability,
and a related set of 19 "trigger metrics”. The UK Higher Education Funding
Councils carry out biennial reviews of these two elements to form a view on the
sustainability of the “adaptive capacity” of HEIs (i.e. how they manage the key
resources money, people, equipment and buildings in response to change).

2.29 The UK Higher Education Funding Councils published their first report,
*Maonitoring financial sustainability in UK HEIs”, in April 2006. The key findings
from the initial report are positive. In 2003-04, only 0.7% of research income was
being directed to institutions where there were some concerns over long-term
sustainability. None of this research income could be considered as being directed
1o institutions with a research-intensive profile.

2.30 This result will be used as a baseline for future reports. The next assessment
by the UK Higher Education Funding Councils is expected in 2008.

Public Sector Research Establishments (PSREs)

2.31 In order to assess the position as regards PSREs annual monitoring
exercises on PSRE sustainability are carried out by the Office of Science and
Innovation within the Department. The assessments are based on a basket of
gualitative indicators covering business, governance and management, financial
management, income profile, physical infrastructure and staff, and overall
sustainability.

2.32 The first exercise, covering 2005, has been completed,’? with a note on the
outcomes being published to coincide with the Second Annual Report on the
Science and Innovation Investment Framework: 2004 to 2014. This monitoring
identified concerns about sustainability in about a third of PSREs and helped
identify the issues to be addressed to maintain research capability.

Factors affecting performance

2.33 Between 1999 and 2007 the Government September 2006 (" Future needs for capiizl
has invested over £2 billion in university research  funding in higher education”}.'* The impact of

infrastructure to update and ranew University recent policy, @.g. Research Councils to pay 80%
science facilities and buildings. Evidence that of the full economic costs of the research they
this investrment is starting 1o take effect can be commission, will take some time to have a

seen in the positive trajgctonies towards further impact on these trajectonas.

sustainability outlined in the Higher Education
Funding Councils’ first report imentioned above)
and in a report by JM Consulting to the Higher
Education Funding Council for England of

2,34 Ploase also refer to the report on
“The research base” on page 32 below.
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Current position

2.35 Progress against this attribute is measured by an increase in a basket of
indicators from the Higher Education Business and Community Interaction Survey
(HEBCI). The latest available data (covering academic year 2003-04) continues to
indicate an upward trend in the majority of measures.

Figura 2.4 HEBCI'

T 'ln_J
2.36 Progress against this attribute can now also be measured for PSREs through

the PSRE kKnowledge Transfer Survey. Early trends show an upward movement in
the majority of indicators over the two years so far covered.

gl _ B
Figure 2.5 PSRE Knowledge Transfer Survey

Footnotes refer to annex B.4




Promoting world-class science and innovation

Factors affecting performance

2.37 Since 1999, Government has provided business and PSRE-business interaction uniil
researchers and businesses with support 1© Wiarch 2007, Data from the latest HEBCI Survey
waork together and drive innovation, This support  and PSRE Knowledge Transfer Survey indicates
aims to improve the record in the UK of that these initiatives have made a real and
successfully commercialising research. Over sustained impact,

£486 million has been allocated from the Science

; fi h ot
Budget for knowledge transfer and university- R ELEASS Rl RIDELS Lae Papart on

“The research base” on page 32 balow,

Current position

2.39 The target for overall performance is to narrow the gap with the UK's leading
international competitors. There are seven indicators for progress against this
target. Two of the indicators — on business enterprise research and development
expenditure (BERD), and on UK patenting — are available annually with a lag of
approximately ten to twelve months.

il : 5
Figure 2.6 Business R&D as share of GDP®
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2.40 UK BERD figures for 2001 to 2004 have been significantly revised by the
ONS in light of new information. BERD as a proportion of GDP was 1.08% in 2005,
in line with the revised value of the previous year. The revised figures show that
BERD in real terms fell in 2003 and 2004, resulting in a decline in the ratio in
2003 from 1.17% to 1.12% of GDP. and in 2004 from 1.12% to 1.08%.

2.41 |In 2005, total R&D spending performed in UK businesses rose to £13.4
billion. This is a 3% increase — in real terms — on the £13.1 billion in 2004 {a 5%
increase in cash terms).'® The increase in the real value in 2005 represents a
welcome revival of the real value of R&D spending after two years of decline.
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Italy

—
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Figure 2.7 Patent grants at the US Patant Office per million population®
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2.42 Falls in the patenting rate from 2003 were experienced by all countries in the
table above; this may be largely due to administrative and legal delays experienced
in the US Patent Office. The UK's patenting rate has remained relatively robust in
2005, and its growth from 1995 is second only to Germany.

Innovation in the market

2.43 R&D and patents are not the only measures of business innovation. The UK's
strengths in knowledge-intensive services and creative industries - where
innovation is less likely to be picked up in indicators such as R&D - probably mean
that the UK's innovation performance has been under-stated by R&D based
indicators. Other measures are derived from the Community Innovation Survey
(CIS). The 2005 CIS, covering the period 2002 to 2004, has shown a significant
improvement in headline innovation indicators for the UK.

Figure 2.8 CIS

2.44 The Community Innovation Survey also provides international comparisons. 0
The gap between the UK and other major economiges on innovation indicators has
closed or, in some cases, been eliminated since the previous innovation survey.
For example, in product innovation (goods and services) indicators show the UK
outperforming France, ltaly and the Netherlands and similar to Finland. Germany

is still ahead of all but there are statistical reasons for thinking their results are
over-optimistic. UK firms fare less well on process innovation against their
European competitors but there has still been an increase in activity.

e
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5. A more responsive supply of science, technology, engineering and
maths skills to the economy

Current position
2.47 On the two indicators for this attribute the target is:

e toincrease the numbers of science students receiving enterprise training;
and

e for the UK to maintain its international ranking (second place) within the
G8 countries for PhDs awarded per head of population.

2.48 In 2004 (the most recently available data), the UK lay second (behind
Germany) within the G8 for PhDs awarded per head of population.

= = - ——"'—__—__ﬁ—___?.—‘-i.—_l-‘

L
Figure 2.11 {

Mumber of science and engineenng students receiving
anierpise traning

Factors affecting performance

249  The Government s investing £100 million improving significantly the pay and training
per year to implemant the key recommendations  offered to Research Council PhD students and
of the Roberts Review? on the supphy of postdoctoral researchers,

scentisis and enginears with regard to

Business plan objective: the research base

2.50 The UK's research base is its universities and large public research
institutions — the academic science and technology resources from which its
industry draws new knowledge. This business plan objective is aimed at improving
the relative performance of the UK research base and its use by Government and
society.

Quality of data systems is discussed in annex A.1
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Plans tor 2006-07

Figure 2.12 - Details of projects earmarked for funding from the Large Facilities Capital Fund
(LFCF} from the 2005 RCUK Large Facilities Roadmap

i k J 1, I
o } - il
hotes:

® The X-Fel Project is baing lead by Germiany which will bear 60% of the construction cost. It is planned that other
| countries will sontribute the remainder of the furids with the UK providing 11% of the total nen-German
i

® The European high performance computer project plans to share projact costs of £192 million batween the LK,
France and Garmany with 1he balance of asound £200 millien coming from the European Commission and
Industry.
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Plans for 2006-07  Progress in 2006-07

Invest in the UK ressarch  Please also refer 1o PSA 2.1 on page 28 above.
base 10 ansure Iits
continued perfarmance to
a high standard, and in
particular being second 10
the US in the G7

252 UK research continues to be strong across scientific disciplinas.
The UK is second only to the U5 in seven of the tan main disciplines,
and has moved ahead of the US on impact for pre-clinical and biclogical
sciences, The UK continues to head the GE on research productivity.

The Research Councils

2.53 PFesearch Council funded projects continua 1o have high impact,
During 2006-07: P

« The Diamond Synchrotron opened for business and scientific users in
January 2007 32 |t enables scientists to look inside matter at the
modecular and atomic scale, and is the largast scentific facility to be
bwilt in the UK for & generation. Phase 2 of the work remains on time
and on budgat;3

Diamand Syrchrotron, Ocieber 2008 fcourtesy of Diamond Light Seuree Lia)

s BESRCAunded scientists at Cambridae University proposed a new
model to explain Salmonella infection to help develop new vaccines;

s EPSRC-funded scientists at Sheffield Unwersity developed a
revalutionary dissolvable scaffold for growing new areas of skin 1o
treat burns and ulcers; and

# The UK Stem Cell Initiative continues 10 make good progress and
funding for the Stem Cell Bank has been agreed and the Stam Cell
Metwork established.*

254 Further information regarding the Research Councils will be
available on the Department’s website at the time of or shortly after
the publication of this Report. Thig includes information on

Research Councils’ long-term projects and expenditure.

Sea www.dtigovukisciencelscience-funding/budget/page28323.himl

Cooksey Review

2.55 The Department has begun impiementing the recommendations
set aut In the Cooksey review, published in December 2008, including
establishing the Office of Strategic Coordination of Health Research
ID5SCHR)

Energy Technologies Institute

2.56 The Energy Technologies Institute (ETI) will begin oparahions in
200708, playing a major role in technology developmenis internationally
in support of the UK's climate change goals. The Sacretary of State
published & prospectus in Saptembear 2006 The onginal four sponsor
companias {Shall, BP: EDF and E.ON UK} have been joned by Rolls-Royce
and Caterpillar. See also page 97 (energy).



Unable to display this page



Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07




Promoting world-cliss science. and innovation

Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07

]
=
=
]
=
=
=
=

W

Introduction to
Pepes 168-185

| -] |

spand
Pages 264287

aF




Department of Trade and Industry — Annual Report and Accounts 200607

Business plan objective: knowledge transfer and innovation

2.71 This objective is to promote effective transfer of knowledge to improve UK
innovation performance and accelerate business exploitation of science and new
and existing technologies.

Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07

Fallowing the creation of the Offica of Science and Innovation the approach for reporting
performance on innovation activities was reviewed, and the following new key outcomes and
activitios werg adopted.

Improve ovarall 2.72 The overall innovation performance of the UK economy is

innovation performance  measured in a number of ways, one of which is the Community

of the UK economy and  Innovation Survey (CIS) - see PSA 2 4, page 30.

maintain effective

rmeasurement

technology infrastructure 2,73 The business-led Technology Strategy Board published its second
annual report in November 2006% and continues to oversee the
Technology Programme.

Technology Programme

2.74 Within the Technology Programme, nnovation Platforms bring
together business and Government for consultation around major
societal challenges. The aim is to generate more innovative solutions
through the integration of a range of technologies along with better
co-ordination of policy and regulation leading to more informed public
procurement. From this, decisions are made on the techrnologies
supported through collaborative R&D and Knowledge Transfer Networks
(ETMs are web-based platforms provided by the Department to facilitate
knowledge transfer of technology through networking). Together with
other departments the Department approved three new Innovation
Flatforms:

» assisted living (Department of Haalthl,
» low carbon vehicles (Department for Transport); and

* low snvironmental impact buildings (Department of Communities and
Local Government).

National Measurement System and National Physical Laboratory

2.75 The MNational Measurement System (NMS) ensures that UK users
have access to world-class measurement standards, Within the NMS,
the National Physical Laboratory (NPL) has made significant advances in
time measurement bringing the next generation of atomic clocks closer
todirect use by industry 5

Mational Weights and Measures Laboratory

2.76 The National Weights and Measures Laboratory (NWRWL)
implemented the Measuring Instruments Directive by the EU Commission
deadline of 30 October 2006. The Laboratory has become one of the first
Motified Bodies under the Directive in Europe, providing certification for
manufacturers of measuring instruments in the UK and around the globe.
See page 41 for further information about the NWML.

38
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Plans for 2006-07  Progress in 2006-07

2.90 ESA's MetOp, Europe’s first polar flower earth) orbiting satellite
dedicated to operational meteorciogy, was launched in October 2006,
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MetOp = A (Courtesy of ESA - AQES Madialab)
291 DTl ministers moved to strangthen the L position in the Galileo 2
programme (Europe’s satellite radio navigation programme) to ensure [ .
that UK objectives are met. Negotiations on India’s participation ot
in Europe’s satellite radio navigation programme reached approval in T*‘_
February 2007, ansuring the availability of highest quality services in 3 E iz
India as well as cooparation 1o establish regonal augmentation systems | E E
based on EGNOS and GALILED, This agreament is anothar important E &4
step for the development of GALILED as an international programme
and a major milestong in the ELYIndia partnership
National Weights and Measures Laboratory
292 One of the Department's executive agencies is the National Weights and 8285
: . a = 3 o
Measures Laboratory (NWWML). The NWML is responsible for ensuring UK E §
€ an

measurement is accurate, fair and legal. It has responsibility for: policy on
measuring instruments in use for trade; the implementation of European Directives
on measuring instruments and providing the focus for legal metrology in the UK;
the examination and approval of new weighing and measuring equipment to be
used for trade; and establishing compliance with the requirements of the Weights
and Measures Act 1985 and relevant European legistation. NWML took over
responsibility for regulation of gas and electricity meters from OFGEM on 13 April
2006. The NWML operates under a net running cost regime. It is free to increase
expenditure in line with workload provided that this is recovered by receipts

4287

=/ A0E5

i Budgetary spend 1
26

2.93 Please refer to the NWMVL's Annual Report for further details on performance
during 2006-07.
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Figure 2,13 Expenditure on Science and innovation
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2.97 The total spend given here for each business plan objective corresponds iﬁ
“with the total of the Resource DEL, Resource AME and Capital DEL spend given in P
tables 2 and 3 in section 6.3. The figures shown as 2007-08 plans reflect the 8
original DTl budgets. These will be allocated to its successor departments created L &
in June 2007 (BERR and DIUS, see section 1.1) in due course.

o S

Annexes
Pages 285324



Unable to display this page



Supporting successful business

Key achievements 2006-07

o www.supply2.gov.uk launched (web portal for business wishing to win
work with Government departments - see page 50)

e Enterprise Week, promoting entrepreneurship to 14-30 year olds [see
page 51)

» www.businesslink.gov.uk used by 7.2 million unique visitors (20%
increase over last year), see page 51

s Approval of the new Assisted Areas map for the period 2007-2013
{focusing public funding for large companies where it's most needed),
see page 57

e UK allocation of €10.6 billion in the new European Structural and
Cohesion Fund covering 2007-2013 (see page 57)

e Greater focus on the drivers of productivity and growth in the EU
Industrial Policy Agenda (see page 61)

e UK Trade & Investment five-year strategy (see page 63)

2.101 UK business benefits from exposure to international trade in goods and
services and cross-border flows of foreign direct investment. Exporting and
overseas direct investment allows firms to exploit their specific commercial
advantages. Imports are the source of the competitively priced components.
Inward investment often embodies the most advanced technology, and
productivity-improving working practices,

2.102 Sometimes market faillures impede international trade and investment.
These both reduce the ability of UK business to exploit fully international markets
and can provide barriers to international investors who might otherwise locate in
the UK. Effective Government remedies to these market failures can improve the
performance of UK based firms and make an important contribution to increasing
UK productivity and prosperity. Removing barriers to international markets is
particularly important for knowledge-intensive businesses, which need access 10
overseas markets to maximise returns to innovation and to keep abreast of ideas
and technologies.

2.103 UK businesses and households cannot prosper without considered and
targeted intervention by government at international, national, subnational and
sometimes sectoral levels. But markets and governments can fail. The Department
recognises that a shared understanding with business of the consequences of
government actions on their performance with what the government is trying to
achieve is most likely to reduce the costs of either failure.
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' PSA 6 - Enterprise

Business plan objective (BPO) - Enterprise, growth, business
investment

PSA 7 - Regional economic performance

BPO - Strengthening regional economies

National Standard - online business

BPO - Effective channels with business 60

PSA 8 and BPO - UK Trade & Investment 63




SR04 PSA 6 - Enterprise

Supporting succassiul business

Assessment of progress:
set out by sub-target below

“Build an enterprise society in which small firms of all kinds thrive and achieve

their potential, with (i} an increase in the number of people considering going
into business, (ii) an improvement in the overall productivity of small firms,

and (iii) more enterprise in disadvantaged communities.”

2.104 The overall assessment of progress is mostly based on SR0Z PSA 6, which
was carried forward into SR04. It is too early to make a full assessment of

progress in the SR04 pernod.

SR04 PSA 6 (i) An increase in the number of people considering going

into business

Current position: SLIPPAGE

Action to address slippage

Given the time taken to change cultural attitudes, this is a very challenging,
long-term target. It is unlikely to be met within the current spending review

| period. The Government is currently focusing its efforts where it can have |
the most immediate impact. This includes increasing awareness of

enterprise amongst young people, women and ethnic minorities and
encouraging the development of their enterprising skills, as detailed below.

2.105 In 2005, 11.6% of adults in England were considering going into business,
the same as in 2001. The increase on 2003 (11.3%) is not statistically significant.

2.106 The SRO2 target was to increase this to 14% by 2005, so the Department
has not met this target. After the 2003 results, it was recognised that the SR02
target was unrealistically challenging, so the target level for SR04 PSA 6 was set at
12.3%. Even the reduced SR04 target of 12.3% requires a change in the intentions

of well over 300,000 people.

Factors affecting performance

2.107 Supporting data from the Global
Entrepranaurship Monitor show that, in common
with other countries, UK entrepraneurship has
been fairly static over the last few years. This
has allowead the UK to retain third posibion in the
G7, ahead of all other European G7 countrigs.

2.108 Although there has beean little change in
rates of adult entrepreneurship, there are a
number of encouraging signs that attitudes to
entrepreneurship amongst young pecple are
improving. For example

& the SBS household survey shows that the
proportion of 16-24 year olds who-ara

considering going into business has risen from
14.4% in 2003 to 17.5% in 2005

the number of women self-employed in their
main job now exceads 1 million for the first
time since the senes began in 18984, with Gver
10,000 wormen par month becaming seil-
amployed; and

under-represaentad athnic minarties have
seaen an incraase in their salf-employment
rate, and a narrowing of the gap in rates with
other ethme groups

-Stratugk:
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2,109 This reflects the Government's increased
focus on policy interventions designed 1o
increase intarest in entrepreneurship amaongst
voung peopla and women, rather than the
population as a whole (the focus of the PSA).
These include;

s providing funding of £60 million per year 1o
support a new focus on enterprise education
for all 14-16 year olds,

s supporting the National Council for Graduate
Entreprenasurship (INCGE) and its "Flying
Start” business development and acceleration
programme;

e providing up to £6 million fram the Northermn
Way “Growth Fund” 1o provide additional
support for'enterprise learning for 11-14 year
olds in particutar schools in the North of
England;

e continued support for the “NMake Your Mark™
campaign and “Enterprise Week" which aim
o inspire 2 more enterprising mind-set
amangst 14-30 year olds, from all walks of
life, and encourage them 1o turn thair
business ideas into reality (see also page 51
below for further details); and

e [aunchof a new ambassadors’ network 1o
SUPPOrt aspifing women entrepreneurs.

SR04 PSA 6 (ii) An improvement in the overall productivity of small

firms

Current position: ON COURSE

Figure 2.14 Productivity growth (GVA per employer by size of enterprise, 1999-2004)

T —

Faica vt

W s

B i firmis

2.110 SME productivity growth has exceeded all-firms productivity growth in four
out of the last five years for which data is available. The cumulative increase in
productivity growth for SMEs also exceeds that for all firms over the last five
years. Data up to 2005 will be available shortly.

48
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2.116 It should be noted, however, that the rise in self-employment in
disadvantaged communities has also been accompanied by a rise in self-
employment in other areas (10.3% in the year to December 2006, 3.8 percentage
paints higher), although aver the last 24 months the gap has narrowed.

Factors affecting performance

2.117 The reasons for improvements in seif- area-based regeneration by a range of bodies at
employment rates in disadvantaged areas are the regional IRegional Development Agencias
not clear, although a number of initiatives at the (RDAs) and local level ivia local authorities).
national level aimed at stimulating enterprise in The new Local Enterprise Growith Initiative

disadvantaged communities, such as the (LEGI should impact on those Meighbourhood
Phoenix Development Fund, Enterprise Areas, Renewal Funding {MRF] areas that receive

and City Growth Strategies may well have played  funding in future years, and RDAs have already
a role. been awarded an increase to their funds for the

financial years 2006-07 and 200708 in
recognition of their increased responsibility in
this agenda.

2.118 Thera has also been an increased
racognition of the potential role of enterprise in

Business plan objective: enterprise, growth and business investment

2.119 The Department's Enterprise, Growth and Business Investment objective
aims to remove barriers to the creation of new businesses and impediments to the
exploitation of enterprise and small business growth. The Department promotes
enterprise in disadvantaged communities and amongst disadvantaged groups to
make it-an attractive and viable aption for people from all backgrounds and is
committed to ensuring that more businesses that want to innovate and grow are
able 10.

S0
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Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07

The Small Business Service

2.131 The Small Business Service (SBS) was launched as an executive agency in
April 2000. The Secretary of State announced befare Parliament in October 2006
that the SBS would become a smaller, sharply focused policy unit with close links
with business and with other parts of Government. The SBS would no longer deliver
services, Wherever possible, support programmes would be run by its delivery
partners close to customers, regionally or locally. SBS would no longer need the
status of being an executive agency. The last SBS Annual Report as an agency will
be available on the Department’'s website 5

2.132 In April 2007 it started operating as a policy unit within the Department'’s
Enterprise and Business Group. In its new role, SBS will focus on the policy issues
where Government action can influence the business environment; and continue to
build an enterprise culture which supports our entrepreneurs - the people who
make the difference in firms large and small. It will also lead time-limited projects
such as its current Business Support Simplification Programme (see above). On
behalf of Ministers, SBS will maintain policy responsibility for the Government’s
investments in a range of business support - including Business Link, Enterprise
Insight, and access to finance funds.

Women's Enterprise Task Force

2.133 In November 2006 a new Women's Enterprise Task Force was set up
(WETF). The remit of the WETF is to give advice to Government in the
development of policies that will encourage more women to set up and grow their
own businesses. The WETF will be managed through the South East England
Development Agency (SEEDA - see page 55 about RDAs).

52
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SR04 PSA 7 — Regional economic performance On course

“Make sustainable improvements in the economic performance of all the
English regions by 2008 and over the long term reduce the persistent gap in
growth rates between the regions, demonstrating progress by 2006."” Joint
with HM Treasury and the Department for Communities and Local
Government.

2.134 The aim of this PSA and the objective on Strengthening Regional Economies
on page 55 is to increase the growth rate of all English regions and, in the longer
term, to narrow the gap in the growth rates between the more successful and
lagging regions. In delivering this objective the Department has worked closely
with HMT, CLG {with whom the Department jointly owns the PSA), DWE DfT,
DfES, the Regional Development Agencies (RDAs), and the Government Offices.
Key achievements by the Department for the year 2006-07 include:

e reviews of the Regional Economic Strategy (RES) for five regions;

e the distribution of the new round of EU structural funds for
competitiveness; and

e anew Assisted Area map for the UK for the period 2007-13.

2.135 As an overarching theme the Department has continued to develop the
avidence base for addressing regional performance differentials in employment,
skills, investment, innovation, enterprise and competition.

Current position

2.136 Alongside the Pre-Budget Report 2008, the Government has published a
report on progress against this target, in line with the commitment given in this
PSA target and the PSA technical note.®8 The report sets out some encouraging
early evidence suggesting limited signs of progress, although a full assessment of
trends in regional economic activity and disparities cannot be fully determined until
the current economic cycle is complete.

2.137 The main indicator for this target is the gross value added (GVA) per head
growth rate in each region. For the purposes of monitoring the PSA, the regions
are divided into three successful regions (East, London and South East) and six
lagging ones (East Midlands, North East, North West, South West, West Midlands
and Yorkshire & Humber). In 2002-2005, performance was mixed. The three
Northern Regions, the East Midlands, South West and London improved on
baseline performance, with the West Midlands maintaining baseline performance
whereas the South East and East regions did not improve on their individual
baseline trends. Between 2002 and 2005, GVA per head growth in the Northern,
Midlands and South West collectively was 2.1% per year,® the same rate of
growth as the Greater South East (GSE). This is in contrast to 1990-2002 (PSA
baseline) when GVA per head trend growth in the Greater South East was 2.4%
per year, and 1.8% per year in the North, Midlands and South West.”™ Over 2002-
2005, the Morth saw the fastest employment rate growth, but the lowest
productivity growth. Employment growth in the North, combined with strong
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performance on basic and level 2 skills in the poorer performing regions has
underpinned the narrowing in GVA per head growth rates.

2.138 However. with only three years' data it is too early to say if these results
reflect changes in underlying trends, particularly as there is not yet an official
regional real GVA data series, and there is evidence of differential timing in regional
economic cycles, with greater volatility in the GSE cycle. A significant challenge
remains on both parts of the target, with a particular challenge 1o improve
productivity in the poorer performing regions,

Factors affecting performance

2.139 The achievement of this PSA is subject 1o
the performance of the UK economy as a whole,
and hence to the often global or international
factors which affect it. It is therefaore intrinsically
difficult to assess the degrea to which the ovarall
position reflects the measures which are being
put in place. The reasons for the gaps in regional
performance are long-term and structural, and
action taken now (o improve, for example, the
environment for innovation and enterprise will not
necessanly have an impact on regional
periormance until some time: in the futune.

2140 Progress on this PSA is underpinned by
two broad strands. First, the Governmant has
put in place a macroeconomic framewark
designed to maintain long-term econonmic
stability and help businesses and individuals plan
for the future, and secondly, the Govarnrmant
has introduced microeconomic reforms to
address the five drivers of productivity {skills,
investrmant, innovation, enterprise and
competition] and to encourage people inta waork
by making work pay.

2.141 Progress on narmowing the gap has been
partly due 1o strong employment growth in the
Morth. By May 2006, the aversge employment
rate for the bottom six regions was broadly equal
1o the average employment rate for the top
three regions, This.compares with a gap of over
2 percentage points in 2001, Similarly, tha skills
gap between the top three regions and the
bottom six regions — as measured by the
percentage of the economically active population
trained to Mational Vocational Qualification Level
2 or above - has alzo narrowed from 3.8% in
18998 10 1.1% in 2006,

2,142 The Government is conducling a review
of sub-national economic developmeant to fead
into the 2007 Comprehensive Spending Review.
It seeks to explore the apportunities for further
relaasing the economic potential of English
regions, cities and localities, and to respond

54

maore effectively to the ongoing challenge of
tackling pockets of deprivation.

2.143 Important measures undertaken in
2006-07 to delver the target inciude:

# tha national roll-out of Pathways 1o Work,
an initiative to support incapacity benefit
claimants to find work;

s supporting the three-year Aegional Funding
Allocations exergise which has achigved
alignment between the regional strategies in
the inter-related areas of economic
development, housing and ransport;

s supporting five Regional Development
Agencies (RDAs) in reviewing their regions’
aconomic stratagies, which now have a
sharper focus with targeted actions focused
on identified market failures within the
regions (the Mational Audit Office completed
its programme of assessment of the
parformance and capacity of the eight RDAs
outside London — all were assessed as
perfarming strongly or performing well);

& taking further steps 1o strengthen devolution,
performance managerment and accountability
in the RDAs, including Indepandent
Performance Assessments {IPA] carmied out
by the National Audit Office for eight RDAS;

« continued input from the RDAS on central
Gaovernment policy decisions, including
warking with local and national bodies 1o
reduce the number of business support
services from around 3,000 now to no more
than 100 by 2010 (see also page 52 abovel;
and

= taking nexi steps on implemeanting the
Morthern VWay Growth Strategy. including nenw
science and research centras, skills pilots and
ransport interventions,




Supporting successiul business

Business plan objective: strengthening regional economies

Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07

Wiork with the Regional 2,144 Please also refer to page 54 above on regional economic strategy
Development Agencies  reviews.
[RDAs), Government

Offices (GOs) and other  TDA8

Government 2.145 Through RDA funded projects and programmes. the RDAs
Departments to make boosted the performance of the Regions in 2005-06 by:
sustainable

improvements in the = enabling the creation or safeguarding of over 111,000 jobs;

economic performance of o paining over 52,000 people to get a job;
all the English Regions by

2008 and narrow the gap ® creating or attracting over 18,000 new businesses to the regions;
in growth rates between
them
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= helping over 166,000 businesses 1o improve their performance Iwith
over 7,000 of these helped to engage in new collaborations with the

x

UK knowledge base); E
E
= |avering over £2.1 billion in regeneration infrastructure investment; £
» reclaiming and/or redeveloping over 1,070 hectares of brownfield land; E
and 22
o ¢ L\_h b
e helping over 373,000 people in their skills developmeant,
2.146 Figures for 2008-07 will be available this surmmer. - 2
2.147 Three examples of successiul RDA-funded projects are: 2
e 2
= The Daresbury Science and Innovation Campus. The Nosth West ;E i
Development Agency has invested £50 million in the Campus in order 3 E L
to provide the infrastructure (high gueality office, workshop and _E E &
laboratory space) to support the development and commercaalisation Egf

i

of world-class science. Lord Sainsbury, then Minister for Science,
officially opened the Campus in September 2006 and it is now hame
to a number of technology-based companies, p

s Wave Hub. South West of England Regional Development Agency
{SWRDA) has invested ES00,000 in Wave Hub, an innovative project
to dernonsirate the oparational effectiveness of wave-anargy
generating technology. Wave Hub expected to create up to 700 jobs
and contribute £27 milkon to the regional economy by 2020. 1t will
also generate enough clean, renewable energy 1o power 14,000
hiomeas,

& Hethel Engineering Cantre. The East of England Developmant
Agency has funded an engineering centre of excellence in partnership
with Norfalk County Council, the Lotus Group, South Norfolkk Council
and Business Link. The centre supporis molorsports, electronics and
high-tach angineenng.

2.148 See also section 3.3 which provides information about the

relationship between the Department and its delivery partners such as

the RDAs,

Prges 190-263

Resource
accounts

Budgetary spend
Pageas 264-287

=
)
0
B
=)
Er.,
g
=N

$
:
E
L







Unable to display this page



Department of Trade and Industry - Annual Report and Accounts 2006-07

Selective Finance for Investment in England (SFIE)

2.159 Selective Finance for Investment in England (SFIE) is a national business
support product. It is designed to assist the development of the most
disadvantaged regions in England by supperting sustainable investment and job

creation. It promotes the expansion, rationalisation, modernisation and :
diversification of economic activities of businesses located in the Assisted #maaal
in particular by encouraging firms to set up new establishments there. SFIE
support is discretionary and funds are only provided when specific capital
expenditure, employment and productivity improvement milestones are reached.
RDAs are responsible for the delivery of SFIE where the amount of support is less
than £2 million. Support above this level is administered by the Department.

2.160 Over the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007 333 offers of SFIE grant
support were made. The total value of these grants is equal to £71 million, and they
will support £606 million of private sector capital investment in projects that will
create or safeguard 14,000 jobs in the assisted areas. In addition 87 offers of
SFIE(SME] grant support were accepted by SMEs operating outside of the assisted
areas. The total value of these grants was £5.6 million; they will support £52 million
of capital investment by SMEs and will create or safeguard 1,214 jobs. The figures
below present information on SFIE/SFIE(SME) support by each of the nine RDAs.




MNational Standard

“Maintaining the UK's standing as one of the best pl

online business.”

Related Tar

Suppating sucoesshul busmess

in the world for

: SR02 PSA 8 - Make the UK the best place in the world for

e-business, with an extensive and competitive broadband market, judged

using international comparative measures of business uptake and use of

information and communication techniques (see Annex A.2).

Current position

2.161 The UK continues to make progress in the development of its broadband
infrastructure and in the way businesses are using technology. Although we are
likely to fall short of the PSA target to be the best in the world (the latest ranking is
still 3rd), we believe that the UK is one of the leading nations for online business
as measured against the benchmarked countries.”™

2,162 The LK still has one of the fastest growing
broadband markets in Europe and continues to
have the most extensive avadability, with 99.8% of
households able to access broadband, Take-up s
13.5 million househobds as of April 2007 and
predicted 10 reach 17 million by end of June
20077 Extensivenass is a combined measura of
broadband availability wiih & market context factor,
which estimates market dermand for broadband
We have seen increased compealition in the
broadband market, with at l=ast half & dozen
companies offerng services, iNcreasingty over
urbundled lines. New bundled services, offering
“free” broadband, have been brought 1o market
angl higher bandwidth senvices are alsa incraasinghy
avaitable: We continue to review UK broadband
policy and have asked the Broadband Stakeholders
Group {an industry group) 1o report on lkeby
developments in the market in the mediem term
This will inform further policy development.

2163 The 2007 E-readiness rankings produced
by the Economist Intelligence Unit placed the UK
2nd behind Finfand as the most attractive
business location in Weastern Europa. The UK's
main advantages are a low cost ban qualiied
wiork force, proximity to developed markets and
itz long-term market potential. Figures from the
OMS 2005 e-busingss study show that the value
of purchases by UK businesses owver the internet
rose 1o £62.4 billion in 2004, up by £24.5 hillion
(64 %) from the 2003 level of £37.9 billion
Internat purchases accounted for nearly 4.4% of
the total purchases by UK businesses in 2004

2164 Business investment in information and
communication technology {ICT) goods and

servicas more than doubled in the UK betwean
1992 and 2004, outpacing growth in to1al
investment. Investment in ICT grew by 165%
betweaen 1992 and its peak in 2000, and by
117% betwean 1992 and 2004, Growth in total
investment rosa steadily by 101% over the
same periad.

2.165 OFCOM's September 2006
“Communication Market repont™ shows that thera
i5 & wery high-take up of communication services
within SME businesses. The raport found that
0% of SMEs have ownership of a PC, MAC or
Laptop and B4% of SMEs have an Internet
connection. Threa guarters (73%) claimed to use
broadband as their main connacticn.

2166 Thera is clear evidence that effective use
of information and communicaton tachnology
{ICT) enables productivity growth, where it s
combined with complemeantary iInvestments in
human capital, process and organisational
changa, Tha businass challenge, for the public
sector as well as the private sector, is o ensura
that invastment in ICT s not done in 1solation but
as part of business change to deiver specific
business objactives,

2167 The Dapartment continues to work closaly
with Ragional Development Agencigs 1o ensure
that their regional economic strategies reflect the
importance of ICT to economic development and
proguctivity, A number of reguons have developed
ICT strategies to complement their regional
economic strategias, On a similar basis wa maet
with the Devolved Admiristrations 1o share
knowiledge and policy 1ssues.
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Business plan objective: effective channels with business

2168 The Effective Channels with Business objective is a key conduit for dialogue
with business and ensures that Government understands the consequences of its
actions on productivity and performance particularly in relation to regulation,
innovation, public procurement and skills. Understanding is built up through the
combination of high quality analysis, focused relationship management of targeted
husinesses and intermediaries, and formation of industry/government growth
teams and specific joint industry/government discussion of major regulations.

2.169 Such engagement has continued to be strengthened and deepened via a
strong two-way communication processes with some 230 key companies and 90
intermediaries who influence the corporate strategy and performance of the rest of
their sector thereby enabling the Department to further enhance its knowledge and
ability 1o influence policymaking and regulatory development at an early stage. and
thus to create the best conditions for UK business success.

Progress in 2006-07

Drive development and  Manufacturing Forum
delivery of the
Government’s
tanufactuning Strategy
Action Plan, through thi

2.170 The Manufacturing Forum, which brings together Government and
organisations who are working to support the manutacturing sector in
the LK, was established in 2004, The Forum has:

miulti stakeholder e driven forward the proposal, development and launch of the National
Manutacturing Forum, Skills Academy for Manufacturing (NSAM), as part of DIES's
including ensuring programme to establish a framework of skills acadermies;™

delivery of the Forum’s y

priority actions including  ® Tesearched the scope for encouraging increased skills and training,
on skills, public improved environmental standards, and local and regional sourcing of
procurement and image products through public procurement contracts;’

by end December 2006, gy piored developing an independent Manufacturing Media Centre as a
resource for journalists, to address the issue of tha sector's n-a-gaﬁm
image in the media and to improve public understanding; and

e established a “Manufacturing Day” as part of Enterprise Week
campaign (see also page 51 on Enterprise Waak).

Co-ordinate all DTI 2012 Olympics
activities associated with . o
the 2012 London 2171 A delivery plan™ has been produced to create a legacy of more.

Olympics, which includes innovative, giobally mn'ip&mm it witl1t]'.=a W

it Pesponiliwilh concentrating on getting buy-in for a cross Government business

e DepuRaa i strategy. Highlights of this strategy will be: supporting indiidual

Culture, Media and Sport businesses and sectors to improve competitiveness, focusing on gatliﬂ]}
DCMS) for maximising  1OVatian into the 2012 games and ensuring a strong intenational focus.
the wider economic 1o the work.

banefits of the Gamas

across the UK and 1o

develop a detafled nitial

oparating plan by

September 2006






Plans for 2006-07  Progress in 2006-07
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2187 Since the launch, UKTI has made
significant imemal changes, restructunng in
order 1o focus s resources gven maore on the
front line and in high growth markets. As of
hiarch 2007 posts in headguarters offices have
raduced by some 40% since March 2004, and
some 90% of UKTI's staff are in the front ling
overseas, in the English regions, or in customer-
facing service delivery in headquarters.

2188 Oiher progress to date includes:

& Thea launch in March 2007 of a naw compeling
meassage to market the UK economy
ntemationally, "the LK as a Springboard for
Global Growth ™. This 15 a message for the UK
economy as a whaole, for all those engaged in
promating the UK as both the best possible
investment location and the trading partner of
choice around the warld, UKTI is promoting
this message in the UK and overseas to both
business-and public sector pariners

s The launch on Octaber 2006 of a strategy for
promoting the City of London-and the UK's
financial services sector. This was developed
in partnership with leading financial sector
bodies from London, the devolved
admunistrations and the English regions

* A refocusing of resources In OvVerseas
rmarkets, with increasas in staff in 16 high-
growth amerging markats: This is helping to
deepen the UK's trade and economic
relationships with high-growth markets such
as India, China and Brazil, and ensure Uk
business is best placed to make the most of
the busingss opporfunities they offer.

» Agreement through a new, Ministernally-led
committee, on more effective arrangements
across Departments for maximising the
commercial value for companies of Minsters'
YISIlS CVersaas,

2.189 In taking forward its new strategy, LKTI 15
building on firm foundations. Independant
rézearch, published in April 2006, showed that
£65 million spent on four key UKTI trade
devalopment schemes generated £1.1 billion =

in ether words £17 of additional net benefit for
each £1 of UKTI spand - by helping over 5,000
businessas, from tha manufacturing and senices
sectors, 1o upgrade their international marketing
strategies. The LK remains Europe’s number one
inweard investment destination; in 2005-06, 1,220
imward investment projects created 34,077 new
jobs, safeguarding a further 55,789,

2190 UK Trade & Investment is committed to
delivering its existing SR04 PSA targets. |t will
also develop, with HM Treasuny, new top-level
targets covering the following four broad areas:

# high value Foreign Direct Investmeant;

s R&D and innovative activity of UK Trade &
Investment's customer base;

& LK businesses’ performance; and

s the UK's reputation as a place to do business
in and with

Thase will fead into development of new public
service agresments during the Comprehensive
Spending Review in 2007,

SR04 PSA 8 - UK Trade & Investment

On course

“By 2008 deliver a measurable improvement in the business performance of

UK Trade & Investment’s international trade customers, with an emphasis on

new to export firms; and maintain the UK as the prime location in the EU for
foreign direct investment.” Joint with the Foreign and Commonwealth Office.

Current position

Indicator (i) At least a 30 percentage point increase by 2007-08 in the proportion

of UK Trade & Investment trade development resources focused on new-to-export
firms: ON COURSE



Supporting successiul business

2.191 According to internal management accounting data, as of July 2008 the shift
in resources to new-to-export firms was on track to be delivered by the end of the
SR04 period. A new five-year Strategy was published in July, to deliver the key
elements of the March 2006 Budget announcement of an enhanced role for UK
Trade & Investment. The Strategy charts a new direction for UK Trade &
Investment that will require significant organisational change and re-distribution of
resources to deliver new priorities. It also confirms that new-to-export firms will
continue to be an important client group for UK Trade & Investment.

Indicator (i) At least 40% of new-to-export firms assisted by UK Trade & Investment improve
their businass performance within 2 years: AHEADY

G

*._--_._.__.-"‘

o
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—

Indicator [ifi] At least 50% of established exporters assisted by UK Trade & Investment improve \ﬁi
their business performance within 2 years: AHEAD™

51%

=

f"

Indicator {iv) Improve the UK's ranking within Europe in terms of the GDP-
adjusted stock of EU foreign direct investment based on the UNCTAD World
Investment Report: ON COURSE

2.192 Based on the UNCTAD World Investment Report 2006 the UK's ranking has
increased from a revised final ranking of 15th in 2004 to a provisional ranking of
10th in 2005 (this ranking may be subject to further revision).

Indicator (v) 374 (in 2005-06), 440 (in 2006-07) and 524 (in 2007-08) successful
inward investment projects secured by UK Trade & Investment in each year of the
Spending Review of which 75% are knowledge driven. ON COURSE

2.193 438 successes (figure revised since publication of Inward Investment Annual
Review in July) were achieved in 2005-06; of these, 73% were knowledge-driven
(this percentage remains to be verified).

2.194 At end-March 2007, 486 successes have been reported as achieved in
2006-07 of which 77% were knowledge driven, Cumulative achievement against
this PSA indicator to date (April 2005-March 2007) is 924 successes
recorded/reported, of which 75% were knowledge driven. These figures and
percentages are provisional and remain to be verified.

Performance

=

The Department

Pages 114-167

2
e
L
b}
g

2
'Y
Em
i

Resource
accounts
Pages 190-263

Pages 288-324

|




Unable to display this page



Section 2.6
Ensuring fair markets

A\

Introduction

2.195 Economic success provides the wealth on which we all depend. When they
work, markets are the key to that success; they provide new and cheaper products
and services, full employment and rising living standards. Markets work best within
clear rules. Government has a role in helping markets work, and in ensuring they
are fair,

2.196 Globalisation brings challenges to existing approaches developed on a
national basis. Its impact can be felt more keenly by more vuinerable members of
society. Globalisation also brings opportunities because those who get ahead of the
game and embrace change benefit the most. There will be significant benefits for
business, employees and consumers if we can put in place world-class
framewoarks for domestic and international business activity which help stimulate
new ideas and encourage enterprise and growth within a fair society,

2.197 That is what the Fair Markets Group within the Department aims to do in
setting appropriate and proportionate legal frameworks for competition, corporate
govemance, consumers, labour markets, and in promoting free and fair trade.

This work includes acting to liberalise international markets and support sustainable
development; shaping rules to maintain competition and to promote openness and
competitiveness in the UK and EU business environments; intervening to create
fair and flexible labour markets and to ensure that confident and informed
consumers drive markets; and acting to protect the vulnerable.
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Key achievements 2006-07

s Companies Act - simplification and reform of company law, saving
businesses an estimated £250 million a year (see page 84)

e Consumer Credit Act 2006 being implemented, providing millions of
borrowers with new protections from dishonest lenders (see page 71)

s Adoption of EU Directive on Services in the Internal Market -
| implementation will open up the EU’s internal market for services and
boost our economy by around £5 billion a year (see page 74)

» Better Regulation Simplification Plan published showing planned
delivery of savings of £700 million in reduction of red tape as part of
the Department’s commitment to reduce annual burdens on business
by 25% (see section 3.6)

s New National Minimum Wage penalties policy (see page 82)

» Extended maternity pay and extension of right to request flexible
working to carers (see page 80)

« Legislation against age discrimination came into force in October 2006
(see page 80)

¢ A record performance from the Export Licensing Organisation, with
80% of licences issued in 20 working days (see page 76)

eeee— = — -

2.198 Crucially, it also includes ensuring that when we intervene in markets, we
have weighed the evidence and assessed the risks; that regulation is proportionate,
as simple as possible to follow and that it imposes no unnecessary burdens. The
Department works together with business, trade unions, other interest groups and
regulatory bodies to ensure that regulatory frameworks foster the conditions for
business sUCCess.

2.199 Global security fosters international trade which is good for business. The
Export Control Organisation contributes to international security by controlling the
proliferation of arms and other strategic goods. The Department aims to implement
controls in @ way that minimises the burden on legitimate business.
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Factors affecting performance

Competition

2.206 Despite performing well in intermational
comparisons, the Departmeant recognises the
naed to continue to monitor the operation of tha
competition regime and consider possible
enhancemants to 15 speed, afficiency, and
affectiveness, including addressing any barriers
to redress for those affected by antr-competitive
behaviaur, in ling with the aim of creating a
regime that is amongst the best in the world,

2207 The Department has owerall responsibility
for competition issues although responsibility for
making substantive decisions and enfarcing
competition law falls 1o the UK's independent
competition autharities, primarily the Office of
Fair Trading {OFT18% and the Competition
Commission & The Department has transierred
the rernaining statutory undertakings given under
the Fair Trading Act 1973 1o the competition
authorities,

2,208 The Departmeni is responsible for
coordinating Government responses to OFT's
market studies and has responded to
racommendations regarding opium derivalives®
and airpons.® The Department is currantly
coordinating the respenses to market studies on
commercial use of public information and the
pharmaceutical pnce regulation schemea.

Consumers

2.209 A DTlHed OECD-lavel resaarch
programme is examining specific aspects of
CONSUMEr regimes in participating countries
under the headings of Legisiative Framework,
Enforcement and Consumer Empowenmant,
with the aim of identifying the common features
of effective regimes under each heading.

Dur understanding of what makes an effective
consumer regime will improve as this research
programme progresses, The first phase
considered an aspect affecting consumer
empowerment, namely how best to run
CONSUMEr Carmpaigns to prevent consumers
falling victim to scams. Guidance has now been
published.® The second project, to assess what
canstitutes an effective penalty regime for
breaches of consumaer protection lagislation, has
been completed and is now being considerad by
the DECD's Commitiee on Consumer Policy.

2.210 A number of Government initiatives
relevant to consurmer ampowearment and support
are also underway, and the Depantment intends

Enzuring fair markets

to consider possible mdicators for assessing the
level of consumer empowerment, wiich can ba
used to benchmark progress in this area.

& Transposition of the Unfair Commercial
Practices (UCP) Directive will make it easiar
for consumers 1o understand the law by
simplifying UK consumer law. The UCP
Directive will introduce a genaral protubition
on traders using unfair practices, and will
harmaonise unfair trading faws across the EU.
The Directive overlaps with 29 existing laws
and, in December 2006, the Department
announced® that it would repeal provisions in
22 of these. The Department will ba
consulting on draft regulations (the Consumer
Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations) 1o
implement the Directive, and draft guidance in
May 2007. These regulations will come into
force in April 2008,

s The DTl-led Retail Enforcement Pilot (REF)™
has made significant progress in delivering the
recommendations ansing from the Hampton
Report®™ and has developad a new
coorchnated, nsk-based approach for joint
delivery of local authority regulatory services
for retail businesses. Responsibility for the
REP transferred to the Better Regulation
Executive in the Cabinet Office with effect
from January 2007,

# The Consumer Credit Act received Royal
Assent n April 2006. The new Act amends
and augrmeants the Consumer Credit Act 1974
in ordar to improve consumer nights and
redress; improve the regulation of consumer
cradit businessas and provide for better OFT
oversight: and improve the consistency of the
regulation of consumer credit agreements.
The Consumear Credit Act is now Deing
implemented. April 2007 has seen the
introduction of two important provisions,
which will make it easier for consumers to
obtain redress if they have been treated badly
or unfairly by lenders = a new Altemative
Dispuies Resolution Scheme, which wall
provide all consumers with accaess to a free
and independant means of resolving disputes
with lenders and a new Linfair Relationships
Tast, which will give greater scope for courts
to consider unfair agreements. Work will also
continue on developing a new licensing
regime, a new Consumar Credit Appeals
Titunal and regulations designed to improve
the level of informaticn consurmers can expect
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to receive on their credit agreements, which
we plan to bring into force in April 2008,

The DTI, the Depariment for Wiork and
Pansions and the Dapartment of
Constitutional Affairs published the “Tackling
Over-indebtedness Annual Report 2006" ™
in the summer, which highfights work across
Government 1o tackie over-indeblednass,
including the Department’s work on the face-
to-face debt advice programme, which 15 now
being implemanted.

The Face-to-Face Debt Advice Project is
well on the way 1o helping tens of thousands
of the financially excluded and is financed
fram the Treasury’s Financial Inclusion Fund.

SR04 PSA 5 - Trade barriers

As a sign of its success, the 2006-07 budget
was increased from £15 million 1o £16.5
million in the 2006 Pre Budget Repart.

In addition, the new Consumers, Estate
Agents & Redress Bill was introduced in the
House of Lords on 16 November and passed
in 1o the Housa of Commons on 7 February
2007.% This Bill will give consumaers a
stronger advocacy body to represent them,
create redress schemes in certain seclors,
and improve the regulation of estate agents
and doorstep selling. The Bill is continuing its
passage through Parliament and, providing the
Bill gets Royal Assant by summmer 2007, the
Depariment expacts these measures 10 be
implemanted in 2008.

Slippage

“Ensure that the EU secures significant reductions in EU and world trade

barriers by 2008 leading to improved opportunities for developing countries
and a more competitive Europe.” Joint with the Department for International
Development.

Action to address slippage

The UK's main objectives are to encourage all players to engage in
discussions across all the Doha Development Agenda (DDA) dossiers to
deliver an ambitious and pro-development outcome; and to seek
progress on key issues of interest to developing countries that are
outside the main negotiations, such as Aid for Trade and Rules of Origin.
The Department and DfID are engaging with the Commission, EU and

WTO Members on a regular basis.

2211 This PSA target is an evolution of an SR02 PSA target® that proved
unachievable after the failure of the Fifth World Trade Organisation (WTO)
Ministerial meeting in Cancun in 2003.

2.212 This target is shared with the Department for International Development, and the
assessment of progress is agreed between the Department and DfID (although both
Departments use slightly different terminology to express the same assessment).

2.213 Progress is assessed qualitatively. The assessment that there is slippage 1s
based on the cumulative impact of the factors identified below.

Current position

2.214 The main lever for meeting this target is the Doha Development Agenda
(DDA). Negotiations on the DDA were formally suspended in July 2006. Informal
negotiations restarted in November 2006 and the Director General of the WTO
announced a full-scale return to negotiations on 31 January 2007. Throughout, the
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UK has been working to encourage all players to move where necessary from
established positions, first to deliver relaunched negotiations, and ultimately to
deliver an ambitious, pro-development outcome. During negotiations, we have built
up a high degree of credibility with opposite numbers in the EU and internationally.
We have continued to use this credibility to stress the global benefits of a deal and

the risks of failure.

2.215 Although significant, commitment to the DDA is not the only element in the
trade policy mix to achieve delivery of the target.

2.216 The Department has been seeking to influence the European Commission as it
develops its trade policy agenda beyond the DDA. Commission plans include
proposals for new regional trade negotiations (RTAs), beginning with India, South
Korea and the Association of South East Asian Nations. The Department’s objective is
to ensure the WTO remains the cornerstone of a strong and rules-based multilateral
trading system, with the DDA the Department's first priority. We want to see the new
generation of RTAs build towards future multilateral negotiations, delivering increasing
liberalisation while taking account of the needs of developing countries. We want to
ensure, too, that the Economic Partnership Agreements (EPAs) being negotiated
between the EU and the African, Caribbean and Pacific (ACP) countries will be an
effective tool for development. In line with our UK Position Paper of March 2006%
we will continue to work to ensure ACP concerns are addressed and that a
pro-development conclusion of the EPA negotiations is reached by end 2007.

2,217 The Department has been consulting UK industry and weorking with the
European Commission on the planned reshaped EU Market Access Strategy,'™
intended to address trade barriers in third countries. The Department also
consulted UK interests to prepare the UK response to the Commission Green
Paper on the operation of EU Trade Defence Instruments.'0!

Factors affecting performance

2.218 Delivery of this target depends on the
actions of the EU (the EU has competence on all
European trade issues) and others, especially
WTO Members. The UK contrbution depends on
its credibility and influence both in the EU (tha
Commission and other Member States) and with
ey WTO members.

2.219 The WTD negotiations on the DDA have
the potential to make the grealest contribution 1o
achieving the target, although there are other
non-D0A issues that contribute.

2220 Jointly with the Department for
International Development and other interested
departments, the Departmant works through
Ministers and officials to build effective
relationships with opposite nurnbers in the EU
and internationally, as well as consulting with
business and civil society. In particular, its Trade
Policy Consultative Forum, chaired by the
Ministar for Trade, Investrent and Foreign

Affairs, meets regularly and brings together
Mon-Government Organisations (NGOs) including
development charities, business associations,
trade unions and consumear groups 10 discuss
world trade issues,

2.221 The Department has continued with
regular meetings of the imer-Daparimental group
that was set up by the Department to improve
planning and operations on the Doha
Devalopment Agenda. This includas regular
review of risks and contingencies and has now
been extended to cover all trade negaotiations,
whethar multilataral or bilateralf regional. The
Department has also worked across Government
thraugh the high level sirategy group,
esiablished in 2008, comprising represantativas
from across Whitehall and UKRER which covers
DDA and non-DDA trade issues. Threugh both
fora, the Departmant has worked to agree
objectives, develop its influencing strategy and
ansure targeted and consistent effort,
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Ersuning fair markets

Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07

iy 2.229 Responsibility for setting up the LBRO
the Lmi transferred 1o the Cabinet Office

Wiﬁ #m*l-#umpmn Report

‘Strearmiine and improve the framework for 2230 Please refer to PSA 3 — competition and
,ﬂmmﬂmmmwmmmuk ‘consumers (page 70) above.
hwtlm Unfair Commercial Practices Directive

Other significant activities

State Aid

2.231 The Department has lead-responsibility in Government for advice on state aid
i1ssues and state aid policy, except in relation to agriculture and transport. The
Department led the UK's input to the European Commission’s state aid review
work through consultation and engagement with UK contacts and other member
states. The Department helped secure changes to the new rules for subsidies for
B&D and innovation and small (de minimis) aids in 2006 and was also actively
engaged in the lead-up to reviews of frameworks for environmental aid and state
guarantees where new instruments are due to be finalised in 2007, as well as the
broader debate about state aid interpretation, procedure and enforcement issues.

lllegal Money Lending

2.232 The illegal money lending teams based in Glasgow and Birmingham have so
far identified over 200 illegal lenders and approximately 40 individuals have been
referred for potential prosecution. So far, 25 cases have resulted in convictions or
are in the prosecution pipeline. The work of the teams has benefited nearly 2,000
victims and relieved them of more than £3 million in payments that would
otherwise have been demanded by the lender. In December 2006, the Department
received an additional £1.2 million from HM Treasury to continue and expand the
pilot from its current bases to neighbouring regions. On 25 January 2007, the
Treasury announced that, as part of its Financial Inclusion Agenda, it would provide
further additional funding to roll out the project nationally. See also page 72 above
for details on other debt-related work.

Christrmas Hampers

2.233 Following the collapse of Farepak, the Government has been working with
the hamper companies to put in place new safeguards. Customers’ money will
now be held in trust accounts controlled by independent trustees, and the new
arrangements will be monitored by a new trade association.

Export Control Organisation

2.234 Through its Export Control Organisation, the Department supports
Government efforts to prevent proliferation of arms and other strategic goods,
whilst minimising the negative impacts on UK business, through the operation of an
export licence system in conjunction with other Government Departments. The
UK's strategic export controls are based on national and international commitments
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SR04 PSA 10 Assessment of progress: not yet assessed
Maximising potential in the workplace

“By 2008, promote ethnic diversity, cooperative employment relations and
greater choice and commitment in the workplace, while maintaining a flexible
labour market.”

Strategic

| overview

Pages 813

2

Current position of PSA 10

2240 This PSA has five indicators. At present performance data is only available for
the indicator on the self-employment rate of under-represented ethnic minorities,
see below. The technical note setting out the indicators and measures for this
target has been revised, and is available on the Depariment’s weabsite, 1%

o
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2.241 The first indicator for this target is the self-employment rate of under-

D S , 5
represented ethnic minorities. Under-represented ethnic minority groups in self- ' £
employment are all ethnic minorities except Indian, Pakistani and Chinese (we use E_,
the same classification of ethnic minority groups as used in the Census). Against 8’
the baseline of a 4 percentage-point gap between the rate for under-represented k,iE ®
groups and the rate for all other groups (summer 2004 - spring 2005), the gap has " LIN
fallen to 3.5 percentage points by Quarter 4 2006 (see graph). It is too early to be
sure if this is a long-term trend.

=]
2242 The self-employment rate of under-represented groups has improved from £ 2
5.6% laverage surnmer 2004 — spring 2005} to 6.1% (average (4 2005 - Q4 2006). % E;
E B
-
Figure 2.19 Percentage point gap between self-employment rates for under-represented groups E=c
and all other groups, England
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2 243 Baselines have now been set for indicators measuring progress on the other
sub-targets relating to incidences of racial discrimination at work, and information
and consultation:

e The baseline for the indicator to measure the reduction in the incidence of
racial diserimination at work reported by ethnic minority employees has.
been set at 4.0% by data gathered in the new Fair Treatment at Work
Survey 2005. Data on progress against this indicator will be available in
2008 when the second survey is conducted,

e The baseline to measure the number of employees that have access 10
information and consultation procedures has been updated using the
Worktorce Employee Relations Survey (WERS) 2004 data, and set at 43%.
Data on interim progress against this indicator will be available in autumn
2007 from the Work Life Balance Survey.

e The baseline for the indicator to measure the number of economically
active people who are well informed about their rights at work has been
updated using the results from the DTl Awareness Knowledge and
Exercise of Employment Rights Survey 2005, and set at 65%. We expect
data on progress against this indicator will be available by autumn 2009.

2.244 The baseline for the indicator to measure overall level of UK labour market
flaxibility will be set by an Index of Labour Market Adaptability {(ILMA). A paper
outlining the methodology behind the Index and presenting results will be
published in the second half of 2007. The Department works to ensure that
activities and new legislation in this area are in line with better regulation principles

and maintaining choice and flexibility in the labour market.

Factors affecting performance

2.245 The ethnic minority enterprise data (above)
sinca 1he baseline period of spring 2005 indicates
sormea overall mprovernent. However, it is too early
1o say whether this is a trend. This sub-target is'a
challenging one; the self-employment rates of
underrepresented groups will need 1o nse
sigraficanthy more than that for the white populaton
to decrease the gap. In addition, the age profile of
thie- twio groups is a facton with under-representad
groups having a greater proportion of young
people. The Regional Development Agencies have
ongoing indndual programmes to encourage black
and minanty ethnic enterise.

78

2.246 There is some evidence that many peopla
prefer employment to self-employment, and in a
buoyant economy there are more employmeant
opportunitias. ln part this may explain the greater
success in reducing the gap between ethnic
minarity and overall employment. This area is
covered by the SR2002 target (shared betwean
the Department and DWP), see annex A.2.

2.247 The majonty of the activiies carried out
under the business plan chjective discussed
balow will also impact on PSA 10,
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Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07

Pmn'mm 1ha hmaﬁma? Information and consultation

hu:mn the number utim 2268 Tha Information and Consultation (I8C) regulations, having been

'“‘F“ Eadntamad htfndunadmmrmrmﬁunm ‘were extended in April 2007 10 cover
onsulted by their Hnd mnmnmwnh 100 to 148 amphvaeamd a further awarenass

i ‘campaign was launched. Hemmh on the impact of the regulations has
| been commissionad,

Work with stakeholders  Simplification of employment law

o SPIOVINSOt. e i essitment's Simpliication Plan lpublishied in Decembér
law with the goal of N e o SRy el
‘reducing compliance 2006, see saction 3.61 included significant proposals on simplifying UK
:mﬁ-ﬁuﬁm -amployment law. £430 million of possible annual adminisirative savings
] | Py j et have been identified. Highlights include a root-and-branch review of the
:igm m“mm

~ scope for simplification on dispute resolution, Most of these measures
. are work in progress, which in general the Department hopes to
“conclude in 2007.

2.260 The Department has continued to build the evidence base for
.}gmd pﬁiiqr making in employment relations, and ensure that proposals
for new employment laws meet better regulation principles. The

red i HI.'HF'bYﬂ'Iﬂ'“'- Employment Relations research programme aims to provide evidence 10
‘particulars and the right  support policy development. 1%
'...,: ._ ! 1¢!f

Acas

2.261 Acas is an independent statutory body mainly funded by the Department,
but which also generates some of its own revenue from training, consultancy and
publications. Its aim is to improve organisations and working life through better
employment relations. Its services include providing information, advice and
training on a wide range of employment issues as well as individual and collective
dispute resolution.

2.262 During 2006-07 Acas has:

e Dealt with around 900,000 calls to the Acas National Helpline, with
surveys indicating that the information provided enabled 80% of callers to
decide what to do next. An estimated £13 million gross has been saved to
the taxpayer as a consequence of callers having a clearer picture of their
legal rights and responsibilities.

e Received two and a half million visits to Acas’ website.11?

e Conciliated in almost 1,000 collective disputes, including involvement in all
large-scale disputes, as well as delivering 200 workplace projects to
improve employment relations. Significant savings are made 10 the
economy by Acas’ successful intervention in disputes where industrial
action is threatened.

+ Conciliated in around 160,000 actual and potential tribunal claims, including
tens of thousands of potential local authority equal pay claims, saving over
70% of patential Tribunal Hearing days and around £25 million net to the
taxpayer as a consequence of the resolutions it brokered in such cases
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e Delivered 3,000 training sessions on employment issues, 81% of those
attending feeling they could prevent problems as a result of Acas training.

« Trained more than 200 delegates to operate a mediation service in their
own workplaces, thereby reducing the likelihood of grievances proceeding
further.

2.263 Eurther details can be found in Acas’ Annual Report.'!

Other significant activities

Dispute resolution

2264 On 7 December 20086, the Secretary of State announced that Michael
Gibbons would undertake an independent review of Government support for
resolving disputes in the workplace and consider options for simplifying all aspects
of employment dispute resclution, to make the system work better for employers
and employees. The Gibbons Review and a consultation on the way forward were
both published on 21 March this year, alongside the Budget.!'? The Gibbons
Review was based on evidence from a wide range of interested parties, including
the CBI. EEF and TUC. The Government is committed to piloting any new approach
to dispute resolution that follows the consultation.

National Minimum Wage (NMW)

2265 On 1 October 2006 the main adult rate for werkers aged 22 and over rose to
£5.35 an hour; the 18-21 year old rate rose to £4.45, and the 16-17 year old rate
rose to £3.30 per hour. The Government also abolished the Older Workers
Development Rate and extended the 12 months exemption to all apprentices, to
comply with the age strand of the Employment Directive. The national minimum
wage communication strategy for 2006-07 was based around this increase in rates.
A national campaign started in September 2006 included, in particular, reaching out
to ethnic minorities, women, the targeted childcare sector and young workers.

2.267 In 2005 the Government announced a
strategy of targeted enforcement of the NMW
T in the low paying sectors. For 2006-07 the
B et e mtvics Department selected the childcare sector.
Mabnan On 9 January 2007 the Department
announced a new penalties policy. At current
rates, a typical penalty for failing to comply
with an enforcement notice will be over £200
per worker. The Department has also been
moving forward on its criminal prosecutions
strategy.

“Know Your Rights™ leaffet on National Minimum

Wage for Polish workers (also available for
winkers frovm ofhar courtifies)

82
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Figure 2,20 National Minimum Wage enforcemeant activity April 2008 to January 2007

Skills Strategy

2.267 The Government has accepted the ambition for world class skills for the UK
advocated by Lord Leitch in his review of skills (published in December 2006).713
The Department will continue to play a full role in taking forward the skills agenda
with DFES and key partners, so that the UK has the necessary skills to be
competitive in the global economy.

2.268 The Department has co-sponsored the Skills for Business Network with
DIES and the Devaolved Administrations. The Network comprises of 25 employer-
led Sectar Skills Councils {SSCs) who identify the skills priorities in their industry
sectors. Each SSC is producing a Sector Skills Agreement (SSA) containing details
of these skills issues and proposed solutions. Four SSCs published their SSAs in
2005-086, a further six published theirs in 2006-07, and the remaining 15 will publish
by the end of 2007.

2.269 The Department has been involved in the development of National Skills
Academies for Manufacturing (see also page 80), Financial Services, Construction
and Food and Drink processing. A further eight are in business planning.

2.270 The Department has worked with other departments (inciuding the Home
Office, Treasury, FCO and DWP) so that the UK has in place a managed migration
regime that meets the needs of the economy, whilst providing the necessary
safeguards on illegal working and settlement.

Business plan objective: corporate and insolvency activity framework

2.271 The Department aims to promote and deliver an effective framewaork for
corporate and insolvency activity, giving confidence to investors and business.

2.272 The Department, together with its agencies Companies House and The
Insolvency Service, has a key part to play in ensuring that the UK's overall
framework for business activity supports productivity, enterprise and the creation
of long-term shareholder value. This framework needs to strike a balance between
encouraging enterprise and protecting investors and others; and between
minimising regulatory burdens and ensuring there are adequate systems for
ensuring transparency, compliance and enforcement.

2.273 One of the major changes the Department has made is in reforming and
simplifying the company law framewaork in the new Companies Act 2006.
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2.284 Please refer to the Annual Report of Companies House for further details.”?

The Insolvency Service

2.285 The Insolvency Service is responsible for matters relating to corporate and
individual insolvency. Its principal functions are: preliminary investigation and
administration of compulsory insolvency and acting as interim receiver and
provisional liquidator in public interest cases; acting as trustee/liquidator in
compulsory insolvencies where no private sector practitioner is appointed;
reporting criminal offences in compulsory insolvencies and taking disqualification
proceedings against any unfit directors of failed companies; authorisation and
regulation of private sector insolvency practitioners; provision of banking and
investment services for bankruptcies and liquidations; and policy advice to
Ministers on insolvency issues.

2,286 The Insolvency Service operates under a net control regime, under which the
costs of case administration are met from fees. The Service is funded by the
Department in respect of its work on investigation and enforcement and the
development of insolvency policy. As of 1 April 2006 the Department’s Companies
Investigation Branch transferred to The Service and this work is also funded by the
Department. The Service also receives funding by HM Revenue and Customs to
assess and pay statutory entitlement to redundancy payments when an employer
cannot or will not pay its employees.

2287 Please refer to the Annual Report of the Insolvency Service for further
details, '8

Figure 2,21 Redundancy payments




:. l Figure 2.22 Expenditure on ensuring fair markets (€ million)

Ensuring fair markets

Notes:

» The total spend aiven here for each business plan objective corresponds with the total of the Resource DEL,
Resource AME and Capital DEL spend given in tables 2 and 3 in section 6.3,

= Tha figuras shown as 200708 plans reflect the orginal OT1 budgets. These will be allocated to its successor
“departmants created in June 2007 (BERR and DIUS, see section 1.1} in due course.
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Section 2.7
Securing sustainable energy

s

Introduction

2,288 The Government's approach has been successful in moving the UK towards
its energy goals, but significant challenges remain. While the UK remains ane of
the few countries on track to meet and go beyond its commitments. under the
Kyoto agreement, the 2010 carbon reduction target is very challenging. There are
growing concerns about diversity of supply as North Sea oil and gas production
declines and existing coal and nuclear generating plants close down. Meanwhile,
global demand for fossil fuels is increasing, and there is no agreement on
concerted international action on greenhouse gases when the Kyoto agreement
expires in 2012,

2.289 To address these continuing challenges, the Government set out its strategy
in “Meeting the Energy Challenge”, published in May 2007. It outlined international
and domestic action to address the twin challenges of:

e tackling climate change by reducing carbon dioxide emissions both within
the UK and abroad: and

e ensuring secure, clean and affordable energy as we become increasingly
dependent on imported fuel.
2.290 The White Paper addresses issues of demand and supply covering electricity,

heat and transport. It contains proposals resulting in:

« carbon savings of between 23 and 33 million tonnas of carbon (MtC) in
2020 (including the effect of EU Emissions Trading);
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SR04 PSA 4 - Energy Assessment of progress:
set out by sub-target below

“Lead work to deliver the goals of energy policy:

lil Reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 12.5% from 1990 levels in line with
our Kyotoe commitment and to move towards a 20% reduction in carbon
dioxide emissions below 1990 levels by 2010, through measures including
energy efficiency and renewables. Joint with the Department for

Environment. Food and Rural Affairs and Department for Transport;
{ii} Maintain the reliability of energy supplies;

(iii)Eliminate fuel poverty in vulnerable households in England by 2010 in line
with the Government's Fuel Poverty Strategy objective. Joint with the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs;

{iviEnsure the UK remains in the top three most competitive energy markets
in the EU and G7."

2.292 The Government remains on course to deliver on the security of supply and
competitiveness targets, and on the greenhouse gas component of the climate
change target. Meeting the carbon dioxide emissions and fuel poverty targats,
however, remains extremely challenging.

Action to address slippage

“Meeting the Energy Challenge”''® outlines an ambitious, evidence-based
package of measures, building on the proposals and conclusions in our
2006 Energy Review.?® The measures it contains will result in:

s carbon savings of between 23 and 33 million tonnes of carbon (MtC)
in 2020 {including the effect of EU Emissions Trading);

e electricity consumption being 8-15% lower in 2020 and gas
consumption up to 15 billion cubic metres lower (roughly 13% of
projected demand);

s an improvement in the energy efficiency of our economy by around
10% between now and 2020, over and above the 25% improvement |
we already expect over that period; and

s new initiatives to taking around 200,000 households in the UK out of
fuel poverty.

The newly created Office of Climate Change will co-ordinate climate
change activity across Government to provide a shared resource for
analysis and development of climate change policy and strategy, and will

be a key resource to help achieve the challenging targets set to reduce
carbon dioxide emissions.




Socuring sustainable anargy

ﬁlﬂngalda the White Papar, a consultation dncumam “The Role of
‘Nuclear Power in a Low Carbon UK Economy” was also published, to
allow for a decision before the end of 2007 whether it is in the public
irﬂﬁﬁﬁtfnr nqmpan[as to have the option for new nuclear build available
‘fﬂr investment decisions. 2!

THEU heads of government at the Spring Council in March 2007 agreed
| anew strategy to address issues ‘around climate change and energy
security. Influenced by the UK, these included commitments to
*ﬁmﬂna’ﬁﬁv& energy markets and cuts in greenhouse emissions, and a
pﬁntral role for the EU Emissions Trading Scheme as the potential basis
for a global carbon market. The agreement included targets to 2020 for

| 'Eﬂ-ﬂﬂ% reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and a 20% share of

| energy from renewables.

Current position: ON COURSE

l 2.293 The UK remains on track to meet its Kyoto Protocol target to reduce
‘greenhouse gas emissions by 12.5% below base year (1990} levels by 2008-2012.
Latest provisional estimates show that total UK greenhouse gas emissions in 2006
} had fallen by 15% below 1990 levels Latest projections suggest that by 2010,

greenhouse gas emissions will be 23.6% below 1990 levels, around double our
Kyoto target.
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2.294 |n addition to its Kyoto commitment, the UK alse has a domestic goal of
reducing its carbon dioxide emissions (as opposed to all greenhouse gases) by
20% below 1980 base levels by 2010. Progress towards the UK's domestic goal is
proving more challenging. Latest projections suggest that, taking into account the
impact of the EU Emissions Trading Scheme (ETS) and other measures in the
Climate Change Programme,'2* the UK will have reduced CO, emissions by around
16% below 1990 levels by 2010, saving 12 million tonnes of carbon per annum by

2010 compared with 1990.

Factors affecting performance

2.295 The UK's CO, emissions fell by about 5%
between 1930 and 2006 based on latest
provisional estimates. However, higher than
anticipated levels of economic growth and the
recant rise in global energy prices, which has
alterad the relative prices of coal and gas n
favour of coal-fired generation, have led to
increases in our CO, BMISSIONS IN racent years,
The Govermment used the new Climate Change
Programme Review and the recent Energy
Raeview to assass both the impact of existing
policies and the potential contribution of new
policy optians, culminating in the 2007 White

raper

2296 The largest single potential contributor ta
emissions reductions s the EU Emissions
Trading Scheme (ETS), the warld's most
significant step n establishing a carbon price.
The EU heads of government recently reaffirmed
their commitment 1o the scheme: at the 2007
Spring Council. A key step in building UK and EU
CONSENsUS on emissions trading 15 the UK
Manifesto on the EL ETS3, launched in March
2007 124 The Government published the
approved Mational Allocation Plan for Phase || of
the scheme o the Decamber 2006 deadline and
it was accepted unchanged by the EU. The Plan
sets out the annual allocations for individual
installations covered by the scheme for the years
2008-2012 and will deliver savings of 20MtCO,
each year against projected business-as-usual
emissions. The UK's results for the first vear of
the EU ETS (2005) showed axcellent
comphance, and the European Commission
results show that the UK set ene of the mosl
chalianging limits on carbon emissions among all
Member Statas

2,297 The Draft Ciimate Change Bill, 12
published in March 2007, sef out the

Government's proposed long term framewaork for
tackling climate change including putting into
statute our long-term goal to achieve a 0%
reduction in CO, emissions, and a requirement
for Governmant 1o report at least every five
vaars on current and predicied impacts of
climate change and on its proposals and poliey
for adapting 1o climate change.

2.298 Renewable energy is one of the key
means to achieve carbon savings, and this area
has continued to grow — in Februany 2007, the
UK became one of only sight countries around
the world to have installed over 2GW of wind
capacity, and at March 2007 the UK had some
2,041 MW of installed onshore and offshona
wind capacity, Measures in the Energy White
Paper should enable us to get 15% of our
alectricity genaration from renewables by 2015
by increasing the level of the Renewables
Obligation, ensuring-2 boast to investor
confidence, and confirming the introduction of
banding. & eonsultation on specific bands, and
other proposals to strengthen and medify the
RO was published alongside the White Paper, 1%
The EU has also set itself an ambitious goal that
20% of the EU's energy (heat, transport and
elegtricity) should come from renewables by
2020, The Commission has been asked 1o bring
forward detailed proposals = including for each
Member State’s contribution to the larget — by
the end of this year, After a decision has baan
reached on our contribution 1o the target, the
Dapartrment will bring forward appropriate
measures to deliver the necessary increase in
renewable energy. In the meantima, tha
measures and market framework set out in tha
Energy White Paper allow us to make significant
progress on this important agenda.

Footnotes refer to annex B.4




Secunng sustanabla energy

One of the UK's onshore windfarms, Cafn Croes (Wales)

~ SR04 PSA 4 (ii) Security of supply

Current position: ON COURSE

2.299 "Meeting the Energy Challenge” included measures to address the UK's
increasing reliance on imported oil and gas as well as the need for private sector
investment in gas infrastructure, power stations and electricity networks, These
included maximising economic production from our domestic fossil fuel reserves;
promoting effective and transparent international energy markets; improving the
UK investment framewaork through better market information and planning reforms.

2.300 Our energy market is continuing to bring forward significant investment in
new infrastructure. Between 2006 and 2008 additional gas import capacity
equivalent to about 70% of Britain's annual gas consumption will come on stream.
On the electricity side, several generating companies have announced plans for the
construction of additional capacity to meet future demand as existing capacity
reaches the end of its life.

2.301 Ofgem have now published'?” the first stage of National Grid's Winter
Consultation for 2007 - 2008. While they emphasise that there is no room for
complacency, significant new investment in infrastructure bringing gas into Great
Britain leaves the position generally looking more comfortable than last year.
However, the ever increasing interlinkage between UK and international gas
markets means that supply shocks overseas can be expected 10 be reflected in
gas availability and prices here.

Factors affecting performance

2.302 In the long term, &8s a result of declining s new infrastructure and impert capacity not
UK Continental Sheif production, the LIK will being fully utilised as a result of

move to a large and growing import requirameant unicompetitive practices in suppher markets,
by the end of the decade, and new challenges and

amearge such as, _
* the possibility that new invesiment in

* |onger supply chains, some through less ovarseas and domestic infrastructure is not
stable countries or uncompetitive markets; made n time to.meat demand
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2303 The Governmeni response to the
consultation: “the Effectiveness of Current Gas
Security of Supply Arrangements” was published
alongside the May 2007 White Paper'®
Following consideration of responses and
supporting analysis, the Government, as
announcad in the White Paper, will encourage

SR04 PSA 4 (iii) Fuel poverty

Current position: SLIPPAGE

anergy efficiency, iImprove information
arrangements and industry engagemaeant,
promote open and competitive markets
internationally, improve the planning and
licensing regimes for gas infrastructure projects
and improve amergency planning arrangements,

2.304 Progress against the Government's fuel poverty targets is published in an
annual report {the UK Fuel Poverty Strategy fourth Annual Progress Report,
published June 2006). “Meeting the Energy Challenge” outlined additional
measures to better target assistance, offer more benefit entitlement checks, and
encourage more companies to provide programmes of assistance for vulnerable

customers.

2305 The number of households in fuel poverty in 2004 remained the same as
2003, down from 5.1 million in 1996 to 1.2 million households in England, with

1.0 million of those being vulnerable households. The UK-wide figure fell between
1996 and 2004 from 6.5 million to 2 million, with vulnerable households in fuel
poverty falling from 5 million to 1.5 million. Analysis of the effects of fuel prices
and incomes, excluding energy efficiency improvements, suggests that the total
number of vulnerable households in fuel poverty is likely to rise, by around 1 million
vulnerable households in England between 2004 and 2006 with proportional

increases in the Devolved Administrations.

Factors affecting performance

2.306 The Depantment shares responsibility
with Defra for this element of the PSA target.
Strategies to and fuel poverty depend ultimately
on improving housing standards and raising
incomes, policies that have been given priority,
The main policy levers curmently used include
benefits and tax credits. Winter Fuel Payments,
the Warm Front programmae, the Energy
Efficiency Commitment and the Decent Homes
standard. These are the responsibility of a
number of Dapartments, including DWP CLG
and Defra. Whilst good progress has been made,
recant energy price increases threaten our abality
to meet Government targeis on fuel poverty,

2,307 The White Paper sets out further detail of
the continuing activity to tackle fusi poverty,

A full examination of the policy framewaork is
curranthy underway, and while the policies and
measures outlined in the White Paper will take a
further 200,000 households out of fusl poverty
by 2010, the long-term way forward will depend
on the conclusions drawn after the policy review.
Next steps will be set out in the UK Fuel Poverty
Strategy Fifth Annual Progress Report in the
summear 2007,

Quality of data systems is discussed in annex A.1




Current position: ON COURSE

Secunng susiainable enargy

04 PSA 4 (iv) Energy market competitiveness

2.308 Despite rising domestic energy prices and the international impacts of the
increase in underlying fossil fuel prices, electricity and gas markets in the UK
remain amongst the most competitive in the EU on both industrial and domestic
prices. The latest OXERA report,'?® published in October 2006 and based on
preliminary data for 2005, confirms the number one ranking for the
competitiveness of the UK's energy market and the ranking of both gas and
electricity markets individually in first position.

2.309 Energy prices have generally increased in the year to Q1 2007, with
domestic electricity prices, including VAT, rising by 21% in real terms. Domestic
gas prices, including VAT, rose by 34% in real terms over the same period. Average
industrial electricity prices including the Climate Change Levy (CCL) rose by 15%,
though industrial gas prices including CCL fell by 15%, and average coal prices
decreased by 7%, in real terms, in the year to 04 2006.

2.310 Estimates for January 2007 show that prices in the UK including taxes were
below the EU average (median) for domestic electricity and were below the
average for domestic gas consumers. All six major domestic suppliers have
announced reductions in domestic gas and electricity tariffs to take effect in spring

or early surmmer 2007.

2.311 For industry, estimated prices in January 2007 showed that electricity and
gas prices were above the EU average for all consumers. Historically, prices to
industrial users have been below the EU average, and right up to October 2005
industrial prices were no higher than the EU average, except for the very largest

energy consumers.

Factors affecting performance

2312 Increases in oil prices are the main factor
behind rising gas prices as tha two are often
contraciually linked. UK wholesale gas prices
have been more volatile and higher over the last
twio years bacause of the historcally tight
supply/demand balance over the winters.
Increases in the price of pas affect slectnoity
prices as gas is an important part of the UK
generation mix. Electricity prices have also risen
as a result of higher intermational coal prices, the
recavary of wholesale electricity prices from
unsustainably low levels and the introduction of
the EU Emissions Trading scheme in 2008,

2,313 The Governmaent strateqy for gas markets
aims 1o help all gas consumers by working
towards full enargy market liberalisation in the
EU, and improving the workings of the market -
supporting the European Commission in their

effarts 1o enforce the energy liberalisation
legislation and investigate the operation of
enaergy markets across the EU, As the energy
rnarkel in Europe moves toward full iberatisation
there will be further increases m competitiva
pressure in the UK and Europe.

2 314 The main factor behind higher ofl pnces
over the past few years has been strong giobal
oil demand growth driven by robust economic
growth — particularly China and the US. This has
eroded the cushion of global spare ol production
capacity and upgrading capacity in the refining
sactor, This lack of spare capacity has lett the
miarket lass able to cope with supply distuptions
and axacerbated markel concerns about
cantinuity of supply.
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Business plan objective: sustainability and the environment

2.315 The reduction of carbon emissions is a cornerstone of the Government’s
energy policy, as confirmed in the White Paper “Meeting the Energy Challenge”
published in May 2007. The aim of this cbjective is to promote sustainability,
through the delivery of the low carbon aims of the Energy White Paper, at least
cost to the UK economy — through promoting, nationally and internationally, market
mechanisms aimed at delivering climate change goals; the development and
application of low carbon technologies and the regulation of the offshore energy
industries.

Plans for 2006-07  Progress April 2006 - May 2007

Reduce greenhouse gas  2.316 As regards domestic initiatives, please refer to page 90 above
emissions by 12.5% from (PSA 4.

:,;ﬁ:;:a;:;;m i International

commitment, and move 2,317 The UK has already taken a strong lead internationally on climate
towards a 20% reduction change and the progress made in cutting our greenhouse gas emissions
in carion. dioxie at the same time as maintaining economic growth makes us an
emissions from 1990 exemplar 10 other countries. Important progress was made on climate
levels by 2010, and & change under the UK G8 and EU Presidencies in 2005 and this

ks ol momentum continued in 2006. A number of key initiatives and themes
carbon dioxide @missions  were launched at the Gleneagles Dialogue ministerial meeting in

oy 60% by 2080, through  Monterrey in October 2006:

measures including . e g
energy efficiency and ¢ a joint UK-South Afnican approach to finding alternative international

energy, working with the o 5 101t UK-Mexico-Spain-Development Bank study testing the
Department for applicability of the World Bank Energy Investment Framework to
Environment, Food, and renewables projects;

Rural Affars (Defra) and .

the Department for * a European Commission energy efficiency conference to explore the
Transpart (DFT) scope for a global agreement; and

* widespread agreement on the vital importance of developing and
deploying carbon capture and sequestration.

2,318 Germany will host the next Gleneagles Dialogue ministerial
meating in Septembear 2007,

2.319 A Climate Change Communication was published by the EC in
January, putting Europe in the forefront of global leadership on energy.
and climate change, culminating in the conclusions made &t the Spring
Council in March 2007 including an independent EU commitment to
achieve at least a 20% reduction of greenhouse gas emissions by 2020.

826
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Plans for 2006-07




Securing sustainable enegy

Business plan objective: security of energy supply ——

2.334 "Meeting the Energy Challenge” addressed two main security of supply

gy

challenges: the increasing reliance on imports of oil and gas; and the need for Eﬁ‘ﬁ
=2 a

substantial and timely private sector investment over the next two decades in gas E:n

infrastructure, power stations, and electricity networks.

Plans for 2006-07 Progress April 2006 - May 2007

Support well-functioning  2.335 See also PSA 4. ipage 93).
UK energy markets to
ensure secure,
sustainable, affordable 2336 The Department has been working closely with Qfgem, National
energy through working  Grid and business to ensure early action is taken to maximise gas and
with National Grid, electricity supplies, especially for the winter, and 1o ensure good
CfGEM, Energywatch communications with industry, The Department’s discussions with the

Enargy markets

=7
[y

T
i

o
=4
s
-]
it
A=

and industry to mainain  Energy Intensive Users Group, Ofgemn, Mational Grid and other groups (.
effective regulatory and  have helped us to focus efforts on maximising gas and electricity | §
consumer protection supplies, improving the operation of the market, encouraging demand- EG
regimes, and support and  side response and pursuing fair access 1o markets across Eurcpe. §j
invash'r:g:n i i 2.337 The Business Energy Forum was established mid-2006 and met ; g
infrastructure three times in tha latter half of that year. Jointly chaired by the Secretary

of Staie and the Director General of the CBI, it enables discussion of
strategic energy issues of concern to industry, with a particular focus on
winter energy supplies and price impacts, and seeks to ensure that
accurate and timely information s available to businesses.

T
Pages
I

Infrastructure

2.338 The Government also seeks to facilitate the market delivery of
new infrastructure 1o import ol and gas. A Parliamentary Statement of
Meed was tabled on 16 May 2006 setting out the contaxt for the need
for additional gas supply infrastructure — import facilities, storage and
pipelines. This year has seen significant new import infrastructure
{pipelines and LNG facilities| being delivered by the private sectar. The
most immediate projects are 8 further enhancement to the import
capacity of the Bacton-Zeebrugge interconnector completed ahead of
schedule in October 2008, the construction of the Langeled pipeline
from Nonway (which started flowing gas on 1 October 2008}, the BEL
{Bacton — Balgzand) pipeling from the Netherands, commissionad on
1 Decernber 2006, and the Teesside LNG (Liquefied Natural Gas)
impartation project which recaived its first cargo in February 2007

Introduction to
finances

Pages 168169

Pages 190-263

aocounts

Resource

i

2.339 "Mesting the Energy Challenge” set oul arrangements to publish

b -]

a new Energy Markets Outiook 10 provide information on key drivers of E
energy supply and scenaric-based analysis of the future demand-supply "
balance. §E
8%
2
g




Plans for 2006-07 Progress April 2006 - May 2007







Dapnrtmant almﬂlmmrfuﬁm.m’l Report and Accounts 2006-07

Figure 2.24 Expenditure on secure sustainable energy (€ million)

MNotes:

s Tha total spend given here for each business plan objective corrasponds with the total of the Resource DEL
Resource AME and Capital DEL spend given i 1ables 2 and 3 in section 6.3,

* The figures shown as 2007-08 plans reflect the onginal DTI budgets. These will be allocated 1o IS SUCCessor
departments created in Jume 2007 (BERR and DIUS, sea section 1.1) in due course:

\
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Key achievements 2006-07

' » Nuclear Decommissioning Authority on target to continue to achieve
annual 2% efficiency gains (see page 105)

s £2 billion paid in compensation to claimants under the COPD coal
health scheme, with 420,000 claims (out of 592,000) having been
settled (see page 109)

e More than 140,000 claims settled in full under the Vibration White
' Finger (VWF) compensation scheme (out of a total of 170,000) with a
total of £1.4 billion having been paid in compensation (see page 109)

« G8 Partnership against WMD: completion to time and to cost of the
. £21 million nuclear facility at Atomflot, Murmansk (to secure some
three tonnes of highly enriched nuclear fuel for up to 50 years) -
see page 110

e £917 million increase in value of six Shareholder Executive businesses
|see page 108)

« Finalisation of new financing framework for the Royal Mail letters
business (see page 106)

'« Announcement of investment package of up to £1.7 billion of funding
for the Post Office network (see page 107)

PSA 11 - Nuclear Decommissioning Authority
Managing Government assets and liabilities

Muclear security and safety




Managing Govaernment assets and liabilifies

SR04 PSA 11 Assessment of progress: not yet assessed

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority

“Reduce the civil nuclear liability by 10% by 2010, and establish a safe,
innovative and dynamic market for nuclear cleanup by delivering annual 2%
efficiency gains from 2006-07; and ensuring successful competitions have
been completed for the management of at least 50% of UK nuclear sites by
end 2008."

2.357 The Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) was established on 1 April
2005 under the Energy Act 2004. The NDA is charged with cleaning up the UK's
historic civil nuclear legacy at its sites safely, securely, cost effectively and in a
manner that safeguards the environment for this and future generations. The NDA
has developed the first ever strategy for tackling the legacy,'#* The programme 1S
challenging and long term (over a hundred years). Civil liabilities were estimated by
the NDA at £62.7 billion (undiscounted) and £30.6 billion (discounted) as of 31
March 2006,

2.358 The NDA has a statutory duty to provide suppert to communities near its
sites and promote activities that benefit the social and economic lives of the
communities.

2.359 The NDA is now a key player in the nuclear industry and i1s respected as an
open and transparent organisation deploying innovation and engineering
excellence.

Current position

2360 The PSA applies to the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA). The PSA
requires the MDA to:

e from 2006-07 deliver efficiency gains of 2% by means of a dynamic
market in nuclear clean up;

e by 2008 - ensure successful competition of 50% of NDA sites; and

e by 2010 - reduce civil nuclear liability by 10%,

2.361 The PSA target is to be redrawn as part of the CSR 07 process in order to
better reflect the reality of the NDA's operations.

2.362 Only one of the three elements of the PSA target is active - that for
efficiency gains of 2% per annum with effect from 1 April 2006. The NDA planned
and achieved a 2% efficiency gain twelve months early as demonstrated by end
year audited results for 2005-06. The NDA is reporting that it is on target this year
and predicts the efficiency gains at the end of the 2006-07 financial year will be
about £40 million out of a total NDA budget of £2.2 billion

2.363 The NDA has set out its proposals for achieving site competitions in its
approved strategy.'2% This aspect of the target does not become active until 2008,
Its relevance will be considered as part of the proposed review of the PSA.
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2.364 A key task for the NDA is to determine the final cost of the historic civil
nuclear liability {legacy). The NDA is undertaking this by means of a management
100l known as the Life Time Plan (LTP) which replaces the earlier systems in place
prior to its set up. The annual LTP process sets out the complete range of activities
that will need to be undertaken at each of the NDA's sites to bring them to their
proposed end states. This can be said to represent the cost of the NDA's mission
(i.e. its duties and responsibilities, including the running of its commercial
operations). The data from individual sites’ LTPs is combined to provide a national
figure for the historic liability. The NDA is working to deliver a definitive liability
figure by March 2008. The legacy should eventually be less than this if the NDA
can succeed in driving it down through the introduction of competition in site clean
up. This aspect of the PSA will also be subject to review.

2.365 The NDA manages efficiency gains through the fee mechanism in its
contracts for site clean up. Contractors are required to deliver 7% efficiencies in
order to access 5% fee bonus.

Business plan objective: managing Government assets and liabilities

2.366 The Department’s challenge is to deliver safe, economic and efficient
management of Departmental (and, where relevant, Government) assets and
liabilities. The Shareholder Executive's mission is to work with Government
Departments and management teams to improve fundamentally the Government’s
performance as a shareholder and to provide a source of corporate finance
expertise within government.

2.367 The National Audit Office published its report “The Shareholder Executive
and Public Sector Businesses™ on 28 February 2007.7% The NAO concluded that
the Shareholder Executive provides value for money and has improved the way in
which the Government acts as a shareholder.

Royal Mail

2.368 The Department finalised a new financing framework for the Royal Mail
letters business at the end of the year. The framework, which the Secretary of
State confirmed on 26 March 2007 via written statement to Parliament, provides
Royal Mail with the financial freedom to manage its pensions deficit and to invest
to improve performance and efficiency. This is a vital package of support from the
Government for the business in a time when it faces the difficult challenges of
declining mail volumes, increasing competition, management of its large pension
deficit and the need to modernise and transform its operations to secure the
efficiency savings required under the latest regulatory settlement. The Government

has provided the financial framework for Royal Mail that it needs to secure its
future success.

2.369 The agreed package comprises loan facilities to be provided by the National
Loans Fund of £900 million, replacing and increasing the package agreed in 2002,
and a further shareholder loan facility of £300 million to provide the company with
adequate financial headroom. The package also includes the transfer of £850
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million of reserves held by Royal Mail into an escrow account to support its
pension fund. All financing will be provided on commercial terms.

The Post Office

2370 On 14 December 2006 the Department launched a 12-week national
consultation (administered by the Shareholder Executive) on proposals for the
future of the Post Office network. The consultation closed on 8 March 2007 having
attracted some 2,500 responsas. The Department published its response
document on 17 May 2007, after the period covered by this report. Publication was
coupled with the Secretary of State’s announcement of a package of funding worth
up to £1.7 billion up to 2011 for the Post Office network, subject to EC State Aid
clearance, with investment, stronger protections for local communities and more
Qutreach sarvices very much at its heart.'??

2.371 Post offices play an important social and economic role in the communities
they serve, but with widespread acceptance that the current size of the network
is unsustainable (with losses rising to £4 million every week), the package of
investrnent demonstrates the Government's commitment to maintaining a national
network allowing people to have reasonable access across the whole country.

The package will enable Post Office Ltd to strategically reshape the network to
place it on a stable footing and includes the compensated closure of a maximum
of 2 500 branches, partly offset by 500 new Outreach sites and the introduction

of minimum access criteria, as well as up to £150 million a year support for the
social network.

Customeads & the Posr Office

Corporate Finance

2372 In this role over the last year, the Shareholder Executive continued to lead
Government involvement in Bombardier Aerospace (an application for launch
investment in connection with the proposed C Series aircraft] and Airbus (also an
application for launch investment'3 in connection with the A350).

1T
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Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07
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Business plan objective: nuclear security and safety

2.385 The Department works to ensure nuclear security and safety, through
supervisory and regulatory activities to protect the public and international safety.
Substantial technical assistance is also given to Former Soviet Union and East
European countries in addressing nuclear legacy issues, to reduce the global threat
nosed by the potential spread of weapons and materials of mass destruction.

Plans for 2006-07  Progress in 2006-07

Contribute to meeting the Non-proliferation
UK’s international non-
prodiferation obligations
while minimising the

2 386 The UK has continued to cooperate fully with the International
Atomic Energy Agancy (IAEA) and European Commigsion on the
application of nuclear safequards to the UK, and with the Organisation

Swigt?ﬂt:: tinclading for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons (OPCW) on the application of
.DEHEES' the Chemicals Weapons Convantion 1o the UK Chamical Industry.

Reporting requirements to all organisations have been met in full, and on
time. The Department has played a major part in the development of
new approaches 10 inspections in all organisations, and industry and:
acadermnia have been kept informed.

2.387 The nuclear safequards function was moved from the Depariment
to the Health and Safety Executive as of 1 April 2007,

Builtfing & fesntre) intarim SNF stors st Atomifor, Murmansk, NW Russis

Dativer the UK Muclear 2,388 The Department manages, 'on behalf of the Governmeant. a
Component of tha GB £32.2 million annual programme to address nuctear cold war legacy

Global Parinership izsues in the Former Soviet Union (FSU). The programme |s part of a GB

Against the Spread of initiative to reduce the global threat posed by the spread of weapons and
Weapons and Materlals  materials of mass destruction, and the Prime Minister has committed up
of Mass Dastruction to £500 million to this work over the period 2003-13.

2.389 The UK has put in place a more effective and efficient framework to
ensure the Government can respond to new profiferation threats that may
arise in the future. As pan of this, a Ministenal Board has been established,
responsible for providing strategic direction to ensure all projects continue fo
meet the Govemment's WD counter-proliferation objectives.
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S —
r_Figurn 2.25 Expenditure on managing Government assets and liabilities (£ million) |

» Under the Energy Act 2004, the NDA have taken on responsibility for expenditure on the Civil Nuclear Legacy,
and from 2005-06 these liabdities will feature on the NDA Balance sheet |

* Figures for Post Office include expenditure between 2003-04 and 2005-06 on Post Office hd's Urban
Ragenaration Programmea

» See page 102 for spend on nuclear security and safaty. |

» The total spend givan hare fior each business plan chjective correspands with the total of the Resource DEL |
Resource AME and Capital DEL spand given in tables 2 and 3 m section 6.3,

» The figures shown as 2007-08 plans reflect the onginal DTI budgets. Thesa will be allocated to its successor
departmants created in June 2007 (BERR and DIUS, see section 1.1} in due course.
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Section 3.1

Ministers and governance

Y/

3.1

Ministers

3.2

This section lists the Department’s Ministers who served during the
reporting year and until 27 June 2007 when the Department was replaced (see
section 1.1). It also details the Department’s governance arrangements.

The Rt.Hon. Alistair Darling MP succeeded the Rt.Hon. Alan Johnson MP as

Secretary of State of the Department in May 2006. At this time a number of other
Ministerial changes took place, and there were further changes in November 2006
when Lord Sainsbury left the Government. From MNovember 2006 to June 2007 the

teamn was as follows.

ViimisTernal

Secretary of Siate for Trade and Industry

The Rt Hon Alistair Darling, MP
(from 5 May 2008)

Minister of Stata for Industry and the Regions

The Rt Hon Margaret Hodge MBE, MP

(from S May 2006}

Minister of State for Trade, Investment and Foreign Affairs

The Rt Hon lan MoCartney, MP
{from 5 May 2006)

Mirister of Stare for Science and Innovation

Malcolm Wicks, MP
{from 13 Movermber 2006)

Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for Employrment
Relations and Postal Sernvices Minister for London

Jim Fitzpatnck, MP
itrom 5 May 2006

Parliamentary Uinder-Secrétary of State for Enargy

3.3

Secretary of State for Trade and Industry (1o 4 May 2006)

Lord Truscott
tfrom 13 Novembear 2006}

The Rt Hon Alan Johnsan, MP

In addition, the following also held Ministerial responsibility during 2006-07:

Minister for Industry and the Regions
{to 4 May 2006)

The Rt Hon Alun Michasl, MP

Minister for Trade, Investment and Foreign Affairs
fto 4 May 2006]

lan Pearson, MP

Parfiamentary Under-Secretary of State for Competitiveness
{to 4 May 2006}

Barry Gardiner, MP

Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for Women and
Equality (1o 4 May 2006

Meg Munn, MP

Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for Science and
Innavation (1o9 November 20086

Lord Sainsbury of Turvilie

Farliamentary Under-Secretary of State for Employrment
Ralations and Consurners Affairs
o 4 May 2006)

Gerry Sutcliffe, MP
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39 The Members of the Management Board as at 31 March 2007 were:

Committees

3.10 The Executive Committee makes decisions on strategic, Department-wide
internal management issues. This includes:

® broad decisions on resource allocation;
® monitoring organisation capability;

¢ internal management issues that require explicit endorsement by
Directors-General; and

® SCS performance and development, and pay of senior civil service
(Committee convenes as SCS Performance and Development Committes).

3.11 In order to discharge these responsibilities the Committee met monthly in.
2006-07 except August.
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r Ministers and governance

3.12 The members of the Executive Committee as at 31 March 2007 were:

3.13 The purpose of the Operating Committee (previously named “Resources
Committee”) is to decide on the Department’s processes and resources relating to
people, planning, financial management, communication, project management, IT
and property:
e looking at the Department’s internal business planning enabler objectives
(see saction 3.4 below for performance during 2006-07), and to

s co-ordinate the implementation of change and efficiency initiatives in
respect of these “enabler functions”.

3.14 In order to discharge these responsibilities the Committee met monthly
{except August) during the financial year 2006-07.

".*'ﬁim not attend when convened as SCS Performance and Development Committee
WMHECE mmdmlm
mnmwmadas SCS Performance and Development Committee
113
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3.15 The members of the Operating Commitiee as of 31 March 2007 and during
the year were:

3.16 The Audit and Risk Committee's purpose is to support the Permanent
Secretary in his role as Accounting Officer for the Department by promoting
confidence in the Department’s governance, overseeing the work of the internal
and external auditors and reviewing the annual financial statements before
submission to the Management Board. In order to discharge these responsibilities
the Committee met five times in 2006-07. sl R

3.17 The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be found at
www.dti.gov.uk/about/strategy-objectives/mow-we-work/senior-
committees/page18199.html
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Ministers and governance

3.18 Membership of the Audit and Risk Committee as at 31 March 2007 was:

Crawford Gillies

Mark Gibson

Anthony Inglese

Claire Durkin

I_Dn*m at Surrey and Borders Partnership NHS Trust and formery
partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers)

{to 31 Dacember 2006

{Deputy Chair of the Food Standards Agency, Chair of
the Committee of Reference overseaing the group of ethical

1t investment funds provided by Friends Provident and F & C}

fﬂ&nwamn {see abovel

3.19 The Permanent Secretary (as Accounting Officer for the Department),
Director General Finance & Strategy, the Director of Internal Audit and a Director
of the National Audit Office also normally attend meetings of the Committee.

Appointment and remuneration

3.20 The Permanent Secreiary, as well as tha
members of all these Boards and Committess
fwath the following axceptions) are civil servants,
appointed in accordance with the Civil Service
Management Code. Their remuneration is
determined in-accordanca with Cabinet Office
guidelinas, which take into account the
recommendations of the Senior Salanes Review
Body. The exceptions ara: the Independent
Board Members (IBMs), the Secretary of State
and Ministers. The 1BMs are appointed for an
initial terrm of two or three years with the
possibility of a second similar term,
Femuneration is based on a flat-rate annual
honararium plus reimbursament of reascnable
gxpenses. The remuneration report in section 3.7
givas details of the remuneration of the
Secretary of State, Ministers and senior
management, and feas paid 1o Independent
Board Meambers,

3.21 Those members of the Department’s
Boards and Commitiees who are also civil
servants are, by the terms of that empioymeant,
precludead from holding any company
directorships or other significant interests that

Footnotes refer to annex B.4

may cenflict with their management
responsibilities. The IBMs are required to declare
any parsonal or business interests which may, or
may be percerved to, influance their judgament
and are asked on & regular basis 10 keep this
updated.

3.22 The Department is committed to
appointments in our delivery partners beaing
made on ment. Public appointments are made
by Ministers to the boards of the Department’s
non-departmeantal public bodies. Appointments
include the positiens of Chair, Deputy Chair and
Board members. Ministenal appointments to
MDPBs and public corporations are made in
accordanca with the Code of Practice of the
Commissioner for Public Appoimiments maore
commonly known as the OCPA Code. Tha role of
the Commissioner is o regulate, monitar, repo
and advise on the way in which Ministers make
appointments to the Boards of public bodies.

A saparate report on public bodies and public
appointrments will be made available on the
Departmant’s weabasite around the time of the
publication of this Report.’¥
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Section 3.2
Structure and organisation

3.23 This section gives an overview of the Department’s structure during the
reporting year and summarises the work of each unit. Following the changes
implemented in June 2007 (see section 1.1), large parts of this structure have
rransferred to the Department for Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform,
with the Office of Science and Innovation transferring to the Department for
Innovation, Universities and Skills.

Ministers
Sir Brian Bender
Permanent Secretary
LK Trada
and Shareholdear
Invesirant Executive
Leaal Strategic Financa and Operations  |J
o e B Palicy i Strategy [ Group
Analysis Group
Enterprise and || Office of Science | ] | Energy Group Il Fair Markets
Business Group and Innovation Group

3.24 Enterprise and Business Group comprises Business Relations (BR), the
Small Business Service (SBS) and Regions. The Director General is Mark Gibson.
Business Relations builds partnerships with business through face-to-face contact
and sector analysis. Regions aims to improve the economic performance of each
English region and narrow the gap in growth rates, working in partnership with
England’s Regional Development Agencies and other Government Departments;
and the Small Business Service is dedicated to supporting small business and
enterprise.

3.25 Fair Markets Group shapes a framewaork for free and fair markets nationally
and internationally, to help business, consumers and employees meet the
challenges of globalsation. Headed up by its Director General John Alty, it extends
competitive markets by developing markets both in Europe and throughout the
world; reducing the regulatory burden on business; and placing empowered and
protected consumers at the heart of a world-class competition regime. It maintains
an adaptable labour market, delivering a reduction in legal complexity while
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Struciure and organisation

protecting vulnerable workers and promoting diversity. It promotes and delivers an
effective framework for corporate and insclvency activity, giving confidence to
investors and business,

3.26 The Office of Science and Innovation (05} was headed by Sir David King,
who is also the Government's Chief Scientific Adviser. 0S| comprises the Science
and Innovation Group (S&IG), headed by Sir Keith ©'Nions {who reports directly to
the Permanent Secretary), and the Transdepartmental Science and Technology
Group (TDST), which supports Sir David in his role as GCSA. S&IG has the dual
purpose of developing further the excellence of the UK's research base; and
promoting technological and other business innovation. S&IG’s main delivery
partners are the Research Councils, the Technology Strategy Board , the UK
Intellectual Property Office, British National Space Centre, the National Physical
Laboratory and the Mational Weights & Measures Laboratory. TDST aims to ensure
that the Government as a whole manages and uses science effectively to improve
policy and delivery, as well as co-ordinating the UK's engagement with international
sSCience Issues.

3.27 Energy Group’s Director General is Willy Rickett. The Group handles a range
of energy-related matters, from licensing of oil and gas exploration and production
to the supply of gas and electricity to consumers. Its overall objective is to use
competitive energy markets to achieve the efficient use and reliable supply of
clean, safe and competitively-priced energy. It also manages Departmental historic
liabilities; and safety and security in the civil nuclear industry.

3.28 UK Trade & Investment (UKTI) brings together the work of the Foreign &
Commonwealth Office and the Department in supporting companies in the UK
doing business internationally, and overseas enterprises seeking 1o locate in the UK
{see the FCO's Departmental Report at www.fco.gov.uk or UKTI's own annual report
at wwwi. uktradeinvest.gov.uk). UKTI draws staff and associated administration
funding from both parent departments and has its own stream of programme
funding, voted directly by Parliament. The Chief Executive is Andrew Cahn.

3.29 The Government is owner of or shareholder in, a large and diverse portfolio
of businesses, including for instance Royal Mail. The Shareholder Executive aims
to ensure that Government shareholdings deliver sustained, positive returns and to
act as an effective and intelligent shareholder. During the reporting year it was
headed by Martin Bryant, Chief Executive. He was succeeded by Stephen
Lovegrove as Acting Chief Executive from June 2007.

3.30 The Strategic Policy Analysis Unit is headed by Vicky Pryce, the Chief
Economic Advisor and Director General. The Unit undertakes analytical work in
support of the Department’s policy and strategy and gives a professional lead to
the wark of economists, statisticians and operational researchers across the
Department. The unit is responsible for developing the Department’s evidence
base and its analysis of globalisation and the UK productivity and competitiveness
agenda.

3.31 The Director General of the Finance and Strategy Group is Mark Clarke.
The Group is responsible for ensuring that the Department’s finances are managed
and controlled effectively in a way which supports the delivery of the Department’s
objectives. It delivers strategic, business and financial planning; performance
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management and reporting; accounting operations; and decision support and
financial analysis. The Group also champions value for money, performance
improvement and costfincome management across the Department.

3.32 Operations Group is led by Hilary Douglas, the Chief Operating Officer.

The Group ensures the Department has the capability to deliver on our objectives
by providing infrastructure, communication and support services such as personnel,
accommaodation, IT and cperations and using resources efficiently to meet

savings targets.

3.33 Legal Services Group ensures that the Department and its executive
agencies receive the highest quality legal advice. The Group is headed by Anthony
Inglese, the Solicitor and Director General.

Changes during 2006-07

3.34 During 2006-07 the following changes took place in the structure and
organisation of the Department. See also Note 40 to the accounts in section 5.6
for the financial implications of some of the changes listed here.

e Following the Ministerial reorganisation in May 2006, the Women and
Equality Unit has transferred to the Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) in a machinery-of-government change. As part of the
transfer, sponsorship responsibilities for the Equal Opportunities
Commission and the Women's National Commission, with their associated
budgets, have also transferred to the DCLG.

e During 2006-07 Ministers agreed to major restructuring of the work of the
Business Relations teams and the Small Business Service, with a view to
becoming a more streamlined, policy-making Department. As part of this
restructuring, SBS has ceased to be an executive agency, and has become
part of the core Departrment from 1 April 2007.

e As of 1 April 2008 Companies Investigation Branch of the Department
transferred to The Insolvency Service.

¢ |n October 2008, the safety function of the Engineering Inspectorate
transferred to the Health and Safety Executive.

e As of 1 April 2007, the nuclear safeguards function within Energy Group
ransferred to the Health and Safety Executive.

® In June 20086, the Social Enterprise Unit in the SBS transferred to the
Cabinet Office.
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3.35 The Department delivers its wide range of products and services to very
diverse groups by working with a network of organisations (or parts of
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organisations) and delivery partners. E 5
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3.36 This section gives an overview of all bodies sponsored by the Departrment 'E 8
B 0 o

-

during the reporting year. The "Departmental family"” consists of a number of
executive agencies and non-departmental public bodies. They employed around
21,000 people and spent about 70% (£4.7 billion) collectively of the Department’s total
budget in 2006-07. Around 100 people (full-time equivalent) within the Department
have been involved in managing its relationships with these delivery partners.

3.37 Responsibility for a number of delivery partners (including the Research
Councils) is currently transferring to the new Department for Innovation, Universities
and Skills, while most of the bodies described below are becoming delivery partners
of the new Department for Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform.
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Executive agencies 'E -
§ @«
3.38 Executive agencies are delivery bodies closely connected with the Gad
sponscring Department. Although there is no typical agency model, common E E :
features of agencies usually include a certain level of financial and personnel S
flexibility to get the job done and operating performance targets that are agreed
with the parent Department and Minister. =
3.39 During 2006-07, the Department had the following agencies: "
RB2
ké -
Small Business Service (until 1 April 2007) www.sbs.gov.uk
|IIF ]
. -
Companies House (a Trading Fund) www.companieshouse.gov.uk g
=
Patent Office (changed its name to “UK Intellectual Property Office” é‘ :,
in April 2007) (a Trading Fund) www.ipo.gov.uk LY
—

Insolvency Service www.insolvency.gov.uk 86

National Weights and Measures Laboratory www.nwml.gov.uk 41
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3.40 With effect from 1 April 2007, the Small Business Service was moved into
the core Department to reflect the fact that it is mostly a p;;{it:y unlt rather than a
delivery unit. Business-facing delivery services are provided by the Ftegmn.al
Development Agencies and Business Link.

Non-departmental public bodies

3.41 Non-departmental public bodies (“NDPBs") are delivery bodies that operate

to a greater or lesser extent at arm'’s length from Ministers and departments. In the
reporting year the Department had around 70, including the Regional Development
Agencies, the Research Councils and the Low Pay Commission. Advisory NDPBs
differ from other NDPBs in that usually they are set up as ad hoc organisations; any
staff and resources they require are provided directly by the Department.

3.42 During 2006-07, the Department had the following NDPBs:

Executive NDPBs
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3.43 Last year's DTI Departmental Report contained detailed information on the
«penditure and the long-term projects of the Research Councils. This information

iS. na Inngar presented in this Report, but will be made available on the

D ent's website at or shortly after publication of this Report, see

www,dtl. gov.uk/science/science-funding/budget/page28923.htm.

Advisory NDPBs

The Department

Report
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Dadivery panners - agencies and NDPBs

3.45 MNote that the following units are part of the core Department rather than the
wider Departmental family: the Office of Science and Innovation, UK Trade &
Investment, the British National Space Centre, the Export Control Organisation and
the Shareholder Executive.

Changes during 2006-07

3.46 With effect from May 2006, the sponsoring role for the Equal Opportunities
Commission fan executive NDPB) and the Women's National Commission (an
advisory NDPB) moved to the Department of Communities and Local Government.
This follows the transfer of the Women and Equality Unit (see page 124 above).

3.47 On 1 April 2006 the functions of the Employment Tribunals Service
transferred to the Ministry of Justice to become part of the new Tribunals Service.

3.48 Other bodies which were wound up during 2008-07 were:
Advisory NDPBs
Measurement Advisory Committee December 2006

Sustainable Energy Policy Advisory Board March 2007

Ethnic Minority Business Forum March 2007
Srall Business Council March 2007
Small Business Investment Taskforce March 2007
Ad-hoc advisory groups

Age Advisory Group January 2007
Construction Act Sounding Board February 2007

3.49 In addition the Women in SET Implementation Group has been reclassified
as an Expert Committee with effect from May 2006.

350 The Office for Civil Nuclear Security transferred to the Health and Safefy
Executive as of 1 April 2007.

Performance reporting on agencies and NDPBs

3.51 The performance report in chapter 2 also covers the contribution of the
executive agencies, All agencies and most NDPBs (other than Advisory and
Tribunal NDPBs) also publish their own annual report and accounts, which provide
full information an targets and performance of the organisation in question, as well
as financial information. These can be obtained from their websites, as indicated
above, or The Stationery Office.
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Entities consolidated and not consolidated

352 The audited Besource Accounts 2006-07 in chapter 5 present the
consolidated results for the financial year 2006-07 of the following entities:

e the DTI, including DTI elements of administration expenditure for UK Trade
& Investment. The administration costs of UKTI are shared with the
Foreign and Commonwealth Office. UKTI's programme expenditure is
presented in its own resource accounts,

e the following executive agencies: The Insolvency Service, National
Weights and Measures Laboratory, Small Business Service; and

e the Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (Acas), a Crown
Executive NDPE.

This means that the spending amounts in the Accounts represent the combined
expenditure by these bodies.

3.53 With the exception of Acas, the financial results of NDPBs are not
consolidated in these Accounts. However, the Accounts do show the money the
Department has provided to the various NDPBs during 2006-07 (so-called “grants-
in-aid", see Note 11 to the Accounts - section 5.6). As mentioned above,
executive NDPBs publish separate annual reports and accounts which provide full
details of financial activity during the year. Advisory NDPBs and Tribunal NDPBs do
not publish formal annual reports and accounts, but information on their work can
be found on their websites.

3.54 In parallel to the audited Resource Accounts, this Annual Report and
Accounts also contains (unaudited) expenditure information on the whole of the
Departmental family {including NDPBs} in chapter 6. Chapter 4 explains the
difference between the two sets of financial information in more detail.

Relationship between the core Department and delivery partners

3.55 Each NDPB is overseen by a sponsor team in the Department which agrees
the NDPB's remit and monitors performance. The sponsor team works with the
NDPEB, providing both support for its high level aims, as well as challenge to ensure

adherence to rules of regularity and propriety and for purposes of budgetary
contral.

3.56 The next section (section 3.4 "Professional support, capability and
infrastructure”) discusses the Capability Review that was carried out in 2006.

With regard to the relationship between the Department and its delivery partners,
the Capability Review recognised that there were significant areas of strengths and
also highlighted areas which needed to improve if we were to work together as
eftectively as possible ensuring a consistent level of senior level engagement.

Footnotes refer to annex B.4
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3.57 The Department’s 2006 Business Plan? set out what we wanted to achieve
during 2006-07 for the strategic objectives on science, business, markets and

1
o
energy. and chapter 2 reports the progress made. The Business Flan also outlined E "
work to build the Department’s capability to pursue these objectives. It did so by 1‘:‘_: ‘é_
desecribing the Department’s plans for 2006-07 for each of five "enabler &
objectives”: - ]
e setting and delivering priorities;

® Ccorporate services,
® corporate communications;

e legal services; and

e delivering efficiency targets.

3.68 This section contains the 2006-07 report on the Department’s enabler
objectives, It also explains how the "Capability Review” that was carried out in
2006 fits in with the Department’s work on building its capability
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3.59 From 28 June 2007, the support services delivering the enabler objectives
form the foundation of the capability of the new Department for Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform (see section 1.1}
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The Capability Review

763

3.60 The Departmental Capability Reviews are an initiative launched by the
Cabinet Secretary, Sir Gus O'Donnell to improve the capability of the Civil Service
to meet today’s delivery challenges and be ready for tomorrow's.'*? The reviews
are carried out by a team of Board-level external reviewers from the public, private
and voluntary sectors supported by the Pnme Minister's Delwvery Unit,
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3.61 The Department was in the second tranche of Departments to be reviewed,
with the Review report published on 13 December 2006 alongside a response 1o
the review from the Department’s Management Board, and a more detailed
implementation plan. '+
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3.62 The Review report recognised the improvements made in the Department
over the last five years beginning with the Patricia Hewitt-led review of the
Department in 2001 through the introduction of a comprehansive strategy (see
section 1.2) and more effective business plans in 2003 to more recent innovations
such as the introduction of the Project Pool (see page 132). It highlights
Departmental strengths in delivery, with the Department coming out as one of the
top departrments in Whitehall in this area, as well as the Department’s impressive
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record of analysis and use of evidence and its success in delivering efficiency and
headcount targets ahead of schedule.

3.63 In the light of the findings of the Review the Management Board committed
to action in the following areas:

e Clarity and standards: Ensuring that the Departrnent’s vision, rele and
purpose drives the performance of every unit and individual in the
argansation.

¢ Leadership: Building on the Department’s leadership development work
to address issues raised in staff surveys, to strengthen the corporate
approach to the management of change, and to recognise the contribution
of leaders from the wider Departmental “family” of delivery partners.

¢ Working through the delivery chain: Achieving more strategic
interaction between the Department and its executive agencies and
NDPBs, with clearer business models and an emphasis on sharing
common purpose, best practice and recognising success.

3.64 Work is continuing in these areas and the Management Board will
periodically discuss actions and evidence of progress with the Cabinet Secretary
and the Prime Minister's Delivery Unit. A public update report will be available
around twelve months after publication.

Business plan objective: setting and delivering priorities

Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07

Leading and co-ordinating Comprehensive Spending Review

the Department’s ! i .
mgng for the 3.65 The Department has undertaken a series of rigorous exercises to

Comprehansive Spanding eﬁm _Ihat fiapedifos rarswrm_as in CSR 07 s WUI‘dW Rasadt mm

Raview ICSR 20071 examining all areas for potential value-for-maney savings, and 1o see
whather resources curenily used could be reduced or refocused 1o
maximise thelr impact on achieving Departmental and Government
objectives. This weork will inform the negotiation and implementation of
the Department’s CSR 07 setilament as it will apply to ils successor
Departments (BERR and DIUS, see section 1.1)

3.66 In March 2007, the Departmant’s science budget was settled for the
CSR at 2.7% growth annually in real terms to 2010-11. This level of growth
is consistent with the 10 Year Science and Innovation Framework 2004,
The Department’s non-science budget was settled recently, at the end of
June, '

Distributing resources to  Prioritisation

areas that maximisa th

ailvacy of b7l chia R The Department has undertaken further prioritisation of activities to.
enable it to operate within its budget. In particular, through making more
efficient use of the Department’s accommodation, asserting downward
pressure on ICT costs and reviewing particular areas of the Department
to ensure that staff numbers are consistent with the organisational
strategy. The Departrnent has also continued 1o build on the success of
the Project Pool, which allows staff 10 be quickly and flexibly deployed to
changing priorities. ' - oy s
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Plans for 2006-07 Progress in 2006-07

3.68 As part of the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) process the
Department’s PSA targets and Departmental strategic objectives have

been re-evaluated to allow a clearer line of sight from the Department’s 230
vision o the resources and the work of staff neaded 1o deliver these E '; E
objectives, As part of the preparations for the CSR the Department has FEE
thoroughly examined all areas of spend 1o assess the value-for-money
that they give and to look for areas where money could be re-directad to
Departrnental and Governmant priofites, This should enable us; in line _—
with the rest of Whitehall, to meeat the 3% annual value-for-money
savings target announced in the 2006 pre-budget report. -
L] m
— E =
‘Making a further step-  Project management E : 3
e n w:m 3.69 Over the last year the Department has worked to improve delivary X E‘ =
g z through enhancing project management capability. The Project Pool is a et

flexible resource of 150 staff for allocation 1o Departmental pricrities.
The majority of these have now been tramed in projact management
disciplines. The Project Pool maintains a regime for reporting on and
monitaring s projects to ensure that they are following agreed minimum
project management standards.
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Business plan objective: corporate services

~

3.70 The Department’s central directorates provide internal services and
infrastructure to support the Department in the delivery of its objectives. They also
take the lead in building internal capability and leadership, and maximising
efficiency in the Department’s running costs.

Introduction to
finances
pges 1ES-1ED

-

3.71 During 2006-07 the Department embarked upon a wide-ranging review of all
of its running costs to ensure it can live within its reducing administration budget.
This review led to plans for further, smaller scale restructuring, particularly in the —
corporate centre. Internal restructuring (such as of the SBS, see page 52) also led
to reductions in running costs.

3.72 The Department has further developed its strategy to reduce the costs of
estates and IT services, whilst delivering to industry standards. The strategy for
the central London estate, based on flexible desking and consolidation of property
holdings, will by 2008-09 deliver savings of £8.5 million per annum. The
rationalisation of ICT assets and services should deliver savings in the order of

£6 millicn per annum.
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3.73 The Department’s people strategy is to create a high perfarming
department by:
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e Building the Department’s leadership capability.

e Managing its people to achieve high performance.

e Developing and deploying the skills and talents of its peaple.

e Working in partnership with its employees to develop and sustain a
diverse, motivated and proud workforce.
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Business plan objective: corporate communications

3.97 Building and maintaining effective corporate communications and external
relations along with a cost effective and strategic approach to marketing and
communications continues to be a priority for the Department.

Plans for 2006-07  Progress in 2006-07

Devaloping the Meadia Meadia Features

:;a-ah:}u':: :;_E;:i::}r: :;f 2.98 The Department recened very positive feedback from the

sl publications we have worked with, resulting in consistent further requests
for interviews, articles and feature material, The cross-section of media
show the strengths of the team - podcasts, online news sites,
international policy reviews, local newspapers, consumer, Woman's press.

3.99 Around the Energy Review, for example, we provided more than
30 articles in national, regional and specialist press, as well as in
international titles which wera wall racaived.

Developing the Media Correspondence

e RS 3100 Whitehall targets require, firsty, that 80% of MPs” letters 1o the

xpAies Department are answered within 15 days and, secondly, that 93% of
telephone calls to the Department are answered within 15 seconds.
The Department answered 71% of all MPs letters on time compared to
49.4% last year and exceeded B0% for the second half of the year,
A comprehensive restructuring process is in progress to ensure that the
Department exceads 80% for 2007 and succeeding years. This will also
result in a smaller, more highly skilled response unit using new
technology which will be significantly less expansive to run, The
Depariment answerad 92% of phone calls within 15 seconds compared
to 87% for 2005,

Figure 3.2

Letters to Minisiers answered or recenving a holding reply ! X
withiny 16 W'klﬂ-ﬁ dm.rn g 4% -B0% T0%

"-'Dlum of mml cmmapmuinnm deafred by the Ministarial
Comespondence and Enguiny Unit 1 M - AG6% 50%

Based on cases received during 2006

5
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Business plan objective: legal services

-

3.101 The aim of Legal Services Group is to ensure that Ministers and officials of E =
the Department and its executive agencies receive the highest guality legal gg ”f
services they need to deliver Departmental cbjectives. The Group supports the asd
Department’s legislative programme and provides advice on aspects of

Departmental policy. It investigates and prosecutes criminal offences uncovered =
by other parts of the Department, principally the Insclvency Service and Companies (
Investigation Branch (CIB) and advises the Department on any issues involving gs
criminal law and policy. Legal Services Group also has an influencing role in i -
Whitehall, representing the Department's interests on Government-wide legal E E;
issues, for example, relating to EU employment policy through chairing the $2s

Whitehall-wide Discrimination Law Working Group and, in the criminal justice field,
through chairing the Whitehall Prosecutors Group.

3.102 The Department'’s Legislative Board, chaired by the Solicitor and Director E
General Legal Services, leads on the prioritisation of the Department’s legislative E =
programme and monitors the progress of Bills in the preparatory stages. E
g5
Plans for 2006-07  Progress in 2006-07 F o
Clients receive high Legal services
quality, Ui —
i J':;ff wl ﬁtfj 3.103 The Departrment continued to banefit from the expert advice
. prowided by the Legal Services Group on aspects of policy, investigations, B
majqr legal projects and : iy - > g m
PﬁW delivery prosecutions, EU negotiations, the development of intermational 208
commercial and private internaticnal law, and Freedom of Information 88
issues, Noteworthy projects included the Companies Act {which was the - § a
biggest Act in Parliamentary history; see page 84) the Consurmer Cradit f ,g 5
Act (see page 71), the Work and Families Act (see page 80) and the = ~
Consumers, Estate Agents and Redress Bill (see paga T2),
3.104 As part of its commitment to delivering excellent legal services, {
the Group takes regular soundings from colleagues within the
Department and those with an interest outside such as Cabinet Office 3
legal advisers on its performance, including an annual survey. The maost | § E %
recent survey (January 2007) showed that 99.4% of clients were either 2Ee
satished or very satisfied. 888
it

:__E_nhmmnt of corporate  Enforcement

:'f;nm and WMW: 3.105 The Depantment’s enforcement arm faced a heavy demand and

TN : difficult resourcing pressures, It responded by reviewing and successfully
adapting its operational procedures and organisational structure and the
effort has paid dividends in improving efficiancy.

3.106 In addition, the Department has continued to chair the Whitehall
Prosecutors Group and play a leading role in co-ordinating the efforts of
Government prosecuting authorities.

Budgetary spend
Fages 164-287

DTl bids for legistation  DTI legislation ol

ﬁ‘;ﬂﬁ:m ;ﬂ?r;wd 3.107 The Legislative Board proved its value in successfully leading the ‘

B : prioritisation of the Department’s |egislative programme bids. It
monitored the progress of Bills in the preparatory stages and actively
promoted greater knowledge and undersianding across the Department
by hosting a series of seminars on primary and secondary legislation and
Parlizmentary proceduras.
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Business plan objective: efficiency targets

Targets

3.108 The Department’s SR04 Efficiency target as in the Gershon Report:’

To achieve annual efficiencies of at least 2.5% a year, equivalent to a total over the
Spending Review period of at least £380 million by 2007-08. At least half of these
efficiencies will be cash releasing, allowing resources to be recycled to priority
pProgrammes.

3.109 As part of this efficiency programme the Department set the following
targets, to be achieved by the end of 2007-08:

o deliver around 80% of the total efficiency gains principally by means of
increasing the effectiveness of the Department’s business support
products and securing efficiency gains within the science budget;

e deliver around £20 million of savings through improved procurement,
particularly through more effective procurement of external consultancy
and information technology, and rationalisation of the Departmental estate;

e work with the RDAs to ensure the efficient devolution of business support
products and to minimise overlaps in service provision; and

e achieve a total reduction in civil service posts of 1,010 in the core
Department,2 200 in UK Trade & Investment and 270 in other bodies, and
be on course to have relocated at least 685 posts out of London and the
South East by 2010.

' Sew www hm-treasuny. gov. ukdimedkaB 200 1fefhoancy _reviaw 120704 paf
* in reporung stall reductions as part of the SR04 efficiency programme core OT] refers to DT HO, 585 and DT
& 58S actraities in Governmant Offices
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Achievements up to March 2007

e The Department has achieved overall delivery of efficiency savings of
£484 million at the end of the second year of the programme against

12320

an overall target of £380 million for the SR04 period. The reported ' ;’% b

savings have been achieved across the Department, with the following 23
areas achieving savings beyond their target: | =
- Rationalisation of the Department’s Business Support Schemes has )

resulted in considerable savings above the original target. The

Business Support Monitoring Surveys (BSMS) have contributed to E -

providing evidence for quality assurance. g : T

B

- Research Councils - total cumulative savings are above target and EE-“

continue to be largely achieved through better alignment of science
spend to the Government’s priorities.

- Accommodation and ICT - significant savings achieved from the
implementation of the “Two Roof” programme. Savings on
commodity items from better commercial deals have been exceeded.

- RDA work streams have realised efficiency savings ahead of target
as they continue to achieve savings from the structural and strategic
changes implemented as part of the programme.

-
[
]
E
=
]
e
&
=]
@
=

e As at the end of 2006-07, the core Department (including DTI staff in
Government Offices) has delivered 1,251 staff reductions against the
2007-08 target of 1,010. The Department’s agencies have delivered 189
staff reductions against the 270 target.

18

Pages 168

" introduction to
finances

¢ The Department, its agencies and delivery partners have relocated -

from London and the South east - 314.5 posts against a March 2008

| target of 85 and against the overall target of 685 posts by March 2010. —

Areas where posts have been relocated include; Newport, Birmingham,
Manchester and Swindon.

2
123
e The Office of Government Commerce (OGC) assesses Government 33
: a5 B8
Departments’ progress towards their efficiency targets. The &85
Department received a positive assessment at the most recent review
in November 2006.
| £
i
&
24
5
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3.110 The following table provides more detailed financial savings showing
progress against our efficiency targets. Please refer to annex A.1 for notes on
quality measures and data sufficiency.

1 Staff redusctions hare rafars to the reductions daliwered by core DT lincluding SBS and DT1 & SBS activities in
Government Offices; excluding UKTIL

2 NJC = Mon-cashabla officioncy gains. These ase essontially representative of tha Department and its work:
sireams deliverng more ouputs for the same level of funding. These gains do not release “cash” for
reinvastrment, but allow the Dapanmaent 1o keep funding at constant cash levels in these activities.

3 C = Cashable efficiency gains, These gains are cash releasing and are representative af the Department’s ability
1o mantain defivery levals, whila reducing spend in the areas identified.

4 In fing with existing reporting mechamsms the ADAs and the Research Councils report delivery 8 quarter behind
sciusl delvery. Accordingly, the 2005-06 and 2006-07 figures given hera for these bodees show cumulative
efficiency delivering up to Quarter 3 of the relevant year,

G DT ig-the lead sponsor Dapanmant for the RDAs and as such has gverall responsibility for the achisvemant of
its afficency delivery gains. All Departmems that contribute to the RDA Single Pol claim from the total savings
achieved on a pro rata basis, The Department has therefore presented above both the total savings and DT('s
share of those tolad savings. See also note 4.

G Exceptional items include efficiency gains that have been achiaved, which ware not pari of the onginal targets
but score against Gershon efficiency criteria and provide contingency for the Programme.

7 The total represents DTI savings only, including DTV's share of RDA savings. The full RDA savings also
presented in the table are for information only. and are excluded from the 1otal,

N
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Section 3.5

Sustainability; environmental
report

v/

3.116 This section discusses the Department’s work on sustainable development.
On the one hand this includes sustainability aspects of the Department’s work in
pursuing its Departmental abjectives (for instance on energy). Secondly,

this section contains its environmental report, setting out its internal environmental
performance - for instance energy used in the Department’s buildings.

Sustainable development

3.117 Sustainable development enables people throughout the world to satisfy
their basic needs and enjoy a better quality of life without compromising the quality
of life of future generations. The Department has a major contribution to make, by
tackling climate change and, crucially, decoupling economic growth from
environmental degradation. The Department is committed to integrating
sustainability across its agenda to support the UK Government Sustainable
Development Strategy. 'S

3.118 The Dapartment’s commitmeant to sustainable development was further
strengthened in 2006 with the appointment to the Management Board of the first
ever Sustainable Development Champion. Combined with a network of SD
Champions across the Department this will ensure that the Department continues
to fulfil its long-term commitments set out in the Government Strategy.

3.119 In another significant milestone the Department’s first ever Sustainable
Development Action Plan was published and warmly received by the Sustainable
Development Commission — the Government'’s watchdog for sustainability.

An updated Departmental Sustainable Development Action Plan was launched in
May 2007146 setting out the Department’s considerable achievements in 2006-07
and new, SMART targets for the year ahead. Key successes last year included:

» Energy: publication of the Energy Review Report in July 2006 which put
forward a large and ambitious package of measures to address the
challenges of ¢climate change and energy security (see section 2.7);

e Construction: conclusion of the review of the Sustainable Construction
Strategy which will lead to the production of a new strategy over the next
12 months. The "London 2012 Construction Commitment” was a practical
example of joint working between the Olympic Delivery Authority,
Government and the industry to ensure a sustainable approach that will
bring lasting environmental, social and economic benefits through
regeneration and legacy (see page 60, 63); and

¢ Waste: implementation of the UK WEEE Regulations leading to the future
safe disposal of waste electrical and electronic equipment in line with EU



Sustainability; environmantal roport

directives (2002/96/EC) and 2003/103/EC (see also page 40 about
Knowledge transfer and innovation).

3.120 The Department has also made significant gains to reduce the environmental
impact of the Departmental estate, see below.

3.121 Looking forward to the year ahead the Action Plan sets four strategic
OUTCOmMEes:

e continue to reduce DTI HQ's environmental footprint and develop a
strategy for further reductions (see below);

e quantify and start to raise the level of understanding, and awareness, of
sustainable development within the Department as a building block
towards integrating it into policy making;

e develop an understanding of the barriers that industry face with regard to
sustainable development and how we might be able to help them
overcome these barriers; and

* through publication of the Energy White Paper, promote positive
sustainable and environmental behaviours e.g. by facilitating the
demonstration and deployment of sustainable and low carbon technologies;
saving energy; strengthening delivery of renewables generation; and,
delivering on our wider social and environmental objectives through
continued commitment to an international price for carbon.

3.122 The Departrment will deliver 30 specific commitments in support of these
outcomes during 2007-08 including on energy policy, innovation, procurement,
working with key sectors, as well as the management of the Departmental estate.
Please see the Action Plan for further details.

Environmental Report

3.123 The Department has made significant gains to reduce the environmental
impact of the Departmental estate. Each year a return to the Sustainable
Development Commission is undertaken which assesses the performance of
Government Departments against the Framework for Sustainable Development on
the Government Estate. In the 2006 assessment the Department came top of all
Government Departments.'¥? Highlights mentioned in the assessment included
supply of 33% electricity from renewable sources and a 39% increase in waste
recovery compared with the previous year. Further details on the Framework,
including all information of the objectives and targets can be found at:
www._sustainable-development.gov.uk/government/estatesfindex.htm

Summary of actions during 2006-07

3.124 The Department asked The Carbon Trust to conduct a feasibility study of
possible renewable/green technologies that could be applied to the Department’s
buildings. The majority of technologies were dismissed due to enviranmental,
economic and structural reasons. However, two technologies were identified.

One being that St Mary's House can tap into the District Heating system that is
available in Sheffield. The second was to install Solar Thermal water heaters at

1 Victoria Street that would preheat water prior to entering the boilers that would
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Sustainability; enwnonmantal repor

must meet minimum environmental requirements (e.g. all fridges must have
Energy EU rating of A or better].

Gas

3.129 All sites have consumed less gas than the previous year; with the exception
of Westfield House that has increased its consumption by approximately 200,000
kWh. The low consumption for the past year is almost certain due to the
exceptionally warm weather. As with electricity, all plant is maintained to ensure
energy efficiency is to a high standard.

Figure 3.5 Total gas consumption per building {April 2006-March 2007)

K
2000000 —

1800000 — 4 717,860

1800000 —
1400000 —
1200000 —

1000000 —

270,842

1 Victona Kingapate Westiild Buckingham Atoll 51 Mary's
Swast House Heuse Patace Road Hinage

Bullding

Water

3.130 Atholl House and Kingsgate House reduced their water consumption on the
previous year. All other sites have seen some increases in their water consumption
due to increased usage. However, the Department has vacated 10/18 Victona
Street and will shortly vacate Buckingham Palace road which will contribute to a
reduction in water consumption. These premises will not be included in the annual
energy returns.

Waste

3.131 All sites have reduced their waste arisings, with the most significant
reductions at Kingsgate House (42,670kg) and Buckingham Palace Road
(45,0585kg). 1 Victoria Street is the only site to increase total waste recycled
(10,208kg). It is expected that all sites will increase their total waste recycled with
the intraduction of additional recycling facilities for cans and plastic. The recycling
volumes for the past quarter, which have only come out of 1 Victoria Street are:
plastics 992kg and cans 161kg.
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Figure 3.6 Total water consumption per building (April 2006-March 2007)
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Figure 3.7 Waste arisings (April 2006-March 2007}
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Section 3.6
Better regulation and equality

s /4

3.132 Better regulation initiatives affect all the Department’s work. Sustainability
aspects of the Department’s policies have already been discussed in the previous
saction (3.5), This section covers areas such as simplification of regulation and
promoting equality in its policies.

3.133 The Department is strongly committed to better regulation. We have placed
its principles at the heart of Departmental policy making, and published an
ambitious Simplification Plan to reduce annual administrative burdens by 25% by
2010. The Permanent Secretary and the Secretary of State have made better
regulation an “acid test” of departmental success. A strategy for embedding better
policy making principles into the Department's culture was formally set in train by
the Secretary of State and the Permanent Secretary last summer. Genuine,
sustained progress requires a policy-making culture characterised by challenging
the instinct to regulate and by ensuring that the principles of good regulation
{transparency, proportionality, consistency, targeting and accountability) are factored
into the Department’s policy making from the earliest stages.

3.134 The Department’s Ministerial Challenge Panel has been a major force in
engaging business, consumers, shareholders and employees. It is helping to open
the Department to challenge and culture-change.

Impact Assessments (IA) and consultations

3.135 Impact Assessments accompany any new policy proposal that has an impact
on business, and demonstrate that the design of the proposal is informed by
comparing the benefits of each option with the costs. The Department has been
presented by the Mational Audit Office as an exemplar of best practice in
Bequlatory Impact Assessment.'*8 The Department has been fully supportive of
efforts by the Better Regulation Executive to streamline the impact assessment
process, and ensure that policy proposals are transparent and properly guantified.
Departmental economists have been working closely with the BRE over the
autumn on developing the |A template and toolkit, which will help to ensure that
all cost and benefit information is presented in a more transparent way.

Figure 3.8
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3.136 A Working Group, led by the Better Regulation Executive, is currently
seeking the views of those who regularly respond to Government consultation and
those who may feel that Government consultations do not sufficiently engage
them, in order to promote better consultation practices.

Simplification & administrative burden reductions

3.137 The Department published its Simplification Plan on 11 December 2006.'4%
The Plan is a key part of an ongoing commitment to reducing unnecessary red tape
and to making essential regulation simpler and more streamlined. It builds on our
draft published a year previously. It shows how and where the Department will
deliver specific savings in administrative burdens (red tape costs imposed on
business by regulation, such as form-filling, record-keeping, official returns and
complying with inspections). These burdens — estimated by
PricewaternouseCoopers (PwC) last year through the cross-Government
Administrative Burdens Measurement Exercise — are very broadly estimated to
cost business just under £5.3 billion per year.

3.138 Like other Departments, we aim to reduce these burdens by 25% by 2010.
Drawing extensively on advice and input from key business, employee and
consumer bodies and delivery partners, the Department has worked up proposals
astimated to deliver savings of around £700 million — a first instalment towards the
Department’s overall target of £1.3 billion. Three areas — employment, company
law and consumer law - account for 87% of the Department’s £5.3 billion annual
administrative burdens.

3.139 The key Initiatives in the Simplification Plan are as follows.

* Employment law - The Department’s proposals for simplifying
employment law will result in estimated annual savings of over £425
million. These proposals include areas where the Department is
considering changes to the regulations themselves (e.q. dispute
resolution, which both employees and employers have raised as a key
concern), and others where it is looking to improve the content and
awareness of guidance and tools to aid compliance (a wide range of
businesses have told us that they want this). See also page B1.

¢ Company Law - Implementing the Companies Act 2006: fundamental
reforms saving companies nearly £150 million a year, See also page 84,

e Companies House - Automated services through My Companies House,
with individual company portals and a joint filing project with HMBEC that
will save business up to £65 million a year. See also page 85.

» Consumer Law - Radically simplifying business-to-consumer law by
repealing provisions in 22 pieces of consumer law. The Department is
daing this as part of our implementation of the EU Unfair Commercial
Practices Directive (UCPD) - which creates a general duty not to trade
unfairly - creating leaner, flexible, more future-proof regulation, and saving
up to £35 million a year. See also page 71.
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e Small Business Service — Development of an International Trade Single
Window, cutting form filling and other paperwork and improving access to
information leading to faster goods clearance for importers and exporters -
saving them about £60 million a year.

3.140 Please note that the Department is also working to simplify its business
support work by reducing the number of business support schemes (see page 52),
not to be confused with the Simplification Plan aimed at reducing burdens on
business, as described above.

EU better regulation

3.141 Better regulation has become a major priority in Europe, building on the work
done during the UK Presidency in 2005, In Novermnber 2006, the Commission
published a major package of proposals covering administrative burdens, an
extension of the rolling simplification pregramme and strengthening of impact
assessment in the Commission. A key UK goal for the Spring European Council in
March 2007 was that the Council should provide political suppert for the EU better
regulation agenda. This goal was achieved. The Spring Council endorsed:

e 3 target to reduce administrative burdens arising from EU legislation
by 25% by 2012 and the Commission's Action Programme to achieve
that goal;

e the creation of an Impact Assessment Board to improve the quality of
EU impact assessment;

» the Commission’s rolling simplification plan.

3.142 The Davidson Review'®® on the implementation of European legislation
published on the 28 November 2006 found no evidence of "gold plating” imposing
additional burdens beyond the minimum required by new EU legislation) in
Departmental policy.

Equality

3.143 Please also note page 135, where diversity within the Depantment is
discussed, including its policy on employment of disabled people.

3.144 The Department, along with other public sector organisations, is required by
legislation to promote equality of opportunity in all its functions for race, gender
and disability.’ This Report provides an update on actions set out in the
Department’s Race Equality Scheme.'s' The reporting duties on disability and
gender have come into force in 2006 and 2007 respectively, and a first report on
these aspects will be contained in next year's annual report,

1 The Race Relations Act 1976 (as amanded by the Race Aelations (Amandment) Act 2000; the Sex
Déscrimination Act 1975 (as amended by the Egquality Act 2008), and the Disability Discnmination Act (ag
amended by the Disability Discrirmination Act 2005). Thera is no similar legeslation currently as regards religion
betief, sexual crientation or age
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Commitment in Race Equality
Scheme 2006-08 Frogress made
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Section 3.7
Remuneration report

3.145 See section 3.1 above for general comments on appointment and
remuneration of Board and Committee members of the Department.

Remuneration Policy

3.146 The remuneration of senior civil servants is set by the Prime Minister
following independent advice from the Review Body on Senior Salaries. The
Review Body also advises the Prime Minister from time to time on the pay and
pensions of Members of Parliament and their allowances; on Peers’ allowances;
and on the pay, pensions and allowances of Ministers and others whose pay is
determined by the Ministerial and Other Salaries Act 1975. In reaching its
recommendations, the Review Body is to have regard to the following
considerations:

e the need to recruit, retain and motivate suitably able and qualified people
to exercise their different responsibilities;

e regionalflocal variations in labour markets and their effects on the
recruitment and retention of staff;

e Government policies for improving the public services including the
requirement on departments to meet the output targets for the delivery of
departmental services;

e the funds available to departments as set out in the Government's
departmental expenditure limits; and

* the Government’s inflation target.

3.147 The Review Body takes account of the evidence it receives about wider
economic considerations and the affordability of its recommendations. Further
information about the methods used to assess performance, contract conditions
and other work of the Review Body can be found at www.ome. uk.com.

Performance and Reward

3.148 The Senior Civil Service (SCS) pay system consists of relative performance
assessments. Individuals are assessed as being in the top, middle or bottom
performance tranche of their pay band. All individuals in the top performance
tranche and a proportion of the individuals in the middle performance tranche
receive a non-consolidated bonus. Bonuses can vary in amount, however, everyone
who receives a bonus must receive at least £3,000. The maximum bonus award IS
20% of base pay. Cabinet Office has set the bonus pot this year at 7.6% of the
SCS pay hill

=4
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Service Contracts

3.149 Civil service appointments are made in accordance with the Civil Service
Commissioners' Recruitment Code, which requires appointments to be on merit on
the basis of fair and open competition but also includes the circumstances when
appointments may otherwise be made.

3.150 Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold
appointments, which are open-ended until they reach the normal retiring age of 65.
Early termination, other than misconduct, would result in the individual receiving
compensation as set out in the Civil Service Compensation Scheme.

¢ Andrew Cahn was appointed on a four-year contract commencing
27 March 2006. The notice period for the employee is 3 months. For the
employer the notice period is 6 months or a period, if less, equal to the
unexpired part of the fixed term contract.

e Mark Clarke was appointed on a three-year contract commencing 5 June
20086, The notice period for the employee is 3 months. For the employer
the notice period is 6 months or a period, if less, equal to the unexpired
part of the fixed term contract.

e Professor Sir David King was appointed on a contract for two years and
nine months commencing 1 April 2005, The notice period for the
employee is 3 months. For the employer the notice period is 6 months
or a period, if less, equal to the unexpired part of the fixed term contract.

# Sir Keith O’Nions was appointed on a contract for four years and three
months commencing 1 April 2004. The notice period for the employee and
employer is 3 months.

e Vicky Pryce was re-appointed on a three-year contract commencing
10 March 2005. The notice period for the employee and employer is
3 months.

3.151 Further information about the work of the Civil Service Commissioners can
be found at www civilservicecommissioners.gov.uk.
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Salary and pension entitlements for Ministers of the Department

3.152 The remainder of this Remuneration Report contains audited information.
The remuneration of Ministers is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the Ministerial and Other Salaries Act 1975 (as amended by the Ministerial and
Other Salaries Order 1996) and the Ministerial and Other Pensions and Salaries Act
1991. The salary and pension entitlernents of the Ministers of the Department of
Trade and Industry for the year ending 31 March 2007 were as follows:

2

Figure 3.9
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Figure 3.9 - continued

mnumﬂm

Codloasl wm e am -
_-------

\

Noles
¥ The 06-07 salary figure quoted is for the period 5 May 2006 1o 31 March 2007, ful year equivalent is £75,964,
CETV stated as ‘at 3103/08" is in fact at 5 May 2006,
% The D607 salary figure quoted is for the period 1 April 2006 to 4 May 2006, full year equivalent is £75,654. The
(5-06 salary figure quoted is for the period 9 May 2005 1o 31 March 2006, full yesr equivalent is £74,902, CETV
~ siated as "8t 310307 is in fact at 4 May 2006,
,i The 0506 salary figure quoted is for the penod 1 April 2005 to 6 May 2005, full year equndalent is £74,902.
* Salary and pension details can be found in the Departmental resource accounts for 2006-07 of the Foreign and
Commonwaalth Office.
* The 06-07 salary figure quoted is for the period & May 2006 to 31 March 2007, full year equivalent is £39,385,
CETY stated as “at 31/03/06" is in fact at 5 May 2006
* The 05.06 salary figurs quoted is for the panod 10 My 2006 10 31 March 2008, full year equivalent is £38,554.
T The 0607 salany figure quoted iz for the perod 1 Apnl 2006 to 4 May 2006, full year equivalent 15 £39, 744,
Thee 05-06 satary figure quoted & for the period 10 May 2005 10 31 March 2006, full year equivalent 15 £38,854
CETVY stated as "at 31/03/07" 15 in fact at 4 May 2006
: Salany and pension details can ba found in the Departmantal rasource acoounts for 2006-07 of the Foredgn and
Commenwealth Office.
TMBEN salary figure quoted is for the period 1 April 2005 10 9 May 2005, full year equivalent is £38.854.
mm salary figure guoted s for the period 1 March 2008 to 9 May 2005, full year equivalent is £38,854.
i Sﬂaw and pansion details can be found in the Deparmantal resource acoounts for 200607 of the Foreign and
~ Commonwealth Offica.
" The 0607 salary figure quoted is for the period 5 May 2006 to 31 March 2007, full year equivalent is £29,995,
CETY stated as "at 31/0306" 5 in fact a1 & May 2006,
" Elected not 1o draw a Ministerial salary and are not members of the Parliamentary Contribution Pension Fund.
* The 06-07 salary figure quoted is for the period 1 April 2006 to 4 May 2006, full year equivalent is £29,787.
The 05-06 salary figure quoted is for the period 10 May 2005 to 31 March 2006, full vear equivalent is £29.491,
CETV stated as ‘st 31/03/07" is in fact a1 4 May 2006.
! ::Tha 05-06 salary figure quoted is for the perad 1 Agril 2005 to 9 May 2005, full year eguivalent is £29,491.
The 06.07 salary fiqure quoted is for tha period 1 Apnl 2008 to 4 May 2008, full year equivalent is £29,.787,
CETV stated as ‘at 31/0307" isn fact at 4 bMay 2006,
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Salary and pension entitlements for the senior managers of the
Department

3.153 The salary and pension entitlements of the most senior members of the
Department of Trade and Industry were as follows:

~

Figure 3.10

CETV staied a5 ‘&1 31/03/06" s n fact 81 20 Movember. 2008,

CETV stated as “at 31/03/06" is in fact at 5 June 2008

CETV stated as "at 31/03/06" s in fact &t 18 April 2006

CETV stated as "at 31/03/07" is in fact at 17 April 2006,

On secondment from the Cabinet Office. DT was invoiced for a total amount of £100,602 (£261,389 for the
year 0506) for the use of his services as Chief Executive of Sharaholder Executive during the 2006-07 year
CETV stated as "at 31/03/07" is in fact at 16 April 2006.
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Figure 3.10 - continued
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(— e

Figure 3.11

' CETV stated as "at 31/03/05' is in fact at 3 October 2005.

* Dr Catharine Bell stepped down as acting Permanent Secratary on 2 October 2005 CETV stated as ‘at
IN/OH0E" 15 in fact at 31 December 2005, . N

* CETV 2t 5 September 2005. CETV stated as ‘at 31/03/05" is in fact at 5 September 2005,

* Salary and pension disclosure can be found in the Dapartmantal resource accounts for 2006-07 of the Foreign
ani Commonwealth Office.

* On secondment from the Cabinet Office. DT| was invoiced for a total amount of £261,368 for the use of his

“sanices during the 2005-06 year, :

® CETV stated as ‘at 31/03/06" is in fact at 22 April 2005.

" Edmand Hosker was acting Diractor General until § Septembaer 2008, He iz still curmently an employee of the
Dspartrmant. CETY stated s ‘at 31/03/05° is in fact 81 5 September 2005,
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Ministerial pensions

3.154 Pension benefits for Ministers are provided by the Parliamentary Contributory
Pension Fund (PCPF). The scheme is statutory based (made under Statutory
Instrument S| 1993 No 3253, as amended).

3.155 Those Ministers who are Members of Parliament may also accrue an MP's
pension under the PCPF (details of which are not included in this report). The
arrangements for Ministers provide benefits on an "average salary” basis with
either a 1/50th or 1/40th accrual rate, taking account of all service as a Minister.
The accrual rate has been 1/40th since 15 July 2002 (or 5§ July 2001 for those that
chose to backdate the change) but Ministers, in common with all other employees
of the PCPF, can opt to for a 1/50th accrual rate and the lower rate of employee
contribution.

3.156 Benefits for Ministers are payable at the same time as MP's benefits
become payable under the PCPF or, for those who are not MPs, on retirement
from ministerial office from age 65. Pensions are increased annually in line with
changes in the Retail Prices Index. Members pay contributions of 6% of their
ministerial salary if they have opted for the 1/50th accrual rate. Those members
who have opted for the 1/40th accrual rate are required to pay an increased
contribution. The rate was increased from 9% to 10% from 1 April 2004. There is
also an employer contribution paid by the Exchequer representing the balance of
cost. This is currently 26.8% of the ministerial salary.

3.157 The accrued pension quoted is the pension the Minister is entitled to receive
when they reach 65, or immediately on ceasing to be an active member of the
scheme if they are already 65.

Civil Service Pensions

3.158 Pension benefits are provided through the Civil Service Pension (CSP)
arrangements. From 1 October 2002, civil servants may be in one of three
statutory based “final salary” defined benefit schemes (classic, premium, and
classic plus). The Schemes are unfunded with the cost of benefits met by monies
voted by Parliament each year. Pensions payable under classic, premium, and
classic plus are increased annually in line with changes in the Retail Price Index.
New entrants after 1 October 2002 may choose between membership of premium
or joining a good quality “money purchase” stakeholder arrangement with a
significant employer contribution (partnership pension account).

3.159 Employee contributions are set at the rate of 1.5% of pensionable earnings
for classic and 3.5% for premium and classic plus. Benefits in classic accrue at the
rate of 1/80th of pensionable salary for each year of service. In addition, a lump
sum equivalent to three years’ pension is payable on retirement. For premium,
benefits accrue at the rate of 1/60th of final pensionable earnings for each year of
service. Unlike classic, there is no automatic lump sum (but members may give up
lcommute) some of their pension to provide a lump sum). Classic plus is
essentially a variation of premium, but with benefits in respect of service before

1 October 2002 calculated broadly in the same way as classic.



Rermunaration repod

3.160 The partnership pension account is a stakeholder pension arrangement. The
employer makes a basic contribution of between 3% and 12.5% (depending on the
age of the member) into a stakeholder pension product chosen by the employee
from a selection of approved products. The employee does not have to contribute
but where they do make contributions, the employer will match these up to a limit
of 3% of pensionable salary (in addition to the employer’s basic contribution).
Employers also contribute a further 0.8% of pensionable salary to cover the cost of
centrally-provided risk benefit cover (death in service and ill health retirement).
There were no employer contributions to SCS partnership pension accounts during
the year.

3.161 Further details about the CSP arrangements can be found at the website
wiww.civilservice-pensions.gov.uk.

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

3.162 A CETV is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme
benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are
the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’'s pension payable from
the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scherme or arrangement 1o
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the
member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the
individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension
scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies.

The CETV figures, and from 2003-04 the other pension details, include the value
of any pension benefit in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has
transferred to the CSP arrangements and for which the CS vote has received a
transfer payment commensurate to the additional pension liabilities being
assumed. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member
as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at
their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework
prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Real increase in CETV

3.163 This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It does
not include the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by
the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension
scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start
and end of the period,
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Fees paid to Independent Board Members

3.164 Below are the fees paid to the independent members of the Department’s
Management and Strategy Boards. The total payments for the year to each person
were in the following ranges:

Figure 3.12

' Fess pad for independent membership of the Strategy Board until the Board was disbanded m Septembier 2006,

* Fees paid for ndependent membership of the Management Board and ax-officio membarship of the Audit and
Rizk Committes.

* Fees paid for mdependant membership of the Management Board and ax-officio Chair of the Investmant
Commiriee fthe Investment Commitiea was disbanded In June 2006),

* Fees paid for ndependant membership of the Management Board and ex-officio Chair of the Audit and Risk
Committas.
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Eﬂ_niur Civil Service Salaries

3.165 The table below shows the number of senior civil servants in each pay band
during the period 2003 - 2006.

Nate: bonuses are nat included and salary ranges represant full tme equivalent rates. These pay ranges only cover

those statf employed on open-endad contracts. ¥

—_—

Sir Brian Bender KCB
Principal Accounting Officer and Permanent Secretary
12 July 2007
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Section 3.8

Health and safety report

4

3.166 The Department understands and is committed to its responsibility to ensure
the health safety and welfare of its staff, contractors and visitors. The Department
aims to establish a strong health and safety culture that engages all employees in
achieving significant improvements in safety performance. During 2006-07 the
Department has continued to improve its performance and has worked with
Government Departments and other organisations to help improve overall

performance.

3.167 In support of this aim, the Department has focused its attention on the

following key initiatives:

e On-line Display Screen Equipment (DSE) training and self-assessment

software

¢ Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) requirements across the Departments

London estate

e Ashbestos management with specific focus on Kingsgate House,

Victoria St.

e The development of a more effective project safety management system,
to ensure compliance with new legislation

e The development of a more robust program on the management of

contractors

s The provision of working conditions and workplaces that comply with the
relevant statutory requirements, approved codes of practice

3.168 The Department’s Permanent Secratary is
ultirmataly rasponsible for health and safety in
the Departrment. For Departmeantal agencias this
responsibility is delegated to agency Chief
Executives who are responsible for all health and
safery matters in thair agency. Chief Executives
submit an annual report on health and safety 1o
their agency Steenng Boards. For the
Department’s headguarters, health and safety
rasponsibility is delegated to the Director
General, Services Group. The Director General
submits an annual report on healith and safety
covering the Depanment's headquarters to the
Daparimental Management Board.

3.169 The HSC guidance, Health and Safety in
Annual Reports (2004), has been utilised in the

5

preparation of this report as the Department
balisves that the aforementioned publication
seils a posiiive framework for health and safety
performance reporting and transparancy in
relation to nsk managemeant and associatad
internal control mecharsms,

3170 The Department’s health and safety
policies and practices are regularly reviewed
against those of other Government Departments
and the private sector. Accident stalistics are
collated and benchmarked against data published
by the Health and Safety Executive. Tha
Depariment strongly supports the Government's
Rewvitalising Health and Safety initiative, and
strives to ensure that health and safety
considerations are properly bult into its actions



3171 The Depariment has no fatality or
dangerous occurrence as defined under the
Reporting of injuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Oeceurrences Aegulations 1996 (RIDDOR), nor
been served with any health and safety
enforcement notice or convicted of any breach
of health and safety law.

3.172 Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) audits
were carried out at 1 Mictona 5t 10-18 Victoria
S1., Kingsgate Housa, 121 Bucking Palace Rd.
and Westheld House, As a result of these audits
minor works have been scheduled 1o ensure full
comphance with the DDA, An Asbestos (Type 2)
survey was undertaken of Kingsgate House
confirming the absence of Asbestos Containing

—————————

e e

Health and salety repart

hatarials [ACM'sh within the main work areas;
some suspected ACM's were detected in plant
room aregas that will be managed in compliance
with current UK legislation. With the focus on
the managament of contractors and the z
management of project work significant

improvements in safety end safety awareness

have been made within these areas. To improve
s management of DSE and comphance with
current DSE legistation the Department will ba
implementing an interactive on-ling DSE traming
and self assessment programme, Moving away
from the manual process currently in use.

Report
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Figure 3.14 RIDDOR reportable accidents
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Section 4.2

The resources available to the
Department

4

4.7 The Department operates within the wider Government financial
environment. The resources available to the Department and how it reports on and
is held accountable for these resources has to be seen within this environment.
This section sets out the broad principles of budgeting and accounting in
Government, explains some of the key terms which are used and explains how the
Department manages Its resources in this context.

The Spending Review process

4.8 The Spending Review (SR) is the process by which the Government sets
spending plans, usually for the coming three years. This determines the overall
control total, Total Managed Expenditure (TME). TME is made up of two
compenents, the Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL) and Annually Managed
Expenditure (AME). The DEL is set annually within the context of the Department’s
3 year SR settlement and AME is set in consultation with HM Treasury through
twice yearly reviews. The most recent review, SR 2004, was concluded in 2004
and covered the three-year period 2005-06, 2006-07 and 2007-08. This set the
Department’s budgets for these periods.

4.9 In July 2005 the Government announced that a Comprehensive Spending
Review 2007 (CSR07) would take place. As part of the CSR07 review, the
Department has been working closely with HM Treasury. It reached agreement on
its administration budgets, in line with the 2006 Pre-Budget Report announcement
that administration budgets across departments will be reduced by at least 5% n
real terms over the CSRO7 period. Early settlement of the 2008-11 science budget
was announced in the Chancellor's 2007 Budget which will ensure that total
science expenditure will rise on average by 2.7% annually, in real terms over the
CSR pericd. The Department’s non-science budget was settled on 27 June 2007,

From budgets to Estimates to accounts

4.10 The following paragraphs explain the process that the Department, in
common with other Government departments, goes through to obtain the
resources that are ultimately reported on in their Resource Accounts, as well as
explaining the differences between budgets, Estimates and the accounts.

The Department’s budget

4.11 The Departmental family measures and manages its expenditure through
budgets. The Department has two types of budgets which are described below:

e DEL, which the Department can largely control overall, though some
elements may be demand-led. It is set annually within the context of the



The resources available 10 the Departmiant

Department’s 3 year financial settlement, as set out in the Spending
Review,

e AME, which is demand-led and volatile and therefore difficult to predict.
AME budgets are set in consultation with HM Treasury through twice
yearly reviews, The majority of the Department’s AME expenditure relates
to nuclear provisions, coal health liabilities, Royal Mail restructuring costs,
the Post Office revolving loan and the Redundancy Payments Service.

4.12 Within DEL and AME there are resource budgets and capital budgets, which
are further broken down into administration and programme budgets.

4.13 The Department’s DEL budget for 2006-07 was £7,011.4 million (2005-06
£6,950.7 million) and the AME budget amounted to £517 million (2005-06
£25,186.8 million).2 Explanations for movements in budgets from year to year are
given in Chapter 6.

4.14 Some of the Department’s DEL and AME budgets are ring-fenced by HM
Treasury. 80% of the 2006-07 DEL was ring-fenced leaving only 20% (£1,388.5
million) available for discretionary allocation by the Department.

4,15 There are also further classifications of expenditure within resource budgets
termed ‘near cash’ and ‘non cash’. Near cash items are transactions that result in
real cash flows in the near future (accruals based) e.g. pay costs, purchases and
grants. Importantly it also includes cash expenditure against provisions (e.g. spend
to reduce coal health liabilities).

4.16 Non cash items are components of departments’ budgets that are included
to reflect the full economic cost of activities and the usage of long-term assets.
MNon cash items include depreciation, cost of capital, profit or loss on disposal of
balance sheet assets and changes in provisions.

4.17 The Department is responsible for all of the resources available to the
Departmental family. In order to meet this responsibility the Department has put in
place a strong budgetary control process.

4.18 The Department allocates budgets in March of each year and monitors them
on a monthly basis. Forecasts of expenditure are reviewed monthly and updated
where appropriate. More in-depth reviews of forecasts are carried out guarterly
with particular emphasis on end December reviews (as these are used by HM
Treasury as a basis for total spend across Government for the year) and end
February reviews (to identify changes to be made through the Spring
Supplementary Estimate). Updated information is then reported at corporate level
through the Department'’s financials which are presented to the Management
Board monthly by the Finance Director.

4,19 Budgets are usually amended via the Winter and Spring Supplementary
Estimates. Monthly budget monitoring helps to inform this process although formal
commissioning also takes place to gather full information on required changes.
Changes in Estimates impact the budgets directly with the exception of the
NDPBs, as the Estimates only reflect the grant in aid {cash) paid to these bodies.
The actual expenditure and income of these NDPBs is treated as non-voted

* Includes £24,300 million increase in provisions for the nuclear liabilities of the NDA
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(i.e. not voted by Parliament, as only the cash payments made to these bodies are
voted) and appears by way of a note in the Estimates.? A formal process ensures
that any required changes are captured. The Supplementary Estimates include
gaining access to funding from utilisation of end year flexibility which arises due to
savings achieved in previous years.

The Estimates process

4.20 Having set its budgets the Department has to request resources from
Parliament annually in order to formally fund the delivery of its objectives. Main
Estimates are the means by which departments seek parliamentary authority for
their spending each year.

4.21 The Estimates are made up of DEL, AME and ‘'non-budget’ requests i.e.
transactions which do not count as budgets due to their classification. The DEL and
AME relate to requests for expenditure and income recorded in the Statement of
Parliamentary Supply on page 202 of the Consolidated Resource Accounts. The
non-budaget requests largely relate to grant in aid (cash paid) which the Department
uses to fund its NOPBs.

4.22 In the context of the Estimates and Consolidated Resource Accounts, the
funding voted to Departments for their NDFPBs is only for the grant in aid payments
made to them,

4.23 The Government seeks approval from Parliament for its Main Estimates for
the year in April or May. Supplementary Estimates can then be submitted in the
summer, winter and spring. The Estimates follow a standard format, with one or
more Reguests for Resources (RfR), which set a limit on the resources required for
each main Departmental activity, a request for capital funding and a Net Cash
Reguiremeant (NCR), which represents the actual cash flowing out of the Exchequer
in order to fund the Department's activities.

4.24 Each RiR is accompanied by a formal description {ambit) of the services to be
financed under it. Money voted by Parliament should be used to finance services
that fall within the ambit of the RfR.

The accounts

4.25 The Department's total expenditure is covered by two RfRs and these are
reported on in its Consolidated Resource Accounts:

e RfR1 = increasing UK competitiveness; and

e RiR2 - increasing scientific excellence in the UK and maximising its
contribution to society.

4.26 It also has a separate Estimate and RfR for the effective management of the
UKAEA pension schemes. Copies of the UKAEA Pension Accounts are available at
www.ukaeapensions.org.uk.

4.27 At the end of the year the Department is required to report actual
expenditure against Estimates in its Consolidated Resource Accounts.

* Details of the Estimates can be found on the HM Treasury wabsite at hitphweew hme-treasuny.gsigov.uk
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ction 4.3
Financial Review

Y/

4.28 This section reviews the Department’s financials for 2006-07. It covers both
the performance of the consolidated Department in the context of the Resource
Accounts, and how the Department has performed compared to the final Estimate.

Reconciling Estimates, accounts and budgets

4.29 As explained earlier, adjustments are required to reconcile the different types
of resources included in the Department’s Estimates, accounts and budgets. The
table below includes the following reconciliations:

e Estimates to accounts — how the Net Resource Qutturn (voted by
Parliament), shown in the Statement of Parliamentary Supply on page 202
is reconciled to the Net Operating Cost which is shown in the Operating
Cost Statement in the Accounts on page 203 and

¢ Accounts to budgets — how the Net Operating Cost is reconciled to the
Resource Budget Qutturn shown in Chapter 6 on page 274.

Estimates 1o accounts

4.30 The Department’s Estimate is reconciled to the Net Operating Cost through
two adjustments. The first adjustment requires the inclusion of expenditure not
formally approved by Parliament in the Supply Estimates.? For the Department, this
is a combination of National Insurance Fund expenditure, the cast of capital credi
on the net liabilities of Royal Mail Holdings plc and the cost of capital charge on the
net assets of BNFL plc. Further details are provided in Note 3 to the Accounts. The
second adjustment requires the inclusion of Consolidated Fund Extra Receipts
{CFERs) which are classified as operating income and therefore included in Met
Operating Cost. These CFERs arise fromn the operating activities of the
Department, but are not used by the Department and are not classified as income
for Estimates purposes i.e. not included in Net Resource Outturn. The receipts are
paid directly to HM Treasury.

Accounts to budgets

4.31 The Net Operating Cost of the Department in the reporting period is
reconciled to the Department’s budget through the removal of cash payments to
the Department's NDPBs (mainly grant in aid), adjusting for capital grants; and the
inclusion of the NDPBs' income and expenditure on an accruals basis (resource
consumption). A further adjustment is made to eliminate those CFERs that are
classed as being outside of the budgeting boundary.

* House of Commans paper 293 (06/07)
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Disclosad in the Statament of Pariamentary Supply on paga 202 of the Accounts.
See Note 3 to the Accounts on page 216. i
Disciosed in the Operating Cost Statement on page 203 of the Accounts.

Where capiial receipis are greater than expenditure the adusiment will be positive,

Mainby grant in aid payments (o NDPEs.

Income and expenditure of HDPBs,

For 2006-07 other adiustments mainly relate to adjustments to the Aesource Account made after the
submission of budget outtums 1o mest the deadline for the Public Expenditure Outturr White Paper.

Total DT Resource AME cutturns as shown in Chapter 6 Tabbe 2; is E441 million. This includas £239 mallion in
respect of the UKAEA Superannuation Fund, the accounts of which are publishad separataly.

? See table 2 in Section 6.3,

The Primary Statements in the Consolidated Resource Accounts

4.32 The primary statements in the Consolidated Resource Accounts comprise:
the Statement of Parliamentary Supply; the Operating Cost Statement; the
Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses; the Balance Sheet; the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement; and the Consolidated Statement of Operating Costs by
Departmental Aim and Objectives,

Statement of Parliamentary Supply

4.33 This is the accountability statement for parliamentary reporting purposes.

It records the net resource outturn compared to Estimate and only includes
expenditure and income (Appropriations in Aid) allowable against the Estimate.
Explanation of why the outturn in 2006-07 was different from the Estimate is given
in paragraph 4.26. This statement also includes a comparison of non-operating cost
Appropriations in Aid with the amount voted by Parliament in the Estimate, and
discloses amounts payable to the Consolidated Fund as Extra Receipts (CFERs).
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e There was lower than expected net expenditure on Corporate Activity and
the Insolvency Framework, which amounted to £15 million (25%). The
variance was due to an under spend by the Insolvency Service, partly as a
result of additional fee income.

e There was a £322 million (17%) under spend on the Department’s Assets
and Liabilities during the reporting period. This was largely due to the
reduced grant in aid requirement of the Nuclear Decommissioning
Authority (NDA), as a result of utilisation of existing cash reserves, and a
rigorous cost control exercise resulting in deferring some spend te 2007-
08 and re-prioritising and re-phasing other activities. This also led to a
shortfall in income against Estimate, which mitigated the variance to some
extent. The non cash costs associated with Coal Health provisions were
also iower than anticipated,

e The lower than expected outturn for Nuclear Security and Export Control
which amounted to nearly £7 million (11%) arose due to slippage in
expenditure on nuclear support to the former Soviet Union, and reduced
grant in aid requirerments of the Civil Nuclear Police Authority.

e There was a lower than expected requirement for expenditure for
Activities in Support of all Objectives. The under spend of approximately
£65 million (21%) arose mainly as a result of savings on accommaodation
costs and the costs of IT services, and greater than anticipated savings on
restructuring costs. The expenditure for the year also includes a cost of
capital credit in respect of working capital balances, for which no provision
was made in the Estimate.

¢ The variance relating to Office of Science and Innovation initiatives of
£2 million (23%) was mainly due to slippage in new science reviews and
international partnership projects, and in the late adoption of framework
programmes during the reporting period.

Operating Cost Statement

4.37 The Operating Cost Statement is similar to an income and expenditure
Account in not-for-profit bodies and includes all operating income and expenditure
relating to the consolidated bodies on an accruals accounting basis, including that
which sits outside of the Estimate. Apart from the additional income arising from
the receipt of a special dividend from BNFL plc (£1,800 million), the consolidated
net operating cost for the reporting period of £4,266 million is broadly similar to the
consolidated restated net operating cost for 2005-06 (E5,644 million).

4.38 The differences between net operating cost and net resource outturn are
disclosed in Mote 3 to the accounts. The main differences relate to expenditure for
the redundancy payments payable from the National Insurance Fund, the cost of
capital credit on the net liabilities of Royal Mail Holdings plc; the cost of capital
charge on the net assets of BNFL plc which are not included in the Estimates; and
income payable to the Consolidated Fund for a special dividend from BNFL plc.

4.39 Operating income includes dividends declared by Companies House and the
Patent Office. These dividends represent the return on investment of Public
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Dividend Capital (PDC), as shown in Note 16 of the accounts. The Companies
House dividend is expected to be £2 million, representing a return of 3.5% on the
Companies House average capital employed. The Patent Office dividend is
expected to be £2 .8 million representing a return of 4% of the Patent Office's
average capital employed.

4.40 Grant in aid and other grants represented nearly 91% of gross expenditure
for programmes in 2006-07.

Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses

4.41 This statement reflects the unrealised element of revaluations to fixed assets
and investments. These gains have not been reflected in the Operating Cost
Statement. The large gain on investments is mainly due to gains on the coal
pension investment reserves.

Balance Sheet

4.42 The Balance Sheet discloses the assets and liabilities of the Department at
the balance sheet date. The main changes in the Department’s assets and liabilities
during the year are described below. The Department had Total Net Liabilities of
(£203 million) in 2005-06. This has changed to a position of Total Net Assets of
£2.407 million, a net increase in asset value of £2,610 million. The main reasons for
this change relate to the increase in the valuation of Coal Pension Investments
(£1,286 million), following the Government Actuary Department (GAD) triennial
valuations and subsequent releases from the Guaranteed Fund; an increase in the
Department’s investments in Royal Mail Holdings plc (£430 million), and a net
reduction in provisions (£769 million). More detail is set out below and in the notes
to the Accounts.

4.43 There have been a number of disposals of assets in-year. The most
significant disposals were the ligquidation of the Nuclear Liability Investment
Portfolio and the repayment of the BNFL Debenture. These movements were
matched by a corresponding reduction in liabilities to the Consolidated Fund.
These movements in aggregate therefore have a net nil effect. Further information
can be found in paragraphs 4547, below and in Notes 16 and 19 of the Accounts.

4.44 Tangible fixed assets increased by £26 million reflecting a small reduction in
the assets of the Department’s agencies and a £31 million increase in assets in the
core Department. Increases in the core Department’s assets resulted from an
increase in assets under construction including additional work on the National
Physical laboratory, improvements to buildings on the Departmental estate and
spend on major IT projects,

Nuclear Liabilities Investment Portfolio (NLIP)

4.45 Following the transfer of the responsibility for the discharge of the nuclear
liabilities to the NDA, the Nuclear Liabilities Investment Portfolio and the Springfield
Investments (known together as the NLIP) passed to the Government. The
investment was remitted to the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry and
returned to the Consolidated Fund once sold. The market valuation of the NLIF, as
at 31 March 2006, was £3,706 million. The portfolio was fully iguidated as at 31
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March 2007. The amount realised from the sale during 2006-07 was £3,767 million
and all proceeds were surrendered to the Consolidated Fund.

BNFL Debenture and Special Dividend

4.46 On 1 April 2005, BNFL issued a debenture for £5675 million to the Secretary
of State for Trade and Industry, under Schedule 6 of the Energy Act. Although the
final redemption date was not until 31 March 2012, BNFL repaid £19 million of its
debenture plus interest in May 2006, a further £8 million was repaid in September
2006 and, following the sale of its Westinghouse subsidiary in October 2008, the
remaining balance of £523 million was repaid. The BNFL debenture provided a
mechanism for returning the proceeds of disposals from the BNFL Group to the
Government and incentivised its management to maximize cash generation and
reduce the outstanding amount of the debenture, so reducing the Group’s interest
payments.

4.47 Westinghouse, the power station construction arm of BNFL, was sold to
Toshiba in February 2007. The Deparment received £1.8 billion, by way of special
dividend, from BNFL on 19 February 2007. This dividend payment is treated as
operating income in the Department’s Accounts and the cash was paid to the
Consolidated Fund.

Royal Mail Holdings Ple

4.48 Royal Mail Holdings plc is a company that is wholly owned by Government.
Its core operating subsidiary is Royal Mail Group Limited (mails business). Post
Office Limited (POL) is the subsidiary of the Group that provides the post office
network arm of the business. The Government has provided financial support to
the Royal Mail Group of companies via three different routes — equity injection,
debt financing and subsidy payment.

Equity injection

4.49 Further investments into Royal Mail were made by the Department during
the year when the Department purchased 5 shares at a total cost of

£430.27 million increasing the equity from £0.05 million to £430.32 million. The
primary purpose of this was to inject funds into POL as part of the 2002-03 POL
funding agreement, approved by the EU Commission.

Debt financing

450 On 6 February 2001 Royal Mail utilised a £500 million National Loans Fund

(NLF) loan facility that was made available to it, to assist with the company’s
acquisitions which included German Parcel, The facility comprises 20 separate
tranches of £25 million each, the first tranches of which do not begin to mature

until 20 March 2021. Therefore the outstanding balance for this NLF loan on '
31 March 2007 remains at the full £500 million. Royal Mail makes bi-annual interest
payments on the loan amounting to £29.17 million per annum. '

4.51 At the end of 2002, the Government agreed a financing package with the |
Royal Mail mails business. This package initially comprised £1,044 million of debt q
finance from Government (subsequently reducing to £844 million) on commercial

terms to provide Royal Mail with access to funds to assist it in delivering its 3 year 1
restructuring programme for the mails business. ]
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4.52 On 26 March 2007 the Secretary Of State confirmed via written statement to
Parliament finalisation of a new financing framework for Royal Mail. Part of this
framewaork includes new debt facilities of £900 million to be provided by the NLF on
commercial terms (comprising a revolving facility of up to £300 million and a 13
separate facility of up to £600 million}). This new package replaces and increases the g s
current package agreed in 2002 (for borrowing facilities of £844 million) and these - §
debt facilities are further supplemented by a £300 million shareholder loan, also to
be provided on commercial terms. The agreed package will allow the company to
embark on an investment programme so that it can further transform its
effectiveness and secure the efficiency improvements required under the latest
regulatory settlement. The new debt facilities became effective from 23 March
2007, but had not been utilised before 31 March 2007.

Parformance
Report
Pages 14-113

453 The Department has also made available to POL, through an agreement
reached on 17 October 2003, a revolving loan facility based on commercial terms
of up to £1.15 billion. This is to help the company fund its working capital
requirements in light of the migration of state benefits to a system of direct
payment and the loss of pre-funding to POL from the Department of Work and
Pensions, alongside a Government commitment that benefit recipients will still be
able to collect their benefit, in cash and in full, from Post Office branches, POL
began utilising this facility on 1 December 2003, The facility matures on 31 March
2010 by when any outstanding amounts will need to have been repaid.

The outstanding balance as at 31 March 2007 was £400 million,

|
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Subsidy payment

4.54 In October 2002 the Department secured Parliamentary approval for funding
of up to £210 million for POL's Urban Network Reinvention Scheme, to implement
its programme to restructure the network of urban sub-post offices. Funding is
provided under Section 8 of the Industrial Development Act 1982 and the scheme,
which is administered by POL, is UK-wide and applicable only to urban offices
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located in communities of more than 10,000 inhabitants. To date a total of £182.9

million has been provided by Government (£4.1 million in 2006-07) funding almost 2
4,000 grants and enabling 2,486 closures. The Department will monitor the take up 8 g:_?:
of residual investment grant funding. There is no set end date for the scheme, § § g
though it is now expected that any remaining funds will not be made available 8L
beyond 2007-08.

455 From 2003-04 the Government made available a subsidy known as the Social oum
Network Payment, aimed at supporting the provision of rural post offices by Eh
helping to cover POL's costs of keeping open non-commercial branches. This =
funding arrangement has received State Aid approval up until the end of 2007-08 iﬁ
and in recent years the required payments have been at an annual level of E.§

£150 million. On 17 May 2007, the Government published its response to a recent e
consultation on any new arrangements to be applied beyond 2007-08.

pa—
European Commission state aid investigation

4.56 The European Commission will be examining some aspects of the support &
package provided by the Government to Royal Mail, to determine whether they 85
constitute state subsidies or whether they meet ‘'market investor’ conditions. %
Broadly speaking, provision of funding on terms which would be acceptable to a b —
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private investor operating in a market economy is not considered to be state aid.
The Department is clear that it has taken appropriate steps to ensure that all areas
under examination represent funding on commercial terms.

Coal Pension Investment Reserve

457 The Investment Reserves are Government assets held within the closed coal
pension schemes. There are two schemes, the British Coal Staff Superannuation
Scheme and the Mineworkers Pension Scheme (BCSSS and MPS). As part of coal
privatisation the Government guaranteed members’ pension entitiements. The coal
pension schemes themselves are currently fully funded. The investment reserves
exist as a guarantee for the Government in case this situation were to change.

4.58 If the funds do fall into deficit then the Government pays money into the
funds from the investment reserves to make this up. If, at a future point in time
the funds then return to surplus then these monies lent to the funds must be
repaid to the investment reserves (together with any capital gain made on the
funds in this time).

4.59 When the previous triennial actuarial valuations of the schemes were carried
out in 2002 and 2003 for BCSSS and MPS the schemes were in deficit.

The Government conseguently lent the schemes £575 million to cover these
deficits. Both the funds have received their updated triennial valuation in 2006-07
and following the recovery in the global equity values the schemes are in surplus
and the Government can be paid back its loan (together with the capital gain on it
in that time). The repayment received in 2006-07 was £970 million.

4,60 \When the guarantee was negotiated in 1894, the Government agreed to
leave the Investment Reserves in these pension schemes until at least 2013 on
the basis that they would be gradually drawn down to nil over the period, with
withdrawals likely 10 be weighted towards the second half of the 25 year period.
Any withdrawals are at the discretion of GAD, which acts as the scheme actuary.

4,61 Further detail on the investments and the pension scheme accounts can be
found in Note 16 to the accounts.

4.62 In return for acting as guarantor on the schemes the Government is entitled
to 50% of any surplus made on the funds from which the guaranteed pensions are
paid. This money is held in a separate fund and is released over a 10 year period.
In 2006-07 the fund increased by £679.2 million through a combination of transfers
from the Guaranteed Fund and the revaluation of exisiting funds. £669 million was
released to the Guarantor. Further details on these funds can be found in Note 19
to the accounts.

Coal Frovisions

4.63 The liabilities of British Coal transferred to the Department on 1 January 1998
{under the terms of the Coal Industry Act 1994). There are two schemes to
compensate coal miners and their families in relation to respiratory disease (chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease) and Vibration White Finger (VWF). The liabilities in
relation to these provisions as at 31 March 2007 were £682 million and £273
million respectively. The schemes are now closed to new claimants. Around
762,000 claimants have been registered in both schemes.
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4.64 Coal provisions reduced by £688 million, mainly due to a reduction in the
chronic obstructive pulmenary disease (COPD) provision of £5627 million due to
payments of claims totalling £522 million and a small decrease in the provision
based on the model used to predict future cash flows. This scheme closed in
2004. With the exception of concessionary fuel which increased by £53 million all
other coal provisions have decreased.

4.65 Handling agreements for the two schemes were negotiated with a group of
solicitors (for each disease) who were the chosen representatives for the large
numbers of firms involved. The agreements are necessarily complex as they define
exactly how claims will be dealt with by claimants’ solicitors, the Department’s
claims handlers, the medical assessors etc. They specify the compensation a
claimant would have expected to get if he had pursued his claim under common
law through the courts. They give claimants a fair entitlement tailored to reflect
their disability. They are not flat rate schemes and reflect other factors set out in
the Court judgements.

4.66 Additionally there is a further health provision, which incorporates other
injury-related compensation claims such as deafness, accidents and miscellanecus
diseases. This also covers payments under British Coal's Pneumonoconiosis
Compensation Scheme and associated administration costs of managing the health
claims. The value of the provision as at 31 March 2007 was £181 million.

4.67 Apart from the health provisions, the Department has a responsibility to
provide either solid fuel or a cash alternative to over 102,000 beneficiaries.
Approximately three quarters of these have opted for the cash alternative which is
index-linked to fuel and light prices. The value of the provision as at 31 March 2007
is estimated to be £405 million; payments in the year amounted to £47 million.

Other provisions

4.68 Other provisions (SFLG, UKAEA restructuring, Early Retirement and British
Shipbuilders), have reduced by £49 million, mainly due to the change in the SFLG,
where volumes of loans fell significantly duning 2006-07.

Revaluation reserve

4.69 The revaluation reserve, which records gains/losses on revaluation of assets
in the period, shows a £1.3 billion increase; largely due to gains arising in the year
on coal pensions. This was primarily due to the results of the 2005-06 triennial
actuarial valuations of the two schemes, BCSSS and the MPS, which were
completed in September 2006 and February 2007 and which revealed substantial
surpluses,

Cash Flow Statement

4.70 The Department also has to estimate how much cash it is going to need in
the year — the Net Cash Requirement. The Net Cash required to fund the
Department’s activities during 2006-07, as shown in Note 27 to the Cash Flow
Statement, amounted to £7,375 million compared to an Estimate of £8,890 millon,
an underspend of £1,515 million.
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4.71 Explanations for significant variances (+/-10%) between actual {outturn) and
Estimate Net Cash Requirement are as follows:

e Capital investments were £4,004 million (31%) less than anticipated
because the Estimate provided for the maximum permissible gross
borrowing (at £12,990 million} by the Royal Mail under its working capital
facility. Qutturns at £8,590 million were much lower than this limit. This was
also the reason why MNon-operating Appropriations in Aid (A in A)
investrnents were £3,320 million (28%) lower than anticipated.

e MNon-cash iterns. The variance reflects a larger movement in British Energy
provisions than was anticipated in Estimates. Additionally, the Insolvency
Service wrote off a balance of £12 million in respect of irrecoverable case
administration fee income; and there was a larger cost of capital credit due
to the charge on the net assets/liabilities of the public corporations. These
were offset to some extent by lower than anticipated rises in the SFLG
and Coal Health provisions.

e Changes in working capital and changes in creditors falling due within one
year resulted in a greater movement than anticipated of £56 million.
This was mainly due to an increase in debtors and prepayments, after
taking out the movement in creditors relating to the liquidation of the NLIP
and the repayment of the BNFL debenture, the proceeds of which were
paid to the Consoclidated Fund.

e Use of provisions. The variance is primarily due to lower than anticipated
spend on coal health provisions, where claims were paid at a lower rate
than originally anticipated owing to the volume and complexity of claims
received,

Statement of Operating Cost by Departmental Aim and Objectives

4.72 The Statement of Operating Costs by Departmental Aim and Objectives
shows how resources, as set out in the Operating Cost Statement, have been
deployed to each of the Department’s objectives.

Other information

Restatement of prior year comparatives

4.73 In accordance with the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual (FReM),
where functions are transferred between Government Departments they are
accounted for using merger accounting. Prior-year comparative figures are restated
to reflect this. The 2005-06 transactions and balances in these accounts have been
restated to reflect the transfer of the Employment Tribunal Service (ETS) to the
Ministry of Justice, to become part of the new Tribunals Service; the transfer of
the Engineering Inspectorate Directorate to the Health and Safety Executive, part
of the Department for Work and Pensions; the transfer of the Equal Opportunities
Commission and Womaen and Equality Unit, to the Department for Communities
and Local Government; and the transfer of the Social Enterprise Unit to the
Cabinet Office,
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Finarcial Review

Risks and uncertainties that might affect the Department’s long-term position

4.74 The Management Board reviews each month the Department’s principal risks
that might impact on the organisation’s position either in the immediate or long-
term future. During the year these risks have included:

e potential major company failures;

e security of energy supply;

® better regulation;

e LUK energy policy;

e science and innovation funding;

* Royal Mail;

* Nuclear Decommissioning Authority;
¢ Companies Act implementation;

e budget funding;

¢ the implications of Machinery of Government (MoG} changes.

The policy for managing risks is outlined in the Department’s Statement on Internal
Control on pages 194 to 198.

Liquidity and currency risks

4.75 The Department has no borrowings and relies primarily on voted funds from
Parliament for its cash requirements. It is therefore not exposed to liquidity risk. It
has no material deposits so it is not exposed to interest rate risk and all matenal
assets and liabilities are denominated in sterling so it is not exposed to material
currency risk, Further disclosures are provided in Note 32 to these accounts.

Pension liabilities

4.76 The Department’s staff can become members of the Principal Civil Service
Pension Scheme (PCSPS). The Department’s employer’s contributions into the
scheme are reflected in the Resource Accounts within staff costs.

4.77 The PCSPS is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme and the
Department is consequently unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities. There is therefore no reflection of the scheme on the Department’s
Balance Sheet. Further details can be found in Note 9 to the accounts.

Payment of suppliers

4.78 The Department’s policy is to comply with the Better Payment Practice Code,
which includes the Late Payments of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1988. The
Departrment’s standard terms and conditions for the supply of goods or services
specify payment within 30 days, or other agreed credit terms, of receipt of goods
or services or a valid invoice, whichever is the later. In 2006-07, the core
Department paid 98.3% of undisputed invoices within the 30 days (93.9% in 2005-
‘06) and is currently working with relevant staff and suppliers to improve this rate.
The consolidated Department paid 98.1% of undisputed invoices within 30 days
95.7% in 2005-06).
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4.79 During 2006-07 the Department paid a total of £1,139 (2005-06 £4,054) to
suppliers for the late payment of invoices.

Post balance sheet events

Sale of British Energy interests

480 On 1 June 2007 the Nuclear Liabilities Fund (NLF), a Central Government
body, in which the Department has an interest, but which is not consolidated in the
Accounts (as it is outside the accounting boundary), converted and sold 450 million
shares in British Energy Group plc (BE) at £5.20 per share realising £2.3 billion,
reducing the NLF's interest in BE from 64% to 36%. The Department estimates
that the contingent asset disclosed on page 254 to the accounts has increased 1o
£2.6 billion as a result of this transaction. The increase in the contingent asset is
principally driven by the value of BE shares which increased between the year end
and the date of sale.

4.81 The Department’s Interest in British Energy arises from its relationship with
the NLF. The NLF is considered to be a 100% subsidiary of the Department and BE
is a B4% quasi-subsidiary of NLF and hence the Department. In accordance with
the FReM, these bodies are not consolidated into the Departmental Resource
Accounts, but information on the assets and liabilities, and results, of the two
bodies is provided in Note 16. BE makes contributions into the NLF to meet future
decommissioning and uncontracted liabilities costs. One of these contributions 1s
referred to as the cash sweep payment. During 2006-07, its inflows included 65%
of the free cash from BE (cash sweep) plus returns on its investments. Its liabilities
are the estimated, discounted costs of decommissioning.

Technology Strategy Board

4.82 The March 2006 Budget stated that the advisory Technology Strategy Board
(TSB) would be given a wider remit to stimulate business innovation in those areas
that offered the greatest scope for boosting growth and productivity, and that it
should be set up at arm'’s length to the Government. In November 2006, the
Secretary of State announced that the new TSB would be an executive NDPB,
based in Swindon.

4.83 Following debates in both Houses of Parliament, an Order in Council

establishing the TSB under the Science and Technology Act was approved by the
Privy Council in February 2007, and the Royal Charter incorporating the body was
printed and sealed on 27 March 2007. The new body was formed on 2 July 2007,

The Science and Technology Facilities Council

4.84 The Science and Technology Facilities Council (STFC), a new research council
resulting from the merger of the Particle Physics and Astronomy Research
Councils (PPARC) and the Council for the Central Laboratory of the Research
Council (CCLRC), was formed by Royal Charter, with NDPB status, on 1 April 2007.
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Post Office Network Support

4.85 On 14 December 2006 the Department launched a 12 week national
gonsultation on proposals for the future of the Post Office network. The
consultation closed on 8 March 2007 having attracted some 2,500 responses. The
Department published its response on 17 May 2007 announcing investment of up
to £1.7 billion, subject to EC State Aid clearance; the compensated closure of a
maximum of 2,500 branches, partly offset by 500 new Qutreach sites; and the
introaduction of minimum access criteria. The Government's package is aimed at
maintaining a national network and placing it on a sustainable footing for the
longer term.

Small Business Service

4.86 The Secretary of State announced in Parliament in October 2006 that the
Small Business Service (SBS) would become a smaller, sharply focused policy unit

with close links with business and with other parts of Government. The SBS would

no longer deliver services. Wherever possible, support programmes would be run
by its delivery partners close to customers, regionally or locally. SBS would no
longer need the status of being an executive agency. In April 2007 it started
operating as a policy unit within the Department’s Enterprise and Business Group.

Machinery of Government changes

4.87 Following an announcement by the Prime Minister on 28 June 2007 about
the way Government is organised, the Department ceased to operate as the DTI.
The Department for Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform (BERR) was
created. The successor Department will assume much of the work of the DTI,

At the same time the Department for Innovation, Universities and Skills was
established, which will take forward the science and innovation aspects of the
DTI's work. These changes alsc resulted in changes to Ministerial responsibilities.

Auditors

488 These financial statements have been audited, under the Government
Resources and Accounts Act 2000, by the Comptroller and Auditor General
(C&AG), who is appeinted under statute and reports to Parliament. The audit
opinion is on pages 199 to 201. The notional cost to the Department of the
external audit of the core account by the National Audit Office for the C&AG was
£266,000 (2005-06 — £242,000). The total cost of work on the Consolidated
Account was £348,000 (2005-06 — £343,000).

489 The NAO also completed other work relating to the core Department’s
activities. The main areas of work where subsequent reports were published by
the Public Accounts Committee during 2006-07 or subsequently were as follows:

e The Closure of MG Rover report noted that the collapse of MG Rover cost
the taxpayer some £270 million. The Department responded effectively
where it had contingency plans, for example arranging the immediate
support for former employees following the collapse, but needed 1o
strengthen its approach on some other aspects. The various bodies did
well to respond quickly and effectively in the immediate aftermath of the
company collapse (PAC Report HC 1003 issued 25 July 2006).
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& The Small Business Service (SBS) report noted that the Service is being
reformed as a smaller policy unit within the Department. It found that the
Government's support network of around 3,000 national, regional and local
programmes was too large and complex and noted the Government’s
intention to cut the number to fewer than 100, It found that the SBS, and
the Government as a whole, had not been able te evaluate fully enough its
impact against Government aims and objectives for the sector (PAC
Report HC 262 issued 6 February 2007).

e The termination of the PFI Contract for the National Physical Laboratory
report found that the Department handled the termination of the contract
well but noted that the project had incurred extra costs of some
£10 million, plus a delay of five years or more. The Department too readily
assumed that the winning bidder would be able to meet the exceptionally
demanding specification for this state-of-the-art scientific facility. The
report recommended that public sector clients should always satisfy
themselves that contractors have the technical and financial capacity to
handle the degree of project risk which they undertake to bear (PAC
Report HC 359 issued 27 February 2007).

4.90 During 2006-07, and subsequently the NAC also published reports on:

e Big science: public investment in large scientific facilities, published in
January 2007. The C&AG found current planning and delivery
arrangements should yield a significant contribution to development of the
nation’s scientific infrastructure. However some project teams have
underestimated the likely running costs of facilities, and the economic
potential of facilities was less fully analysed than scientific opportunities.

e The Shareholder Executive and Public Sector Business, published in
February 2007. The C&AG concluded that the Shareholder Executive had
improved Government's performance as owner of public businesses and
was already providing some real financial gains for the public sector.
However, increasing the Executive’s powers, such as expanding its remit
to cover all public sector businesses and giving it greater independence,
could enhance its future effectiveness.

4.91 In addition, the NAQ is currently engaged on work in the following main
dreas:

e the Department’s administration of the Coal Health Compensation
Schemes; and

e the site management contracts of the Nuclear Decommissioning
Authority, a non-departmental public body sponsored by the Department.
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Section 5.1
Introduction

2

5.1 These Accounts have been prepared in accordance with directions issued
by HM Treasury in pursuance of Section 5(2) of the Government Resource and
Accounts Act 2000.

5.2 The Department's operational perfarmance for 2006-07 is covered in

Chapters 1 to 3 of this Report. A commentary about the Department’s financial
performance in the year, together with an explanation of how bodies within the
Departmental family are represented in these accounts is provided in Chapter 4.

5.3 These Resource Accounts detail the resources acquired, held or disposed of
during the year and the use of resources by the Department and the consolidating
entities during the reporting period, The Department's Consolidated Resource
Accounts comprise of the following sections:

¢ Statement of Accounting Officer’s responsibilities — sets out the
Accounting Officer’s responsibilities with regard to the preparation of
these Resource Accounts;

* Statement on internal control - explains how the Department maintains
a sound system of internal control to enable it to achieve its objectives;

e Comptroller and Auditor General's (C&AG) Certificate and Report on
the Accounts to the House of Commons;

¢ Primary Statements and Notes to the accounts - the Departmental
Consolidated Resource Accounts for 2006-07 with accompanying notes.
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Statement of Accounting Officer’s

responsibilities

-

Under the Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000, HM Treasury has
directed the Department of Trade and Industry to prepare, for each financial year,
resource accounts detailing the resources acquired, held or disposed of during the
year and the use of resources by the Department during the year. The accounts
are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Department and of its net resource outturn, resources applied to
objectives, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the
requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to:

® observe the Accounts Direction issued by HM Treasury including the
relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis;

® make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

e state whether applicable accounting standards, as set out in the
Government Financial Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose
and explain any material departures in the accounts; and

e prepare the accounts on a going concern basis.

HM Treasury has appointed the Permanent Secretary of the Department as
Accounting Officer of the Department. The responsibilities of an Accounting
Officer, including responsibility for the propriety and regularity of the public
finances for which the Accounting Officer is answerable, for keeping proper
records and for safeguarding the Department of Trade and Industry’s assets, are
set out in the Accounting Officers’ Memorandum issued by HM Treasury and
published in Government Accounting.
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Statemnt on Internal control

| worked with Ministers and the Department’s top management through the
Management Board, other meetings and correspondence. | involved Ministers in
the management of risk at a strategic level, considering major factors that could
have prevented departmental objectives being achieved.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control was designed to manage risk to a reasonable

level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
ohjectives; it could therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

of effectiveness. The system of internal control was based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achieverment of departmental
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control was in place in the Department of
Trade and Industry for the year ended 31 March 2007 and up to the date of approval
of the annual report and accounts, and accorded with HM Treasury guidance.

Capacity to handie risk

The Management Board took the lead in embedding risk management in the
organisation by reviewing and updating the key external and internal risks facing
the Department each month. The Board also began an exercise to identify long
term risks that may have posed a significant threat to the Department in the future.
These risks were recorded on a long term risk register and the intention is that
they will be reviewed every six months in BERR. Should the threat increase, then
these risks will either be escalated to the BERR Management Board or relevant
Group Board risk register for appropriate action to be taken.

The Audit and Risk Committee also endorsed an action plan to further embed good
risk management practice within the Department’s processes and systems, and

to support Innovation through well managed risk taking. Work to establish this
position will continue in BERR and focus on those areas identified as still most in
need of improvermnent. This will include giving further consideration to risk tolerance
where the focus will be on practical examples of how it can be applied in practice
thus making it easier to communicate its relevance to staff.

Guidance was available to all staff on risk management through the nisk
management intranet site. In addition to a risk management policy, specific
guidance was available on undertaking risk self assessment which includes
guidance on applying risk management as an integral part of the Department’s
business planning process. Risk management workshops were available to all staff
and practical guidance on its application had been incorporated into a wide range of
training courses. These courses covered all ranges of staff in the Department and
were tailored to be appropriate to their authority and duties.

The risk and control framework

The risk management framework for the Department operated through the initial
identification of nisks, as part of the business planning process, which threatened
achievement of the Department’s objectives. These risks were then evaluated
in terms of impact and probability. Consideration was then given to the actions
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Staternant on internal control

Departmental Resource Accounts but where these bodies participated in the
delivery of Departmental objectives. Monitoring arrangements were in place as
needed for other bodies where the Department had lead policy within Government.

The Audit and Risk Committee provided independent advice on internal control
1Issues and the progress being made in embedding risk management within the
organisation. The Audit and Risk Committee advised on the Internal Audit woark
programme. | attended most meetings of the committee and maintained a regular
dialogue with the Chairman. The Chairman also sat as an Independent Board
Member on the Management Board.

Internal Audit operated to requirements defined in the Government Internal Audit
Standards. Their audit programme was focused around the Department’s key nisks
and they submitted regular reports on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
control together with recommendations for improvement. The Director of Internal
Audit provided me with an annual report, which contained an independent opinion
on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control.

There were no significant internal control issues during the course of 2006-
07. Where weaknesses in the control environment were identified, action to
strengthen control had been taken or was planned.

The 2005-06 review of the effectiveness of internal control highlighted some
control issues where further improvement was required. The following progress
had been made:

e The Department established its "Top 20" priorities for 2007-08 and
each Group identified, as part of business planning, their key activities
and projects thus enabling the Department to improve its allocation of
resource. The “Top 20" priorities will continue (as appropriate following
the Machinery of Government changes) in BERR.

e The Department introduced Professional Skills for Government (PSG) to
Senior Civil Service staff and those in Band C. Plans are in place to roll
PSG out to the rest of staff in BERR.

e The Department reported a number of examples of good risk management
in its last report to Treasury thereby demonstrating the increased maturity
of the Department’s risk management capability.

e The Department developed a long term risk register to assist the
organisation in improving its horizon scanning capability. This will continue
to be maintained in BERR.

The awareness and application of risk management continued o Improve across
the Department. For 2007-08, BERR will operate a new performance management
framework to strengthen reporting against the business plan. Quarterly Board
reviews will seek to take a more balanced view of performance and will
cancentrate on key priorities such as the "Top 207, Public Service Agreements and
the Balanced Scorecard. The Board will continue to review key risks each month
and Directors General will also be asked to take account of risk developments in
relation to the “Top 20" and key projects and escalate to the Board's attention
where appropriate. Groups will review performance across the full range of the
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BERR's business each quarter with risks and issues needing the Board's attention
being escalated by exception. These reviews will be supplemented with more
intensive reviews at half-year and year-end.

Other matters relevant to my statement

During this accounting period the Design Council implemented a 6.86% pay
ramit for 2005-06 without Ministerial approval. Retrospective approval was not
granted for the full pay remit, but for a pay remit of 3.5% instead. Following
careful consideration of the facts, the Minister decided not to take punitive action
in the form of a financial penalty, On instructions of the Department, the Design
Council have recruited a qualified accountant to ensure HM Treasury guidance is
adhered to in future. The Design Council have also modified their audit and risk
management processas,

Delays in the implementation of the Companies House Information Processing
System (CHIPS) have resulted in the timescale being extended into 2007-08. An
impairment review of the capitalised project cost for CHIPS was carried out at year
end which resulted in a write down in the value of the assets of £7.5 million. With
£4.6 million written off during 2005-06, the total impairment for which there has
been no appreciable benefit is now £12.1 million. The programme continues to be
challenging and further risks remain but actions have been agreed to mitigate or
provide contingencies for these risks.

Following a decision taken by Insolvency Service to terminate the contract for the
development and procurement of the CAMEQ |IT system on the basis that it was
unlikely to succeed, the Service has written off a capitalised balance of £3.4 million
representing the associated assets under construction. Over the life of the project,
the Service expended a total of £7.64 million under the CAMEQO contract for which
it received little appreciable benefit.

There are no significant internal control problems in the Department’'s Agencies
and NDPBs that impact on the Department’s Resource Accounts.

o

—

e

Sir Brian Bender KCB
Principal Accounting Officer and Permanent Secretary

12 July 2007
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| read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether
it is consistent with the audited financial statements, | consider the implications
for my certificate if | become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. My responsibilities do not extend to
any other information.

Basis of audit opinions

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing

(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. My audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts, disclosures
and regularity of financial transactions included in the financial statements and the
part of the Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgments made by the Accounting Officer in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are most appropriate 1o the Department’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

| planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which | considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part
of the Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error, and that in all material respects the expenditure
and income have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. In forming my
opinion | also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinions
Audit Opinion
In my opinion:

¢ the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with
the Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000 and directions made
thereunder by HM Treasury, of the state of the Department’s affairs as at
31 March 2007, and the net cash requirement, net resource outturn, net
operating cost, operating costs applied to objectives, recognised gains and
losses and cash flows for the year then ended,;

e the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be
audited have been properly prepared in accordance with HM Treasury
directions issued under the Government Resources and Accounts Act
2000; and

¢ information given within the Annual Report, which comprises section 3.1,
3.3, 4.1 and paragraphs 4.32 to 4.92 of Section 4.3, is consistent with the
financial statements.
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Primary Statements

Operating Cost Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2007

9 1684870 17,1 Trast 1738
ol M 148870 151917 146625 147,766
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Nt Oparating Cost 213 LF 2L 4266084  SE61004 5503980
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All income and expenditure is denved from continuing operations.

Administration cosis include £8.8m of income and expanditure relating to the Redundancy Paymenis Senvce, which
wiare classified as programme costs in 2005-06.

Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses
for the year ended 31 March 2007

The prior year costs have been restatad to reflact the Machinen: of Government changes described in Mote 40,

The Notes on pages 207 1o 262 form part of these accounts.

i

et gain on revalustion of investments % 20 2012746 557281 g57.291
Recognised gains and losses for the financial year 2,021,297 2021110 556,200 556,431
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Consolidated Statement of Operating Costs by Departmental Aim
and Objectives

for the year ended 31 March 2007
AlM

The Department’s aim is creating the conditions for business success; and helping the UK to
respand to the challenges of globalisation.

In pursuance of its aim, the Department has the following objectives:

it e i

Framating world class scence and innovation 3474421 [2674)  3ANMT IR (1261 3201080
Enduning fair manksts
Secure, sustainable, affordsble eneigy
Met operating cost

See Mota 28
The prior year costs have been restated to reflect the Machinery of Government changes described in Note 40, 4

The Notes on pages 207 10 262 form part of thesa accounts,
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e property held by the Department for Communities and Local Government,
in the name of the Secretary of State.

Freehold land and buildings are re-stated at current cost using professional
valuations every five years and where appropnate by using indices in the intervening
vears. Other tangible assets have been stated at current cost using appropriate
indices. The core Department does not index any leasehold improvements.

The core Department’s capitalisation threshold for tangible fixed assets, including
heritage assets, is £1,000; except for furniture assets, where all expenditure in cne
financial year is pooled and capitalised; and IT hardware where all expenditure is
capitalised.

The capitalisation thresholds for the consolidated bodies range from £1,000 to £3,000.
1.4 Intangible fixed assets

Where computer software licences are purchased and have a useful life in excess
of one year they are capitalised as intangible fixed assets in the accounts of some
of the Department’s consolidating bodies. These are revalued each year using
relevant published indices. Software licences are amortised over the shorter of
the term of the licence and the useful economic life. The useful economic life 1s
usually between 5 to 12 years.

1.5 Depreciation
Freehold land is not depreciated.

The Department has a number of non-operational heritage assets held for historical
and cultural reasons only. They are recorded in the departmental asset register at
nil book value and are therefore not depreciated.

Assets under construction are not depreciated until the asset i1s brought into use.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated at rates calculated to write them down to
their estimated residual value on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Assets are normally depreciated over the following periods:

Freehold buildings 50 years or estimated usetul life if shortar

Historical leasehold land and buildings Residual term of the lease

Leasehold improvements Shorter of estimated remaining useful life or
outstanding term of lease

Office machinery and equipment 5 years

Computer equipment 3 - 10 years

Scientific equipment 10 - 50 years

Telecommunication equipment 5 - 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 7 years

Plant and machinery 7 =10 years

Motor vehicles 2 - 10 years

Antigue furniture Sharter of estimated remaining useful life or 50
years

208
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For furniture, fixtures and fittings, an asset pool is maintained. Replacements on
a one-to-one basis for assets in the pool are charged direct to the Operating Cost
Statement in the year of replacement. Major enhancements or additions to the
pool are capitalised as assets.

In addition, the Department has operational heritage assets, which are listed
buildings used for operational purposes. They are valued on a commercial basis
and depreciated in the same way as other assets of that general type i.e. buildings.

1.6 Investments

Fixed asset investments include the Department’s entitlement to investment
reserves in the British Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme (BCSSS) and the
Mineworkers' Pension Scheme (MPS). These are held at market value which is
advised by the Government Actuary's Department (GAD). Fixed asset investments
in shares and Public Dividend Capital (PDC) are stated at historic cost, less any
provision for impairment.

The Launch investments value as shown in the accounts is based on an annual
management valuation. The management valuation is based on the discounted
value of future income streams, Where the valuation exceeds historical cost,
increases in valuation are taken to the revaluation reserve and are released to the
General Fund as investments are realised. Any permanent diminution in value is
written off against any previous upward revaluations if appropriate, and then to the
Operating Cost Statement. The Government's standard discount rate of 3.5% is
applied.

Other investments are shown at market value at the balance sheet date, unless
this cannot be readily ascertained, in which case they are stated at historic cost
less any impairment.

Current asset investments are stated at market value at the balance sheet date.
1.7 Stocks and work in progress
Stocks and work in progress are valued as follows:

* stocks of finished goods and goods for resale are valued at cost or, where
materially different, current replacement cost. A net realisable value is
used only when they either cannot or will not be used; and

* work in progress is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

1.8 Provisions

In accordance with FRS12, the Department makes provision for liabilities and
charges where, at the balance sheet date, a legal or constructive liability (i.e. a
present obligation arising from a past event) exists, where the transfer of economic
benefits is probable and a reasonable estimate can be made.

Where the time value of money is material, the Department discounts the
provision to its present value using a discount rate of 2.2%, the Government's
standard rate. Each year the financing charges in the Operating Cost Statement
include the adjustments to amortise one year's discount and restate liabilities 10
current price levels. The change in price levels is calculated using HM Treasury's
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annual GDP deflator or, where it is available, the relevant actual change in prices
rate.

1.9 Research and development

Expenditure on research and development is charged to the Operating Cost
Statement in the year in which it is incurred. Fixed assets acquired for use in
research and development are depreciated over the life of the associated research
project, or according to the asset category if the asset is to be used for subsequent
production work.

1.10 Operating income

Operating income is income that relates directly to the operating activities of

the Department and its agencies. It comprises, principally, fees and charges

for services provided, on a full cost basis, to external customers, public sector
repayment work, dividends and special dividends. It also includes other income
such as that from investments. It includes both income appropriated-in-aid and
income collected by the Department on behalf of HM Treasury on an agency basis
and payable to the Consolidated Fund. This income is known as Consolidated Fund
Extra Receipts (CFERs).

The Department is required to identify those CFERs that are negative public
expenditure (amounts used to reduce the amount of expenditure the Department
would otherwise have to spend) and those revenue CFERs that relate to the
racovery of costs recorded in the Operating Cost Statement, or to returns on
investments. These types of CFERs are credited to the Operating Cost Statement
as income to the Department, The remaining CFERs are not included in the
Department’s Operating Cost Statement and are accounted for through the balance
sheet accounts of cash and creditors.

1.11 Administration and programme expenditure and income

The Operating Cost Statement is analysed between administration and programme
income and expenditure. Administration costs reflect the costs of running the
Department, as defined under the administration cost-control regime, together
with the associated operating income. Income is analysed in the Notes between
that operating income which, under the regime, is allowed to be offset against
gross administrative costs in determining the outturn against the administration
cost limit, and that operating income which is not. Programme costs reflect non-
administration costs, including payments of grants and other disbursements by the
Department.

1.12 Grants payable

Grants payable are recognised in the period in which the grant recipient carries out
the activity that creates an entitlement to grant. Recognition of entitlement varies
according to the details of individual schemes and the terms of the offers made.
Unpaid and unclaimed grants are charged to the Operating Cost Statement on

the basis of estimates of claims not received and are included in accruals in the
balance sheet.
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1.13 Capital charge

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Department, is included
in operating costs. The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury
{currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets less liabilities,
except for:

® cash balances with the Office of the Paymaster General (OPG), where the
charge is nil;

¢ the Department's investments in the trading funds (Companies House
and the Patent Office) where the charge is equal to 3.5% of the trading
fund’'s underlying net assets, and the public corporations (BNFL, British
Shipbuilders and Royal Mail) where the charge is equal to 8% of the public
corporation’s underlying net assets; and

® amounts due from, or due to be surrendered to, the Consolidated Fund,
where the credit will be at a nil rate.

1.14 Foreign exchange

Transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling
at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of each transaction, except where

rates do not fluctuate significantly in which case an average rate for a period

Is used. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the
balance sheet date are translated at the rates ruling at that date. These translation
differences are dealt with in the Operating Cost Statement.

1.15 Pensions

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil
Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) as described at Note 9. The defined benefit
elements of the schemes are un-funded and are non-contributory except in

respect of dependents’ benefits. The Department recognises the expected cost

of these elements on a systematic and rational basis over the period during

which it benefits from employees’ services by payment to the PCSPS of amounts
calculated on an accruing basis. Liability for payment of future benefits is a charge
on the PCSPS. In respect of the defined contribution elements of the schemes, the
Department recognises the contributions payable for the year.

1.16 Early departure costs

The Department is required to meet the additional cost of benefits beyond the
normal PCSPS benefits in respect of employees who retire early. The Department
provides in full for this cost when the early retirement programme has been
announced and is binding on the Department. The Department may, in certain
circumstances, settle some or all of its liability in advance by making a payment to
the Civil Service Superannuation Vote. The amount provided in these accounts is
shown gross of any such payments.

1.17 Taxation

The Department is exempt from income and corporation tax by way of its Crown
exemption,
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Value Added Tax (VAT) is accounted for in the accounts, in that amounts are
shown net of VAT except:

* rrecoverable VAT is charged to the Operating Cost Statement, and
included under the heading relevant to the type of expenditure;

s irrecoverable VAT on the purchase of an asset is included in the capitalised
purchase cost of the asset.

The net amount due to, or from, HM Customs and Excise in respect of VAT is
included within debtors and creditors within the consolidated Balance Sheet.

1.18 Statement of Parliamentary Supply and the Consolidated Statement of
Operating Costs by Departmental Aim and Objectives

The information contained in the Statement of Parliamentary Supply and associated
Notes are based on the Request for Resources information that forms part of the
Parliamentary approval processes.

The Consolidated Statement of Operating Costs by Departmental Aim and
Objectives reports expenditure and income for each of the Department’s four
objectives. The differences between the net resource outturn, as disclosed in the
Statement of Parliamentary Supply and the net operating costs, as disclosed in the
Operating Cost Statement and the Statement of Operating Costs by Departmental
Aim and Objectives, are disclosed at Note 3 to the accounts.

1.19 Leases

Rentals due under operating leases are charged to the Operating Cost Statement
over the lease term on a straight-line basis, or on the basis of actual rentals
payable where this fairly reflects the usage. Future payments, disclosed at Note 30
‘Commitments under Operating Leases’, are not discounted.

The Department currently has no Finance leases. There is one long leasehold land
on the Crown Estate.

1.20 Inter-Departmental transfers of functions: restatement of prior year
comparators

In accordance with the FReM, where functions are transferred between
Government Departments, the results and cash flows of the combining entities
are brought into account from the start of the financial year in which the transfer
occurs. Prior-year comparative figures are restated to show the effect as if the
transfer had occurred one year earlier.

1.21 Private Finance Initiative (PFl) transactions

PFl transactions have been accounted for in accordance with Technical Note No. 1

(Revised), entitled 'How to Account for PFl Transactions® as required by the FReM.
Where the balance of risks and rewards of ownership of the PF| property are borne
by the PFl operator, the PFl payments are recorded as an operating cost.
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3.  Reconciliation of outturn to net operating cost and against administration
budget

3.1 Reconciliation of net resource outturn to net operating cost

| W

1
Net Resource Outturn z
Hor-supy secome {CFERs) 5
Mon-supply Expanditure - National insurance Fund expendifune
[RPS) 2 204543 284509 [38,866) aed
Ryt M and BN Cost of Capita cedit oo - posol =
NLF et funding™ e _ 3 3
BUSSS net funding” ERIMECE R It o
Nat Dperating Cost 4,266,084 7,065,020 (2.798.936) 5643980

TUng: .l-

Total : = ' PO ':__.ﬂi.;ﬂ

| BLRSS Inoome {10,000} lm
|

| BESIS Expenditiin O um

The Redundancy Payments Service (RFS)

The Department is responsible for the approval and processing of claims under the
Redundancy Payment Scheme, which is financed from the National Insurance Fund. Claims
processed under the Scheme fall into two categories: RP1 (which covers redundancy pay,
holiday pay and arrears of pay) and RP2 (pay in lieu of notice). The average payment for RP1
during 2006-07 was £1,448 (2005-06: £2,662). An average amount of £690 was paid during
2006-07 for RP2 (2005-06: £964).

There Is an associated income related to this scheme arising from two sources:

e Solvent Recovery — where monies are recovered over a period of up to three years from
companies, setting up a standing order, that are continuing to trade but would not be
able to do so if they had to meet the full costs of redundancy payments at that time;

® |nsolvent Recovery — the Department becomes a creditor receiving a dividend if there
are sufficient funds on the winding up of the company.

Expenditure in 2006-07 totalled £245 million (2005-06: £290 million) against income of
£40 million {(2005-06: £37 million).
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3.2 Outturn against final administration budget

mﬂa s E‘II 154
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5. Analysis of income payable to the Consolidated Fund

In addition to appropriations-in-aid, the following income relates to the Department and is
payable to the Consolidated Fund (cash receipts being shown in italics): |

Operating mooms and receipts —excess A inA - - - - =

(es opesating income and receipts not classified as A in A 12 EALY el 1848720

] 414 4,141 1,842,720
Non-oparating income and feceipls - taciss A in A - = -
e Kon-gperating meome and receipts not classified a5 Adn A 420 399 420099 -
(Other amounts callectabile on behalf of the Cansolidated Fund 144782 RECY. S e )]
Tetal income payahle to the Consolidated Fund 578,922 578,522 7,065 538

A breakdown of other amounts payable to the Consolidated Fund is as follows: ,

i
|
Receipt from the Coal Autharity ' 368 s ||
Coal pension surplus rebeases 563,000 wzm |
Laureh imvestmint levies recenvesd 117,609 1519 |
Petraleum licences B.762 |
Univarsal banking contritutions 3500
Compamies House tate filing penalties A0S
CFCOM Wireless Telogragiy Act 20282
BNFL NLIP 3767542
BAFL. Deberturn s
| Other 5,487

| Toul 528119

o

6. Reconciliation of income recorded within the Operating Cost Statement to
operating income payable to the Consolidated Fund

Opecating income 12 (5,116,530 13,396,934

bocome utsida of the supply process ' 7 am =i

= B o i  memen (368

Less:Wcome asthorised 10 bo apppseaed-in-id S ume 29008

Dperating income payable to the Consolidatad Fund 5 s w6725
s
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7. Non-operating income

| 8. Non-operating income not classified as Appropriations in Aid (A in A)

| There is no non-operating income not classified as A in A for 2006-07.

9. Staff numbers and related costs

Staff costs comprise:

' The Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) is an unfunded multi-employer defined

_benefit scheme but the Department is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and
liabilities. A full actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2003. Details can be found in
the Resource Accounts of the Cabinet Office: Civil Superannuation (www.civilservice-pensions.

-gov.uk).

For 2006-07, employers’ contributions of £37,203,945 were payable to the PCSPS (2005-06:

£44,821,635) at one of four rates in the range 17.1% to 25.5% of pensionable pay, based on

mhw bands (the rates in 2005-06 were between 16.2% and 24.6%). The scheme's Actuary
reviews employer contributions every four years following a full scheme valuation. From 2007-
08, the salary bands will be revised but the rates will remain the same. The contribution rates
reflect benefits as they are accrued, not when the costs are actually incurred, and reflect past
xperience of the scheme.
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Employees can opt to open a partnership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an
employer contribution. Employer’s contributions of £101,805 (2005-06: £56,024) were paid to
one or more of a panel of four appointed stakeholder pension providers. Employer contributions
are age-related and range from 3% to 12.5% (the rates in 2005-06 were between 3% and
12.5%) of pensionable pay. Employers also match employee contributions up to 3% of
pensionable pay. In addition, employer contributions of 0.8% (2005-06: 0.8%) of pensionable
pay, were payable to the PCSPS to cover the cost of the future provision of lump sum

benefits on death in service and ill health retirement of these employees. There were £9,016

of contributions due to the partnership pension providers at the balance sheet date, but there
were no contributions prepaid at that date.

Iin 2006-07, 9 persons (2005-06: & persons) retired early on ill-health grounds; the total
additional accrued pension liabilities in the year amounted to £48,330 (2005-06: £26,093).

Average number of persons employed

The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employed during the year was as
follows. These figures include those working in the Department as well as in agencies and
other bodies included within the Consolidated Departmental Resource Accounts.

II-I-F -\I

Supponing Successful Busness

Promatng world—£lass Science and
Innovatan

Ensusing Faz Markets
| ‘Secuee, sstainable, atfordable pnenmy
Total
| Df which: Core Departmant
\

b=

Staff Debtors

At 31 March 2007 1,635 (31 March 2006: 1,774) employees of the Department and its |
Agencies were in receipt of advances of travel and housing loans, repayable to the employer.
The staff debtor amount is disclosed in MNote 18.
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10.1 Administration and programme: non cash costs summary

The total for non cash costs in Note 10 (other administration costs) and Note 11 (programme
costs) is as follows:

r"’ R
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12. Income

Ill"_

rﬂﬁmmmsﬁmm
Programme Income:

mlmimm :

Total income allowable against the Estimate, as shown in the Statement of Parliamentary
Supply, amounted to £3,238.640.

13. Analysis of net operating cost by spending body

oot
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Analysis of tangible fixed assets

The net book value of tangible fixed assets compnses:

—

( . N

March 2007 17041 109858 Pl 5 ajel - KT = 756 47,405 200,503
T :l=,q-_.-‘-.|
oot S - e s 2m W s 5w oam
Care Department _
March 2006 11808 138 22 A5T B6  B038 -  53m - a7 1A% 163378
March 2006 - - 5587 i am3 40 504 or 46 336 1353

The total fixed asset additions as disclosed in Motes 14 and 15, amounting to £32,893 can be
reconciled to the cash payments made during the year as follows:

Cash payments mada 10 purchasa fed assets dunng 2006-07 for;

Tangible fixed assats 22 0,150
Intangible foed assets 22 153
Iowerment in creditons 73 {440
Additions in foted 35581 Notes 15 2893 |

14.1 The net book value of land and buildings comprises:

Frawhold 1135 lech:s 1.8 lhek: i

Long |easehold 48 - 81 -

Total pral 109,859 11,809 103828 |
I"‘\_ P |

il

The Department has the following freehold properties:

* the Core Store at 36 Gilmerton Road, Edinburgh was revalued in June 2004 by
Donaldson's, independent Chartered Surveyors, on an existing use basis. On 1 August
2005 the Core Store was leased to the British Geological Survey (BGS) for the sum of |
£1 per annum for a term of 10 years. BGS is a research centre wholly owned by the
Natural Environment Research Council (NERC), which is funded by the Department
through Grant in Aid;

il
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* the National Physical Laboratory (NPL) site at Teddington. The site includes a number
of properties, which have been scheduled for demolition, pending the construction of
the new NPL building. Accordingly, these properties have been included on the balance
sheet at nil net book value. The fand and building occupied by the National Weights and
Measures Laboratory and British Maritime Technology were valued by Powis Hughes,
independent Chartered Surveyors, in October 2003 on a basis of open market value: and

* the NPL building was valued on 31 March 2005 by King Sturge, a supplier of commercial
property agency services, including professional valuations undertaken by Chartered
Surveyors. As at 31 March 2005 its value, on a depreciated replacement cost basis,
was assessed to be £102.35m, It was necessary to incur additional costs, including
commissioning costs, to make the building perform to the specifications in the original
PF| project agreement. It was estimated that these would be £17m and accordingly a
value at 31 March 2005 of £85.35m was therefore assigned. The net book value of the
building as at 31 March 2007 is £92.6m (2005-06 £90.3m). In addition expenditure during
2006-07 of £16.8Bm is held in Assets in the course of construction. This relates both to
completion and enhancements. As at 31 March 2007 the final parts of the building are
undergoing commissioning and testing.

All professional valuations have been made in accordance with Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors guidance.

Other tangible assets have been restated to current value as at 31 March 2007, using
appropriate indices published by the Office of National Statistics.

14.2 Heritage assets
14.2.1 Operational heritage assets:

The following listed building, located at the National Physical Laboratory (NPL) in Teddington,
is included in the value for buildings above. It is used for operational purposes and has been
valued on a commercial basis.

* Bushy House, including The Clock House, the Conservatory and Garden Temple.

14.2.2 Non-operational heritage assets:

The Department has a number of non-operational heritage assets held for historical and cultural
association alone. These are recorded in the Register of Assets at nil book value, in accordance
with guidance in HM Treasury's Financial Reporting Manual, which excludes museum
collections, and other national archives existing at 31 March 2000 from the requirement of
valuation.

The following non-operational heritage assets are located at the National Physical Laboratory
(NPL) in Teddington:

* ‘Newton's Apple Tree'

* National Physical Laboratory museum and archieves, including some UK primary
standard weights and measures.
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16. Fixed asset investments

“adverat 1 April 2006 1,784,081 1603 756 100 2214 55 153 B2 409 4536733
Addtions L - 00273 5,000 - 17,597 #5281
Disposals {10.077) = - - (550,153 < {560.230)
Rapayments - - - - = 9038 fo.00
Imcrim = (154,116 = - - - {154,118
Amostisaton - 56,098 - {5.000) - (EFRLw)] 3635
ﬁfﬂ 3014656 1541433 4303713 n24 - 568,105 5,638,781
\_

All investments are held by the core Department.

16.1 Coal pension investment reserves — BCSSS and MFPS coal pension investment
reserves

@ == 2

1,169,869 = (10,000 STHIE 1697484
619,132 - {'ﬁ" TEE.057 1387172

The Department’s investments in the investment reserves of the two pension schemes for the
former employees of the British Coal Corporation, the Mineworkers Pension Scheme (MPS)
and the British Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme (BCSSS5), are derived from the unallocated
share of surplus attributed to British Coal at the privatisation of the industry in 1994. The
Investment Reserves exist as sub-funds and are available to maintain the benefits of scheme
members in accordance with guarantee arrangements entered into in 1984. To the extent the
Investment Reserves are not required to meet deficits, they will be paid to the Department
over a period of at least 25 years on the advice of each scheme's actuary, a role fulfilled by the
Government Actuary (GAD).

The two schemes are subject to triennial actuarial valuations, the latest of which, with effective
dates of 30 September 2005 for the MPS and 31 March 2006 for the BCSSS, were completed
in September 2006 and February 2007 respectively. Actuanial valuations are carried out by
‘The Scheme Actuary’, defined in the scheme provisions as the GAD and only the defined

~ Actuary can undertake the scheme and fund valuations after consulting both the Trustees and

' the Guarantor on the actuarial assumptions to be used. The Government Actuary assesses
both the market value and actuarial value of the funds' assets and liabilities. The balances
disclosed in the accounts are the market value. As a result of these valuations, which revealed
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substantial surpluses, transfers from the Investment Reserves to the Guaranteed Funds

(from which the guaranteed scheme benefits are paid) at the time of the last valuations were
returned to the Investment Reserves, revalued in line with subsequent investment returns in
accordance with the guarantee arrangements. Changes in the value of the investment between
the effective date of the triennial assessment and the 31 March 2007 are management
estimates of the current market value. The value of the investment is adjusted by the interim
valuations undertaken by the Scheme Actuary, when these are provided.

The accounts of the two pension schemes can be obtained from Coal Pension Trustee Services,
1 Hussar Court, Hillsborough Barracks, Penistone Road, Sheffield, South Yorkshire, 56 2GZ.

16.2 Launch investments

The Department provides specific support to the aerospace industry through Launch
Investments. The Department regularly revises its forecasts of sales of the aircraft and engines
covered by the Department’s portfolio of Launch Investment contracts. These forecasts in turn
determine forecasts of income and hence the value of the portfolio as a whole. The historic
cost valuation of the investment portfolio at 31 March 2007 was £1,024 million (31 March 2006
£1,060 million). The asset value of the Launch Investment portfolio at 31 March 2007 remains
considerably in excess of its historic value.

16.3 Ordinary shares

| BNFL pic shares 5 = . = .
Fltspal Mail Holdings pic shaces 50 430273 - = L i
' Toul 10 w0am = = @03

|
The Government owns 100% of the shares in Royal Mail Holdings plc. The Secretary of State I
owns 50,004 ordinary shares and the Treasury Solicitor holds one ordinary share. During 2006-07
Government purchased 5 ordinary shares in Royal Mail Holdings ple. The primary purpose of

this was to inject funds into the company for the specific purpose of covering ongoing financial
losses of Post Office Limited (POL). This was to meet Government's existing obligation to cover
these losses which forms part of the wider 2002-03 POL funding agreement, approved by the EU
Commission. £145 million was paid for losses incurred in 2005-06 and a total of £231 million was
paid for losses incurred in 2006-07. A further £54 million formed part of Government’s 2006-07
Social Network Payment. i

The Secretary of State for Trade and Industry also owns one Special share, relating to certain
areas for which Special Shareholder’s consent is required, (see Note 16.6). The ordinary shares
are shown at historical cost less any provision for impairment.

The Government holds 50,000 ardinary shares in BMFL plc at a nominal value of £1 each. BNFL
plc was set up to hold those parts of BNFL that did not pass to the Nuclear Decommissioning
Authority (NDA), including, inter alia, British Nuclear Group Sellafield Limited (formerly British
Nuclear Fuels). The Secretary of State owns 49,999 ordinary shares and the Treasury Solicitor
holds one ordinary share.
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e NLF information is extracted from their unaudited annual accounts for the year to |
31 March 2007. The accounts were prepared in accordance with UK GAAP.

* British Shipbuilders information is derived from the 2005-06 audited annual accounts, |
as their 2006-07 information is not available. The 2005-06 accounts were prepared in I
accordance with UK GAAP. '

¢ Patent Office and Companies House information is derived from their unaudited annual
accounts for 2006-07. In the 2006-07 year their annual accounts were completed in ,
acordance with the requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM).

* BNFL information 1s derived from their 2005-06 audited annual accounts, as their 2006-
07 audited accounts are not available. BNFL's accounts were prepared in accordance
with UK GAAP.

* During the reporting period, UK Nirex Ltd, a company limited by guarantee (CLG) and
owned jointly by the DTl and DEFRA was wound up. The Department no longer owns a
share of their net assets. UK Nirex became a full subsidiary of the NDA,

* Royal Mail Holdings plc information is derived from their 2005-06 audited annual
accounts as their 2006-07 audited accounts are not available. Their 2006-06 accounts !
were prepared in accordance with Intenational Accounting Standards (IAS).

16.6 Special shares |

In addition, the Secretary of State holds one special share in each of the entities listed below.
The list is a summary and does not purport to be a comprehensive record of the terms of each
respective shareholding. Further details can be obtained from the annual report and financial
statements of each body.

Roval Mail » Created in January 2001;

Holdings ple * |t may be redeemed at any time by the shareholder;
£1 Special Rights * The consent of the shareholder is required for a number of decisions, including:

I Prafarance Share - Appeinting the Chairman of the company, and the remainder of the Board (afier
| consulting the Chairman);

- Setting {and approving any matenal changes in) the remuneration packages of the
Directors;

— Borrowing in excess of certain pre-set limits {as agreed with HM Treasury);
— Adopting and implementing the company’s sirategic plan;

~ [hsposing of substantial assets of the business or any “relevant subsidianes” or
substantial parts of the business of such subsidianes;

— Voluntary winding-up of any subsidiary;

- Marying certain of the company’s articles of association, including the rights of the
special shareholder.
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Genaration Ltd £1
Special Share, and

British Asrospace Created in 1985 (but subsequenthy amendad);

pic £1 Special Nao time limit;

Rights Preference Provides for a 15% limit on any individual foreign shareholding, or group of foreign

‘Share shareholders acting in concert, in the company;
Requires a simple majority of the Board and the Chief Executive to be British;
Requires any Executive Chairman to be British and, if both the Chairman and Deputy
Chairman are non-axecutivas, requires at least one of them to be British.

British Enargy British Energy Group plc and British Energy Holdings plc Special Shares created on 13

Group ple £1 January 2005,

Special Share, The Special Shares ara held jointly by the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry and
the Secretary of State for Scotland;

Brieish Energy The consent of the Special Shareholder, which can anly be refused on grounds of

Haoldings ple £1 natignal security, is required for:

Special Share, - anyone to purchase more than 15% of British Energy issuad shares; and

British Energy = the disposal of a nuclear power station by British Energy.

British Energy Ganaration Ltd Special Share created in 1998 is held solely by the
Sacretary of State for the DTI. His consent is required for the disposal of any of the
nuclear power stations owned by it

British Energy Ltd British Energy Limsted (formery British Energy plel Special Share created in 1996 is

E1 Special Share held by the Secretanes of State for Trade and Industry and for Scotland, However the
company has no significant assets or liabilities as a result of the restructuring scheme,
which came into effect on 14 January 2006.

Muclear Liabilities Crested in 1998;

fund Ltd Secretary of State for Trade and Industry has a special *4° share (there is also a "B’ share
hedd by British Energyl;

£1 Special Rights W. o :

S Only with the consent of the spemal shareholder can:

N france Shars — any of the provisions in the Memorandum of Association or Amticles of Association be

changed,
the share capital or the rights attached thereto be altered,
the company create or issue share options;

the ‘B' Special Shareholder or any of the Ordinary shareholders dispose or transfer any
of their rights in their shares;

the company pass a mambers voluntary winding-up resolution,
the company recommend, declare or pay a dividend;

the company create, 1S5Ue OF commit 10 give any loan capital;
the company issue a debenture;

the company change its accounting reference date.

S

233

Stratagic
SVEriew
Pages 8-13

|

Parformance
Raport
Pages 14-113

|

|

Departmant

Pages 114167

Tha

|

|

Introduction to

finances
Pages 168120

Neall B

Annexes
Pagos 286324

|



P

"

Depantment of Trade and Indusiry — Annual Report and Accounts 200607

Rolls Roves Group | = Creatad in 1987 (but subsequently amended); |
ple * Nao fime limit;

£1 Special Rights * Provides for a 15% limit on any individual foreign shareholding, or group of foreign

Nen-Voting shareholders acting in concert, in the company;

Redeamabls

Freference Share

* Reguires a simple majonty of the Board, including the Chief Executive and any Executive
Chairman, to be British;

* Allows the appointment of a non-Bntish Mon-Exacutive Chairman; |
* Provides for a veto over the material disposal of assets;

* Provides for a veto of any voluniary winding up.

16.7 BNFL debenture

On 1 April 2005, BNFL issued a debenture for £575 million, bearing an interest rate of

7.5% to the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry, under Schedule 6 of the Energy Act,
with a redemption date of 31 March 2012. The purpose of the debenture was to provide a
mechanism for returning the proceeds from disposals of the BNFL Group to the Government, f
and incentivised its management to maximise cash generation and to reduce the outstanding I
amount of the debenture, so reducing the Group's interest payments.

During 2006-07 BNFL repaid in full the outstanding debenture of £550 million and all accrued I
interest, following the sale of its Westinghouse subsidiary. All sums received were paid to the
Consolidated Fund. |

16.8 Other investments and loans

| g

Patent Oifice 1,296 = {166} =
Floopal Mail Holdings plc NUF Loan 500,000 = - = = 500,000
Ot Ioans, neleeing OFCOM : i o)
LK High Technology Fund
Regional Venture Capital Funds
Earty Growth Funed Investmints
Eneorprise Capital Fund

Total

Loans to Patent Office, Companies House and Royal Mail disclosed above are valued at historic cost.

The investments held by the Department in UK High Technology Fund, Regional Venture
Capital Fund, Early Growth Fund, Phoenix Fund and Enterprise Capital Fund are shown at
market value. Where there is no readily ascertainable market value then they are shown at fair
value or historic cost less impairments. Valuations are taken from the most recent set of annual

accounts available for the funds and updated with interim management valuations.
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17. Stocks and work in progress

hﬂ. 201 2.158 2,586 672
Toul | wm am am am
o b
18. Debtors
18.1 Analysis by type
I.--"" \

18.2 Intra-Government balances

- There are no Intra-Government debtor amounts falling due after more than one year.
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19. Current asset investments
' 3

Balance as at 1 Apnl 2006 HHH 5167451

| Biktions - - m - 8530000

| Disposals - - BSN00G RSS9y (12zsge)
Loan regayments = = = = =
Aesalustion 25,132 344,083 - - £79,155
fielaase of previous revaluaton gains B (22,000 » 4 m
Balance as 8131 March 2007 594 468 707,187 400,000 - 1,701,655

9 = &

All investments are held by the core Department.
19.1 BCSSS and MPS debtors

In addition to the Fixed Asset Investments in the two closed pension schemes of the former
employees of British Coal, as referred to in detail at Note 16.1, the Department is entitled to
half of any surpluses declared by the schemes on the basis of triennial actuarial valuations by
the schemes’ actuary, the GAD. The Department’s share of each surplus is accounted for as

a current asset investment and is paid to the Department in annual instalments over 10 years.
The GAD completed actuanal valuations of both schemes during 2006-07, which resulted in

an addition to the current asset investment related to each scheme and an increase in the
annual payments to the Department previously expected. The Department has estimated the
change in the market value of the investments on the basis of statements and updated interim
valuations provided by the schemes.

189.2 Royal Mail Holdings plc and Post Office Ltd

The Department has also made available to Post Office Limited (POL), through an agreement
reached on 17 October 2003, a revolving loan facility based on commercial terms of up to
£1.15 billion. This is to help the company fund its working capital requirements in light of the
migration of state benefits to a system of direct payment and the loss of pre-funding to POL
from the Department of Work and Pensions, alongside a Government commitment that benefit
recipients will still be able to collect their benefit, in cash and in full, from post office branches.
POL began utilising this facility on 1 December 2003. The facility matures on 31 March 2010 by
when any outstanding amounts will need to have been repaid. The outstanding balance on 31
March 2007 was £400 million.

19.3 BNFL - Nuclear Liabilities Investment Portfolio (NLIP)

Following the transfer of the responsibility for the discharge of the nuclear liabilities to the
MNuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA), the Nuclear Liabilities Investment Portfolio and the
Springfield Investments (known together as the NLIP) held by BNFL passed to HM Government.
The investment was remitted to the Secretary of State for return to the Consolidated Fund once
sold. The market valuation of the MLIP, as at 31 March 2006, was £3,706 million. The portfolio
was fully liquidated during 2006-07. The amount realised from the sale was £3,767 million, which
was received in two payments. This was in addition to the £700 million received in 2005-06.
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The amount realised was in excess of the amount expected on liquidation of the funds and resulted

inan additional £64 million being paid to the Department. All sums received were transferred

immediately to the Consolidated Fund.

20. Cash at bank and in hand

21. Creditors
21.1 Analysis by type

ff_

4.0
101.933

Jig2

34,778
an
124,080
3,706,501
265,158

31833
an
125,668
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21.2 Intra-Government balances

Ratancos with other ceniral govemment bodies 131199 1,042.770

Batances with lncal authorities _ e '_,ii;gg'--“"_ ks

Batances with NHS Trusts -

Balances with publi corporations and trading funds . .fmjﬁl‘ T -..aW

Subotal intra-gevemment batances 1,343,979 41T 500,000

Batances wih bodies extomal ta gavermont e HeR. 4 _'f;;: B

Total creditors at 31 March 1,471,085 5,048,532 541,072 1,094,864
. =

22, Provisions for liabilities and charges — Coal

| At Ageil 2005 1,209,760 19333 263328 351,743 BT 2.38.958
mortisation of onw year's dscount B 8785 579 R e R
Increase/{dectease in provision {32.043) 84027 {58211 92,189 (3279 134473

' B inyear BuSS @eaT sl @am @2 (IEm)

| At 31 March 2007 682,369 birky. 3 181,115 404,545 80.094 1,620,851

\ ¥

All provisions for liabilities and charges relate to the core Department.

The time scale, over which it is estimated the discounted costs will nead to be incurred,
15 as follows:

|
T ~ ]
|

Within 1 year
Batween 7 1o 5 yems ! T =
Beyond 5 years

238



Motes 1o the 2006-07 Baesource Accounis

22.1 Health-related provisions

Health liabilities make up by far the largest proportion of the coal provision. Responsibility
for the compensation claims relating to personal injuries suffered by former British Coal
mineworkers transferred to the Department on 1 January 1998 by a restructuring scheme
under the Coal Industry Act 1994.

The intreduction of cut off dates in both the Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD)
and the Vibration White Finger (VWF) schemes has reduced significantly the uncertainty of
volumes going forward, however the forecast is very vulnerable to factors such as capacity
planning and inactive claims.

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD)

These liabilities arise from claims relating to respiratory diseases such as emphysema and
chronic bronchitis, caused by exposure to mine dust and fumes. The expacted discounted
liability over the next 2 years is £682 million, the undiscounted amount being £695 million.
This scheme closed on 31 March 2004 and no further claims are being accepted.

Vibration White Finger (VWVF)

These liabilities arise from claims relating to damage caused by the prolonged use of vibratory
tools. The expected claims total to a discounted amount of around £273 million over the next
2 years (2005-06; £399 million). The corresponding undiscounted amount is £276 million. This
scheme is closed to new claims.

Other health provisions

This provision incorporates other injury-related compensation claims such as Noise Induced
Hearing Loss (NIHL), accidents and miscellaneous diseases including asbestos related
conditions, dermatitis, cancer and rheumatic diseases. It also covers payments under British
Coal's Pneumoconiosis Compensation Scheme and associated administration costs of
managing the health claims. The undiscounted amount of these provisions is £196 million
{2005-06: £270 million). Most claims will be settled within 3 years but some will continue until
2048,

22.2 Non-health provisions
Concessionary fuel

The Department has a responsibility to provide either solid fuel or a cash alternative to

over 102,000 beneficiaries. Approximately three quarters of these have opted for the cash
alternative at an average of around £400 per annum, compared with the average annual solid
fuel cost to the Departrent of around £750 per beneficiary. The number of beneficiaries is
decreasing at around 7% per year and therefore the liability will continue for several decades.
The provision is based on standard female mortality rates and includes an assumption of
beneficiaries continuing to switch their entitlement from solid fuel to cash at a constant rate of
9% for National Concessionary Fuel Association beneficiaries and 8% for British Association of
Colliery Miners beneficiaries.

Site restoration and other

The Department has inherited the liabilities from British Coal to reimburse English Partnerships
with the minimum costs necessary 10 meet statutory environmental standards whilst restoring
contaminated sites no longer required for coal purposes.
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23.2 British Energy

As a result of the restructuring of British Energy (BE) in January 2005 the Government assists
BE in meeting its contractual historic fuel liabilities. The provision is based on the forecast
payment schedule up to 2029 which is set out in the waste processing contracts agreed ﬁﬁ
between BE, BNFL and the Department. The costs are estimated to be £200m (undiscounted 8
at March 2007 prices) for the next seven years. Amounts are then expected to fall each year m;.__
thereafter.
The time scale over which it is estimated the discounted costs will need to be incurred is as
follows: g
. T E §
i3
I =y
Within 1 year 199 189
Betwoen 2 1n 5 yeus. 75! m i
Beyond § Years 1497 1511 g
T 2388 2an 2
\ N
gr
it

24, Provisions for liabilities and charges — Other

Introduction 1o
finances

Pages 168-1B9

[

ALY Apil 2006 182185 30027 35035 82400 3350 370219 1ELIE5 JT QW0 B2400 IS IO

year's discou a 4 #5 W 183 - 7405 a8 BIS m I3 - A
e :
i provision 2,730 {380} 30295 [5.000) (4730) 525 32730 (380} 3423 E000 {3057) 55716
Boandiore inyeor  (BS63) (416 (02175 - N (10214 EosR  WEte (1418 - (B2 12818
AUIIMarch 2007 133434 32846 539 79213 20848 320265 133,434 3288 60379 79213 24638 330510
L =
24.1 Small Firms Loan Guarantee (SFLG) T 1
The SFLG is the Department’s main instrument for supporting debt finance for business. By iﬁ
providing a Government backed guarantee, the scheme exists to enable lenders to assist small i 2
business with viable business proposals gain access to finance where they lack security or 3 %
credit history. St I
The provision is based on the expected value of defaults of all outstanding loans and has been
discounted at HM Treasury rate of 2.2%. The undiscounted liability 1s £139 million (2005-06:
£188 million), which is expected to be utilised over the next eight years. 5
- 24.2 UKAEA restructuring -
) g
Restructuring costs cover the continuing annual payments for staff that took early retirement 5§
I“_'.

primarily before the privatisation of AEAT in 1996 will continue until they reach retirement age.

1
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In additicn, where former staff are entitled to enhancements, these will be paid for the duration
of the pensioner’s life.

24.3 Early retirement

The Early Retirernent Provision provides for the future costs of staff departing under voluntary
early retirement schemes.

The provision is required in order to meet pension enhancement and severance costs for staff
departing under these schemes, with the liabilities extending for up to 10 years.

24.4 British Shipbuilders

British Shipbuilders has liabilities arising from personal injury to former employees resulting
from exposure to asbestos during the course of their work. The Department has taken
responsibility for the liabilities of British Shipbuilders Corporation to the extent that they cannot
be met from the residual funds of the Corporation. The undiscounted liability is £97.8 million.
The current estimate is that the liabilities will extend for up to 20 years.

In the hght of significant uncertainty associated with asbestos claims, there can be no
guarantee that the assumptions used to estimate the provisions for the cost of resolving
ashestos claims will be an accurate prediction of the actual cost that may be incurred and as a
result the provisions will be reviewed annually as additional information becomes available and
trends change. Further information can be found in the British Shipbuilders accounts.

The time scale over which the discounted costs will need to be incurred is:

X
Within 1 year 58 23
Between 2 fo 5 years L
Beryond 5 years 543 BA
o o
- W,
24.5 Other

This relates to a range of liabilities arising from the Department’s normal business. It includes
agency provisions arising through consolidation and provisions for various other Departmental
programmes and administration costs.
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26. Revaluation reserve

,-

¥

%,

I\'\"\.

{restated]
Balance at 1 April
J006

9,743
Ariging o rirvaluation
dhuring the year fnet) . BES1
CFERS naeta]
Transter to the genaral
fund of resslisad
etamant of revaluation
rosone [see Note 251 (574}
Coal Pensiones

- Surphus Refeased =

Balance al 3
March 2007 17720

5000 1919836

EST 1974966
{117,609) -

- (579077

166,077 4,315,625

40 317953 1077 245009 291983 4930 380516 31WME 310N

(7T 20020 B34 BED \GAS6 (7 2000010 62D

- (117508 = 17 - - 11760 (115517
- 8 5 = - - =
— (PR - — {5re0T — [579.007) (452776)

41
(115517

4

(452,778)

4153 4503575 1843 166077 4315625 4153 ASOL3M8 17953 31805

~

The fixed asset revaluation reserve reflects the unrealised element of the cumulative balance
of indexation and the revaluation adjustments of tangible fixed assets (see Notes 14 and 15).

The Launch investment revaluation reserve reflects the unrealised element of the cumulative
balance of the revaluation adjustments to Launch Investment (see Note 16].

The coal pensions revaluation reserve reflects the cumulative balance of revaluation
adjustments of the fixed and current asset investments in pension schemes of former
employees of British Coal (see Notes 16 and 19 for more detail).
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27.3 Analysis of capital expenditure and financial investment by Request for Resources
(RfAs)

27.4 Analysis of financing

-

From the Congalidated Fund [Suppéy] - mmw
From the Consalidated Fund [Sapply] — prior year
NLF Loans - wuwmmmlmmﬂ@#
mm—mmmmm

From the Mational Insueanca Fund

27.5 Reconciliation of net cash requirement to increase/(decrease) in cash

P

s o
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28. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Operating Costs by Departmental Aim
and Objectives

The Consolidated Staterment of Operating Costs by Departmental Aim and Objectives reports
expenditure and income against each of the Department's four objectives.

The costs comprise direct administration and programme costs derived from those front-line
Departmental groups where activities are directly related to delivering the Department's
objectives, together with an element of apportioned expenditure, Staff numbers are used as
the basis of apportionment of those costs that do not directly relate to specific objectives
but contribute to or enable the delivery of all cbjectives. In the main these costs relate to
the provision of corporate services. Deployment of capital by objective is derived using the
same method.

28.1 Programme grants and other current expenditures have been allocated as follows:
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I e i 00,117 461,505
- 2780115 212130
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29. Capital commitments
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Dbligations under operating leases comprise:
Land and buildings; |
Expiry wathan 1 yoar 1 176
" Expiry aftar 1 year bt not mare than 5 yeers 1E s
Expiry tharuater 39367 45,968
Onher:
Expiry willin onie year : e T Ge e
Expiry after 1 year bt not more than 5 years 24 455 18 508
Expiry thesvattos e = R
% S04 24 616
e S J
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30. Commitments under leases
30.1 Operating leases

Commitments under operating leases to pay rentals during the 2007-08 financial year are given
in the table below, analysed according to the period in which the lease expires.

31. Commitments under PFl contracts
31.1 Off-balance sheet contract

During the 2006-07 financial year the Department had an off-balance sheet PFl contract, the
'ELGAR Service PF| Agreement’. The contract operator is Fujitsu Services.

31.2 Charge to the Operating Cost Statement and future commitments

The total amount charged to operating costs in 2006-07 was £34 million {2005-06 £31 million);
see Notes 10 and 11. The payments to which the Department is committed during 2007-08,
analysed by the period during which the commitments expire, are as follows.

Expiry wathan 1 year
Expiry within 2 o 5 years
Expriryt within 6 1o 300 s

e
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31.3 ELGAR contract details
Description of the contract

The ELGAR contract covers the provision of a wide range of information systems and services
to the Department, including infrastructure management, T development, business process
re-engineering, consultancy advice and technology refresh.

Over the seven remaining years of the contract the payments are expected to amount to
around £189 million for the core Department.

Estimated capital value
The estimated cumulative capital value of the contract is £26.3 million.
Contract start and end dates

The contract was awarded in November 1988 for a period of 10 years, extendable for up to a
further 5 years. The contract is now set to expire on 31 March 2014.

Qther obligations

The Department has a responsibility to pay termination charges should the Department
exercise its break option before the agreed service end date. These amount to £49.8 million,
comprising £11.8 million for the core service, £21.5 million for the Department’s electronic
records management system and an additional £16.5 million for other {extended) services.

The Insolvency Service (INSS), which is an executive agency whose results are consolidated
into these accounts, also has contracts with ELGAR for the provision of IT services. Further
details can be found in the separate resource accounts of this body.

32. Other financial commitments

The Department has entered into non-cancellable contracts {which are not leases or PFI
contracts), for subscriptions to international bodies. The payments to which the Department is
committed during 2007-08, analysed by the period during which the commitment expires are
as follows:

... r

Eﬁﬂm1m - - 17 17

By witin2 105 years 14671 1477 - -
Expiry thereatter B85 68534 83510 RaSI

@21 gm 63577 63627
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32.1 The amounts disclosed above are for subscriptions paid to the following bodies:

|| ﬂ-\I

Eurogman Space Agency

intamational Atomae Enesgry Agency

World Trade Organisation

Drgasisation for the Prahibition of Chemical Waapons
Intgmational Enery Agency

Bureau svomational des Poids et Mesures [BIPM|
Muclaasr Energy Bgency

Eurngpnan Enemy Charber

LMIDROT

The intermationad Oeganisation of L egal Metrology (QML)
Orjanisation for Economée Co-operstion and Development Steel
Comenities

ELRCRET

Haflmarking Corvention

Tetal

OB e B BB OB B

g':'uturﬁ EE.EJE.E.E|E

B .. wezcuzBiis

-

S

MNotes:

a) The European Space Agency (ESA) carries out civil space programmes for its Member
States, including the UK. The Department’s contributions cover part of the Agency's

general budget, which is, under the ESA Convention, mandatory for all Member States,

who share it in proportion to net national income at factor cost. The UK contribution is
shared between the Department and the Research Councils, which also take part in the

programmes of the Agency, broadly in proportion to their shares in the total UK funding

of the Agency. In 2006-07, the Research Councils concerned were Particle Physics
and Astronomy Research Council (PPARC) and Natural Environment Research Council
(NERC). The Department’s contributions also cover the UK's share of those individual
“optional” programmes of the Agency to which the UK has committed funding, which

are directed towards industrial and commercial objectives.

b} The International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) serves as the world's central inter-
governmental forum for scientific and technical co-operation in the peaceful use of

nuclear technology. A specialised agency within the United Nations system, the |AEA
headquarters are in Vienna. Established as an autonomous organisation under the United
Mations (UN) in 1957, the |AEA represents the culmination of international efforts to

make a reality of US President Eisenhower’s proposal in his Atoms for Peace speech

before the UN General Assembly in 1953, where he envisioned the creation of an

international body to control and develop the use of atomic energy. By 29 July 1957,
eighteen States had ratified the Statute of the IAEA thus bringing it into force and now
the Agency's broad spectrum of services, programmes, and activities is based on the

needs of its 144 Member States.

¢) The Department is responsible for the payment of the UK's annual contribution to the
World Trade Organisation (WTO), which deals with the global rules of trade between

250

——



dj

e)

il

MNotes to the 2008.07 Resource Accounts

nations. Its main function is to ensure that international trade flows as smoothly,
predictably and freely as possible. As a member of the WTO the UK, like other
members, has a legal commitment to pay a contribution to the cost of running the WTO
Secretariat, which is based in Geneva. The UK's share is calculated on the basis of our
international trade in relation to the total international trade of all WTO members.

The Chemical Weapons Convention (CWC), which came into force on 29 April 1897,

Is the first arms control treaty which seeks to introduce a verifiable ban on an entire
class of weapons of mass destruction. It is administered by the Organisation for the
Prohibition of Chemical Weapons (OPCW), which is based in The Hague. As of 6 April
2007 the OPCW had 182 State Parties. DT as the UK National Authority, is responsible
for the implementation of the CWC in the UK. The powers to implement the declaration

and verification provisions in the CWC are contained in the Chemical Weapons Act 1996.

The International Energy Agency (IEA) is the energy adviser arm of OECD. It is an
internationally recognised centre of excellence. As energy has risen up the political
agenda so has the profile of the IEA, The Agency is one of the most important global
energy organisations; it is key to overseeing, and analysing, global security of supply
and is increasingly influencing the climate change agenda, playing an integral part in the
Gleneagles dialogue and in delivering our G8 agenda. It also prepares member countries
to take action in emergency situations, such as Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, and
encourages good practice in energy policy worldwide. The UK's subscription supports
these objectives.

The Bureau International des Poids et Mesures® mandate is to provide the basis for

a single, coherent system of measurements throughout the world, traceable to the
international System of Units (Sl). The annual subscription has been payable since the
Government signed up to the Metre Convention circa 1888,

g} The Department pays the UK's annual contribution to the Nuclear Energy Agency (NEA)

on behalf of a number of Departments and Agencies that participate in the NEA's work.
The NEA is an internationally recognised non-promaotional organisation providing a forum

for addressing and disseminating information on technical scientific and economic issues

affecting nuclear energy alobally.

h} The Department is responsible for the UK's subscription to the Energy Charter Treaty

]

(ECT), which strives towards open, efficient, sustainable and secure energy markets and
promotes a constructive climate conducive to energy interdependence on the basis of
trust between nations. The main aim of the ECT is to liberalise energy trade, transit and
investment within and between its (mainly Eurasian) signatory countries. This is an aim
which the UK strongly supports.

The Department pays an annual contribution towards the running of the International
Institute for the Unification of Private Law (UNIDROIT). UNIDROIT is an independent
intergovarnmental organisation with its seat in Rome. Its purpose is to study needs
and methods for modernising, harmonising and co-ordinating private and in particular
commercial law as between States and groups of States.

The International Organisation of Legal Metrology (OIML) promotes the global
harmonisation of legal metrology procedures. It provides its members with metrological
guidelines for the elaboration of national and regional requirements concerning the
manufacture and use of measuring instruments for legal metrology application. The
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payment is made on behalf of the National Weights and Measures Laboratory and is a
requirement of their international legal metrology role.

k) The Organisation for Economic Co-Operation and Development (OECD) Steef Committee
is the international forum established to discuss steel industry issues such as production
trends, trade flows and issues, market developments and environmental issues. The
Department provides funding as a contribution to the work of the Committee, which is
attended by both OECD and non-OECD members.

) EUROMET is a co-operative voluntary organisation between the National Metrology
Institutes (NMIs) in the EU including the European Commission, EFTA and EU Accession
States. The objective of EUROMET is to promote the co-ordination of metrological
activities and services with the purpose of achieving higher efficiency. EUROMET was
formally established by the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) by
participating States in Madrid, Spain on 23 September 1987 to become operative from
1 January 1988. The Department makes an annual payment on behalf of the National
Physical Laboratory, which is a requirement of their international metrology role.

m} The UK is a member of the Convention on the Control and Marking of Articles of
Precious Metals (Hallmarking Convention), which facilitates the cross border trade of
independently marked precious metal articles. The UK recognises Convention hallmarks
from 12 member countries. Goods marked with Convention hallmarks can be imported
and sold in the UK without the need for additional UK hallmarking.

Other - from 2006-07 the Department did not subscribe to the following bodies:

+ Following on from the UK's accession to the United Nations Convention on the Law of
the Sea, the UK has a legal commitment to provide a proportion of the running costs of
the Convention. The total UK contribution is shared between those Departments with a
significant interest in the Convention. The Department did not subscribe in 2006-07, and
does not intend to in the future.

* The International Lead & Zinc Study Group is an UN-affiliated group set up to bring
transparency to the global lead and zinc markets. The Group's HQ moved from
London to Lisbon in January 2006, The Department was previously responsible for the
UK's annual subscription, however the UK resigned from the group with effect from
31 December 2006.

» The International Nickel Study Group (INSG) is an autonomous, intergovernmental
organisation established in 1990, Membership comprises nickel producing, consuming
and trading countries. The Department made payments to cover the UK annual
membership fee for this UN affiliated Group, based in Lisbon and sharing its HQ with
the International Lead Zinc Study Group. The Department has now ceased paying the
subscription but for 2007 the industry itself is funding the payment so the UK retains
membership for at least one more year.

* The Universal Postal Union (UPU) is the United Nations Agency, which is the primary
forum for co-operation between postal service providers. The UK's membership of
the UPU enables its national postal service operator, Royal Mail, to participate in the
worldwide network of postal operators, to enter into agreements for the exchange of
international mail, and to exchange and develop experiences of best practice in postal

operations. From 2006-07 the annual subscription for UPU membership was paid by the
Roval Mail, ]
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34. Contingent liabilities and assets disclosed under FRS 12

Coal Industry | Any liabilities of Brtish Coal in respect of industnal injury to its former employees between

Act 1994 1947 and 31 December 1994, the timing and amounts of which are uncertain at this time, The
liabilities arise through the vanious health claims that have been rmade by former and current
employeas of British Coal. The uncertainty is due 1o two factors: |

a) the nature of any injury; and |
bl whether the courls decide that compensation is due.

Given recent history, the fact that the burden of proof rests with the plaintiff and that the

compensation level is determined on & case-by-case basis, there is a high level of uncertainty
| relating 1o either the amount of the payments due or whether they are likely to be paid. This |
| uncertainty is also referred to in the Coal Provisions note (Mote 22), Over tima, it is likely that
& more accurate estimate of the expected costs to be borne by the Department will become
available.

Also, there is'a contingent asset as a result of a judge's decision in favour of the Departmant
on 3 April 2007 regarding the fees awarded to solicitors to deal with Coal Health Fast Track
Otfers. There will be a reduction in tanffs for fast track claims which will save the Department |
approximately £100 million. £75 million of this sum will be recouped from solicitors in respect of | |
overpayments made on past settlements. The Department is currently in the process of agreeing
an effective mechanism for recovery of these overpaymenis and are expecting 1o recover mast
af the money during 2007-08.

British Energy The following contingent liabilities arise from the Department’s support for British Energy (BEL
al Uncontracted and Decommissioning Liabilities l

British Energy Muclear Liabilities. As part of the restructuring of BE, completed on 14 January
2005, the Departrent assumed rasponsibility for these labilities to the extent that the NLF is i
insufficient to meet habilities as they fall due. Once the NLF has discharged all liabilities for which
it is responsible, any surplus remaining in the Fund would be payable to the Government.

There 1s a high level of uncertainty ralating to possible future cash flows which the Dapariment

| might need to make. This is dependent on BE's estimates for the costs of meating their

decommissioning and uncontracted lisbilities which may be revised year on year. The BE cash

| sweep payment is difficult to forecast as it is dependent upon the parformance of the company.
&s such it is hard to guantify whether this represents a contingent liability or asset. On the basis

| of Department’s current estimate of the assets avaitable to the NLF to meet its liabilities (£6.4 :
billion: 2006 £8.1 bilion) and BE's unaudited estimate for decommissioning and uncontracted

| liabilities (£4.3 illion: 2006 £4.0 billion) there is a contingent asset of £2.1hillion (2006: £4.1

| billank. The lishilities figure s subject 1o review by the ND&, the results of which had not been
recevad at the time of finalising these accounts.

bl Trustes Indamnities

Indemnities have been given to the three trustees of the NLF appointed by the Secretary of
State, Indemnities have also been given to the two BE appoinied trustees of the NLF against
personal liability following any legal action against the Fund. These indemnities can only be used
following failed recourse to an indemnity given by BE.

| The Department has a range of civil nuclear habilities arising through its association with UKAEA
| and NDA as well as ensuring that the Government complies with its obligations under the various

Nuciear

international nuclear agreements and treaties, The amount and timing of this overarching liability
i% not quantifiabie.

Heafth and There is a possibility of claims arising from former employees for compensation for industrial

Safety injury or disease allegedly arising from a period of employment at one or other of the former
research establishments of the Department, The timing and amount of such claims are not
quantifiable.
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The Hoyal Mail financing package agreed on 20 Decamber 2002 was amended and restated and
a new financial agreement was finalised on 23 March 2007, The effect baing that the existing
facility (which Royal Mail did not utilise) to buy a bond of up to £300 million issued by Royal Mail,
has been cancelled and replaced by a facility provided by the National Loans Fund

The Depaniment has agreed 1o provide a " Shareholder Loan™ which is subordinated cradit facility
of up to £300 millian that will be available to Royal Mail until 22 March 2009,

The Department has agreed to the release of E850 million of reserves that Royal Mail built up
through past profitable performance can be transferred to a special account, the pension escrow
account, which the pension fund trustees can draw on in the event that Royal Mail should fail as
a business.

The Department has also made available to Post Office Limited, through an agreement reached
on 17 October 2003, a revelving loan facility of up to £1.15 billion. This is to help the company
fund its working capital requirements in fight of the migration of state benefits payments to a
system of direct paymant, alongside a Government commitment that benefit recipients will still
be able to collect their benefit, in cash and in full, from post office branches. Post Office Limited
began utilising this facility on 1 December 2003. The agreemant allows for the company to have
up to 30 concurrent loans out at any ane time with loan periods which can be one day or longer.
The availability of the facility ends on 30 March 2010 and any outstanding loans must be repaid
by 31 March 2010. The proposal for 8 Working Capital package was given EU State Aid clearance
in May 2003

Action is being brought against the Department by PPL Ltd, which is the trade association
which repragents the recording and music industry. PPL are claiming that the Department failed
to implement a European Directive which was intended to be beneficial to the industry, in the
manner intended, with the result that its members have been financially disadvantaged. PPL are
saaking £100 million in Francovich damages from the Department, The Department intends 1o
defend this action and expert counsel has been appointed,

| Following a report in February 2007 by the Ombudsman on the Trawlermen's COMmpensation

scheme set up in 2000, the Department has agread to review the scheme rules and eligibility
criteria for consistency with the policy intention behind the scheme; and, if it is concluded that
they were inconsistent, to re-assess all claims against new critenia. This review is still underway
and it is therefore not yet possible to assess whether thare will be any financial consequences
arising from it

There are contingent liabilities that arise from the Department's assurances and guarantees 1o

British Shipbuilders as follows:

Following a Court of Appeal ruling in January 2006, compensation payments for plaural

plaques claims {valued at £22 5 million) established under previous case law have now bean
abohshed li.e. the ruling was that those suffering with pleural plaques are not suffering from any
compensable injury). British Shipbuilders is presently applying the law as it now stands in respect
of solely pleural plaques injury claims cases it receives. However, it remains a contingent liability |
pending the outcome of an appeal to the House of Losds against the Court of Appeal ruling, [

Following the Compensation Act 20068, which reversed the affects of a previous judgement and
s0 e@nables mesothelioma claimants to recover full compensation from any lisble person there arae
likety 10 be unguantifiable increases to the existing prowision in relation 1o British Shipbuilders,
British Shipbuilders plan to undertake an actuarial review at the end of 2007 which will estimate
the liahility.
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35. Contingent liabilities not required to be disclosed under FRS 12 but included
for parliamentary reporting and accountability purposes
35.1 Quantifiable

The Department has entered into the following quantifiable contingent liabilities by offering
guarantees or indemnities. None of these is a contingent liability within the meaning of FRS 12
since the likelihood of a transfer of economic benefit in settlement is too remote.

i 2

S —— D T o et v

Stasutory Guaraniees

~ Home Shipbuikdieg Credit Guararee Scheme 56,000 - - (13,0007 37,000

Sratutony Indamnities

~ Local Network Indemaities 56976 - - 1590] 56,386,

hther

— Callabie capital subscription for the Comman Fund for 1960 - - - 1960
: : S

- Pad in capited subscription far the Common Fund for z240 - - = 2240
Commardes

Total n,176 - - (19,580) 91,586

I.‘. ; _p"

Maote: 1 — Obligation expired in year relates 1o cases closed andfor completed contracts.

35.2 Unquantifiable

The Departrent has entered into the following unquantifiable contingent liabilities by offering
guarantees, indemnities or by giving letters of comfort. None of these is a contingent liability
within the meaning of FRS 12 since the possibility of a transfer of economic benefit in
sattlement is too remote.

Statutory guarantees
¢ (Guarantees given to meet any deficits in the funds of British Coal Corporation Pensions;

* A guarantee has been given to the Financial Reporting Council that if the amount held in
the Legal Costs Fund falls below £1 million in any year, an additional grant will be made
to cover legal costs subsequently incurred in that year;

* Any liabilities imposed by section 68, Telecommunications Act 1984;

* Any liabilities imposed by section 9, British Aerospace Act 1980.

Statutory indemnities

* |ndemnities given to UKAEA by the Secretary of State to cover certain indemnities given
by UKAEA to carriers and British Muclear Fuels ple against certain claims for damage
caused by nuclear matter in the course of carriage;

* |ndemnity in respect of National Grid Company’s liabilities re the interconnector linking

i
i.
England and France;
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Indemnities equivalent to those given to civil servants under the Civil Service
Management Code have been given to persons appointed to the Board of the Office of
Fair Trading, including the Chairman;

Indemnities equivalent to those given to Board members of Non-Departmental Public
Bodies (NDPBs) have been given to members of the nine Regional Committees of
Postwatch (the Consumer Council for Postal Services);

Indemnities given to Bankers of the Insolvency Services against certain liabilities arising
in respect of non-transferable "account payee” cheques due to insolvent estates and
paid into the Insolvency Service's account. !

The Police Information Technology Organisation (Home Office) provides the Department
with access to data from the Paolice National Computer (PNC). The Department has
indemnified the police against any liabilities which they might incur as a result of
providing that access.

Letters of comfort

Cither

Letter of comfort to AEA Technology re joint European project for underground
gasification of coal.

Statutory liability for third party claims in excess of the operator's liability in the event of
a nuclear accident in the UK;

Further incidentsfaccidents insurance claims for exposure to ionising radiation pursued
outside the existing UKAEA insurance schems;

Liabilities relating to the issue of licences to operators of satellites and other space
objects;

European Patent Office (EPO): the UK as one of the contracting states has a potential
liability under Article 40 of the European Patent Convention of 1973;

World Intellectual Property Organisation: the UK, as a contracting state to the Patent
Co-operation Treaty of 1970, has a potential liability under Article 57 of the Treaty;

Outstanding claims under the Enemy Property Claim scheme are still being considered;

There is a possibility that other liabilities exist in relation to nationalised, and former
nationalised, industries that, if they crystallised, may fall to the Department.

These liabilities are unquantifiable due to the nature of the liability and the uncertainties
surrounding them.

Mote: (il — Only this contingent liability relates to an agency. All other liabilities relate to the core Departmant
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36. Losses and special payments

The disclosures in this note are in accordance with the Government Accounting Manual. '
The purpose of this note is to report on losses and special payments of particular interest to
Parliament.

36.1 Losses statement

Total 3570 5,569
I'-\.\__ B _'.‘l

"IH

Details of a case over £250,000

Included in the above is one case of loss relating to the Insolvency Service, an executive |
agency of the Department. The Insolvency Service, agreed to undertake, on a without prejudice
basis, a joint project review of the Cameao IT system. The Cameo IT system was intended

to replace two current IT systems running the estate accounting functions for the Official

Receiver and insolvency practitioner cases. The review was completed in November 2005. |
An agreement was reached with the PFl provider to re-commence the project with a new
sub-contractor. The first stage of this work was a 12 week review of the development to date

and an update of The Service's business requirements. This was completed between June and
October 2006.

Further negotiations were then undertaken but these led to a decision not to proceed and
the contract with the PFl provider was brought to an end by mutual agreement. A total of
£3,359,000 of an asset under construction was written off as a result of the impairment
review. This write-off meets the Government Accounting definition of a constructive loss.
The Insolvency Services Annual Report and Accounts 2006-07 include further details.

———

36.2 Special payments '

Special payments include extra-contractual, ex-gratia and compensation payments. |

Mo individual payments exceeded £250,000.
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37. Related-party transactions

The Department is the parent of the Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS), the
Insolvency Service (INSS), the National Weights and Measures Laboratory (NWML), and the
Small Business Service (SBS) and sponsor of the Non-Departmental Public Bodies (shown in
section 3.3 to this Report), Companies House and the Patent Office (Trading Funds) and Royal
Mail Holdings plc, British Shipbuilders, BNFL plc and OFCOM. In addition British Energy is
considered to be a quasi-subsidiary of the Department. These bodies are regarded as related
parties with which the Department has had various material transactions during the year.

In addition the Department acts as guarantor for the Mineworkers’ Pension Scheme (MPS) and
the British Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme (BCSSS). These schemes have been disclosed
as fixed asset investments in the accounts with corresponding debtors, arising from surpluses
in the respective funds, being shown as current asset investments. The Government, through
the Secretary of State, appoints five of the MPS's Committee of Management. Of these five,
two are also members of the BCSSS Committee of Management. There were no transactions
between the Department and Coal Pension Trustee Services Ltd, a jointly owned venture of
the MPS and the BCSSS.

In addition the Department has had various material transactions with other Government
Departments and Government bodies, The most significant of these transactions have been
with the Department for Communities and Local Government; the Department for Education
and Skills, and the Department for the Environment Food and Rural Affairs.

Mary McAnally, an independent member of the Management Board until June 2008, was also
an independent board member of the South East of England Development Agency (SEEDA).
SEEDA is a NDPB sponsored by the Department, which received grant in aid payments
totalling £62m during 2006-07.

None of the Department’s ministers, other Board members, key managerial staff or other
related parties has undertaken any material transaction with the Department during the year.

38. Post Balance Sheet events
38.1 Post Office network support

On 14 December 2006 the Department launched a 12-week national consultation on proposals
for the future of the Post Office network. The consultation closed on 8 March 2007 having
attracted some 2,500 responses. DTI published its response on 17 May 2007, announcing
investment of up to £1.7 billion, subject to EC State Aid clearance, the compensated closure
of a maximum of 2,500 branches, partly offset by 500 new Qutreach sites and the introduction
of minimum access criteria. The Government's package is aimed at maintaining a national
network and placing it on a sustainable footing for the longer term.

38.2 Sale of British Energy interests

On 1 June 2007 the Nuclear Liabilities Fund (NLF), a Central Government body, in which the
Department has an interest, but which is not consolidated in the Accounts (as it is outside of
the accounting boundary), converted and sold 450 million shares in British Energy Group plc
(BE) at £5.20 per share realising £2.3bn, reducing the Nuclear Liability Fund's interest in British
Energy from 64% to 36%. We estimate that the contingent asset disclosed on page 254 to the
accounts has increased to £2.6 billion. The increase in the contingent asset is principally driven
- by the value of BE shares which increased between the year end and the date of sale.
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38.3 Technology Strategy Board

The March 2006 Budget stated that the advisory Technology Strategy Board (TSB) would be
given a wider remit to stimulate business innovation in those areas that offered the greatest
scope for boosting growth and productivity, and that it should be set up at arm’s length to the
Government. In November 2006, the Secretary of State announced that the new TSB would be
an executive NDPB, based in Swindon.

Following debates in both Houses of Parliament, an Order in Council establishing the TSB
under the Science and Technology Act was approved by the Privy Council in February 2007 and
the Royal Charter incorporating the body was printed and sealed on 27 March 2007. The new
body was formed on 2 July 2007.

38.4 Science and Technology Facilities Council

The Science and Technology Facilities Council (STFC), a new research council resulting from
the merger of the Particle Physics and Astronomy Research Councils (PPARC) and the Council
for the Central Laboratory of the Research Council (CCLRC), was formed by Royal Charter, with
MDPE status, on 1 April 2007.

38.5 Small Business Service

The Secretary of State announced in Parliament in October 2006 that the Small Business Service
(SBS) would become a smaller, sharply focused paolicy unit with close links with business and
with other parts of Government. The SBS would no longer deliver services. Wherever possible,
support programmes would be run by its delivery partners close to customers, regionally or
locally. SBS would no longer need the status of being an executive agency. In April 2007 it
started operating as a policy unit within the Department’s Enterprise and Business Group.

38.6 Machinery of Government Change (MoG)

Following an announcement by the Prime Minister on 28 June 2007 about the way Government
is organised, the Department ceased to operate as the DTI. The Department for Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform (BERR) was created. The successor Department will assume
much of the work of the DTI. At the same time the Department for Innovation, Universities and
Skills (DIUS) was established, which will take forward the science and innovation aspects of the
DTI's work. These changes also resulted in changes to ministerial repsonsibilites.

38.7 Date Accounts Authorised for Issue

The Accounting Officer of the Department has authorised these accounts to be issued on
23 July 2007,

39. Third-party assets

The following are balances on accounts held in the Department’s name at commercial banks
but which are not the Department’'s monies, They are held or controlled for the benefit of third
parties and are not included in the Department’s Resource Accounts.

Hark balances 796 9,380
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Section 6.1
Introduction

y/

6.1 In the previous chapters (4 and 5), the financial performance of the
Department is shown from the perspective of the Consolidated Resource
Accounts. This chapter describes the budgetary spend of the whole Departmental
family. It contains detailed financial information covering the period from 2001-02 to
2007-08, the end of the Spending Review 2004 period. Following announcements
by the Prime Minister on 28 June 2007 (see section 1.1), the 2007-08 budgets will
be allocated to the DTI's successor Departments: the Department for Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform, and the Department for Innovation, Universities
and Skills.

6.2 Section 6.2 provides a detailed variance analysis between 2005-06 outturns,
2006-07 outturns and 2006-07 budgets. Section 6.3 contains the core Departmental
expenditure tables showing how the Departmental family spends its budgets. The
format of the tables has been agreed with HM Treasury.

6.3 Departmental expenditure is analysed in resource terms, showing
consumption of resources and capital investment. Budgets comprise Departmental
Expenditure Limits (DEL)" and Annually Managed Expenditure (AME], and

include the expenditure of the main Department, its Executive Agencies and the
Non-Departmental Public Bodies (NDPBs) sponsored by the Department. The
information here includes both Voted and non Voted expenditure as described

in chapter 4. The Department is required to manage DEL spend within control
totals agreed with HM Treasury, These are total Capital DEL, total Resource

DEL (both near cash and non cash expenditure), near cash within Resource DEL,
and administration costs. Parliamentary control over Departmental expenditure

s exercised through the voted approval of Departmental Supply Estimates,
comprising Main and Supplementary Estimates, presented during the course of
each financial year. Supply Estimates formally approve the resource and capital
expenditure by the consolidated Department and its Executive Agencies, and the
granting of cash to NDPBs. This process is explained in greater detail in chapter 4.

6.5 The Consolidated Resource Accounts in chapter 5 provide outturns against
the totals in Supply Estimates. The relationship between these outturns and

the outturns shown in the following tables is explained in section 4.3 (Financial
Review), see the reconciliation between Net Resource Outturn (Estimates) and Net
Resource Outturn (Budget) on page 176.

6.6 Section 6.4 provides a Glossary of the financial terms used in this chapter.

Itakcizad ferms are explamned o the Glossary of Tarms ot section [6.4]
L5656
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Budgetary spend from year
to year
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6.7 This section provides information about the significant movements in the
Department’'s DEL and AME budgets from 2005-06 to 2006-07. It explains, for
Resource and Capital budgets, the reasons for the differences in outturns between
2005-06 and 2006-07, referring where necessary to additional funding for new
services or programmes. It also explains the reasons for variances between
outturns and budgets for 2006-07.
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Section 6.3
Expenditure tables

s

Table 1 — Total Public Spending

6.8 Table 1 summarises expenditure on functions administered by the Department, covering
the period from 2001-02 to 2007-08. Current and future year figures reflect budgeted figures
agreed with HM Treasury, Consumption of Resources includes programme and administration
costs. Total Departmental expenditure is analysed by high-level Departmental functions
corresponding to separate Requests for Resources in Departmental Supply Estimates, and any
unallocated provision.

6.9 The figures shown as 2007-08 plans reflect the original DTI budgets. Thase will be
allocated to its successor departments created in June 2007 (BERR and DIUS, sea section 1.1)
in due course.

'a ~

Table 1 Department of Trade and Industry Total Public Spending

Resounrce budget
Resource DEL |
Increasng UK Compatiivenass (2] 3065581 1ER 7 1643977 TOWmT ZETIBAY 7OB47oE 30003
Increasing Scientific Bcellenca (31 1ET560  1B4197  LTISIE 2022135 2412260 2505 27T
Uinafiocared Provision - - - - - = 4,306
UIKAEA pansion schemes (4] = - E = = = =
Total Resource Budget DEL 4645541  3IME04 3382695 4081062 2 5086102 5505330 5991805
of whsch; s cash a4 305A7I8 3IMEN GMAEM 48863 SITI4EE 5749438
Resource AME
Inceasing UK Competitivaness. 102315 3456040 178002 567545 mE8T 1S5 -35TTR
Irezeasng Sceentific Exallence 51 50 = 11,182 15,100 17,202 18.087
UKAEA pension sehomes (4] MmO AN WI0M B8 01 DASTE MR
Total Resource Budget AME 124072  3EMEN 1,485,102 =310.a17 367,758 440,580 -58,798
of which near cash SEE 12W34% 13438 123065 IS0ZE® 10BN 89
Tatal Resource Budget 5869613 6M2515  4ETIIM? 370745 5453900 5546310 5933007
of which: degreciation 1038 128194 189 150485 163884 146384 140689
Capital Budget =
Capital DEL
Increasing Soientific Baslioncs TR 1539 565,789 575,14 g7z 132,805 GAE 248
Unallocated Provision = - - - - - ns
Total Capital Budget DEL 593380 642660 1003175 779892 1154674 1165970 1153156
N L
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Table 1 Department of Trade and Industry Total Public Spending {continued)
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Table 2 - Total Resource Budget

6.10 Table 2 provides a more detailed analysis of the resource budget information
summarised in Table 1. It shows expenditure by each of the business plan objectives,
which define the purposes for which Departmental resources are used. More detail
on the spend per business plan objective (both resource and capital) is provided in the
tables at the end of each of sections 2.4 to 2.8.

6.11 The table includes an explanation of any significant vaniances between the
estimated outturns for 2005-06 presented in the Departmental Report for 2006, and
the final outturns for 2005-06 presentad in these tables. There are also other notes
to provide further information as appropriate. 2006-07 outturns are those used for the
2006-07 Public Expenditure Qutturn White Paper.

~
Table 2 Resource budget for the Departmeant of Trade and Industry
DTl Resource Qutturns 2001-02 to 2007-08
6000 —
5000 —
40040
o 3000
2000
1000
i I | |
1000 —
2001-02 200203 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 200607 200708
Financial Year
B Totsl Resource Budget DEL Total Aesource Budget AME
B
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Table 2 Resource budget for the Department of Trade and Industry (continued)

Corporate Activity and Insovency Framawark 2358 7OIE 248800 186436 Z2TI0 MMGG ZS8E9

!HihamﬂshmmMMmdﬂhhmﬁﬁmmmmw-ﬂIMmhhm

1 Al 006 i_lﬂ

?I Inchedes WHWMHMEM .
131 Includes expendiure by the Small Business Senvice
14} Inclsdes expenidiure by Regional Development Aencies
HTMMmhhﬂ-MmﬁuﬁTmmmﬂTlewﬂﬁnWWMImm
151 Inclueles expendiure by the Advisary Coneilcation and Aritration Senvce (ACAS)
Ewmwhm&lﬂmm

mmw
5 2005-06 includes ﬁﬂrmw
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Table 3 — Total Capital Budget

6.12 Table 3 provides a more detailed analysis of the Capital budget information
summarised in Table 1. It shows expenditure by each of the business plan

objectives, which define the purposes for which Departmental Resources are used, %EE
More detail on the spend per business plan objective (both resource and capital) is £ E %
provided in the tables at the end of each of sections 2.4 to 2.8, ol
6.13 The table includes an explanation of any significant variances between the
estimated outturns for 2005-06 presented in the Departmental Report for 2006,
and the final outturns for 2005-06 presented in these tables. There are also other 8
" - x g =
notes to provide further information as appropriate. 2006-07 outturns are those 2 -
used for the 2006-07 Public Expenditure Outturn White Paper. 5 Ei
325
4 N\
Table 3 Capital budget for the Department of Trade and Industry
DTI Capital Budget Qutturns 2001-02 to 2007-08 E
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Table 4 - Total Capital Employed

6.14 Table 4 shows capital employed by the Department in balance sheet format as disclosed in
the Department’s Resource Accounts. It also shows as a separate line the net capital employed by

NDPBs, which are not included in the Department’s Resource Accounts, to give a total figure for
capital employed by the Departmental Family.

- A
Table 4 Capital employved by the Department of Trade and Industry
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Table 5 - Administration Costs

6.15 Table 5 provides a more detailed analysis of the administration costs of the Department.
It retains the high level tfunctional analysis used in Table 1.

Table 5 Administration Costs of the Department of Trade and Industry

DTl Met Administration costs 2001-02 to 2007-08
350

340 —

330 —

20—
30—
200 —
290 —
280 —
2
200 —
250

£ millicn

200102 200203 2003-04 2004-05 200607 200708
Financial Year

183 5 " m 174 7 171
5 %0 74 190 147 152 160
g 485 56 61 an m
=131 =14 -1} =17 - -n =14
Fi i 2 o k] s 305 n7
maas‘m Sﬁmiﬁc Em:ﬁm 12 14 17 13 8 8 g
 Total Net Administration costs 7 ki3 a2 M s 305 "

1 {hutiuens have been restated from those disclosed in the 2005 Depsrtmental Report following the ransfor of th Employment Tnbunals
Seevic b the Manistry of Jusiice

2 Administration income redates mainly to charges ta minar oooupiens of the Dogarimental estate; and fee meome af the Insalvancy Seavice and tha (ffice of
Civil Nuclear Secuty.
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Table 6 = Staff Mumbers

6.16 Table 6 shows statf numbers employed by the main Department and its
agencies, including the trading funds. All staff numbers reported are an average
taken across the financial year and expressed as full-time equivalents (FTE). The
staff numbers have been compiled on the same basis as those in the Consolidated
Departmental Resource Accounts. {see Note 9 in section 5.6)

( E
Department of Trade and Industry (DTI)?

1 Core DTI, where core OTI refers 1o DT HO, 5BS, and DT & 5BS5 actities n Governmeant Offices, committed
to achieve 1010 staff reductions as part of the SR04 afficiency programma. This target was mat in April 2008
a#nd has been further excesded during 2006-07. With ragard fo the SR04 headcount reduction the DT basalina
i the 1 April 2004 baseling and not the average workforce for the 2004-05 period.

2 The J007-08 planned =tafl numbers are shown against DTI but in dus course they will be allocated to its
successor departments (BEAR and DIUS, see section 1.1). Actual staff numbers for the new departments
durimg 2007-08 will be reported naxt year i their respactve Annual Reports.

3 Thi numbers for D7) 2004-05 to 2006-07 include stalf working in DT HO, the Office for Manpower Ezonomics

[OME) and Government Office staff working on DTl and 5ES activities. 2007-08 plans include planned stafl

numbers for the Degartmantal HO, the Office tor Manpower Economics (OME) and Governmeant Office staff

working on Deparimental and SBS actvites, and SBS.

CS FTEs refers to FTE parmanent stafl in oivil service posts.

Others rafers to non-permanent siaff engaged on the obiectives of the crganisation.

As of 1 Apnil 2007 585 has ceased to be an executive agency, and it has continued as a policy unii within the

Dapartiment. To reflect this change, SBS staff numbaers will no langer cantinue 1o be shown saparataly and will

instaad be included in the Department’s staff numbars.

7 UET] committed to deliver 200 siaff reductions in iis offices m London, Glasgow, Cambndge and Birmingham
during the SR04 penod as part of ihe efficiency programme, This was achieved in December 2006,
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6.17 The following table reports the annual average staff numbers over the
financial year in the Department's executive agencies. As part of the SR04
efficiency programme the Department’s executive agencies committed to deliver
270 staff reductions by March 2008; they are currently on track to meet this

target. Please note that NWML and the Insolvency Service are included in the the E
Department’s Consolidated Resource Account, and therefore their staff numbers

are also reported in the accounts. Companies House and the Intellectual Property
Office staff numbers are not included in the Department’s Consolidated Resource
Account, and their staff numbers are not reported in the accounts.

a
™ i 7
The Department’s Executive Agencies E o =+
1
o P
P
E
Es
g
[ =
28
= 9
e
= |
=]
5
e
ER
-
e
Lk
&
5 g5
€8s
=
H
é’ :
FE:I
=
i 3
¥,
Notes: R
1 The 2004-05 data for the Insolvency Service was unaudited when published in a previous Departmental
Raport. The audited data, including a figure for Others was subsequantly published in the Insolvency Service -
Annual Accounts for 20048-05 hup e insobwancy, gov.ukipdfsfannual2004-05web paf. The awdited total o
figure, includeng Others, waa 1887 ! 2
2 Figures for 200607 orwards include Companies Investigstion Branch (CIB) staff and rellect siaffing levels v
requirad for rising case numbers. £ ﬂ%
3  ACAS is one of the Department’s Non-Departrental Public Bodies, ACAS is included in the Department’s E

Consolidated Resource Account, and so ACAS stafl numbers are reponted to allow for @ consistent comparson
betwean staff numbers repored in the consohidatad resource BCODUNT
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General introduction to Country
and Regional Analysis Tables
(7, 8 and 9)

6.18 Tables 7, B and 9 show analyses of the
Department’s spending by country and region,
and by function. The data presentad in thesa
tables is consistent with the country and regional
analyses [CRA) published by HM Treasury in
Chapter 9 of the PESA 2007, The figures were
taken from the HM Treasury public spending
database in December 2006 and the regional
distributions were completed in January and
February 2007. Therefore the tables may not
show the latest position and are not consistent
with oiher tables in this document,

B6.19 The analyses are et within the overall
framework of Total Expenditure on Services
(TES). TES broadly represents the currant and
capital expenditure of the pubhc sector, with
some differences from the national agcounts
measure Total Managed Expenditure. The
tables show the central government and public
corporation elements of TES. They include
current and capital spending by the Department
and its NDPBs, and public corporations’ capital
expenditure, but do not include capital finance
to public corporations. Thay do not include
payments 1o local authonties or local authorities”
own expenditure.

6.20 TES is a near cash measure of public
spanding. The tables do not include depreciation,
cost of capital charges, of movemants in
provisions that are in the Department's budget,
They do include pay, procurement, capital
expenditure, and grants and subsidies to
individuals and private sactor enterprises. Further
information on TES can be found in Appendix E
of PESA 2007,

6.21 The data is based on a subset of
spanding — identifisble expenditure on services

- which is capable of baing analysed as being for
the banefit of individual countries and regions.
Expenditure that 15 for the benefit of the UK as a
whale is excluded,

6.22 Across government, most expenditure

is not planned or allocated on a regional baszis.
Social security payments, for example, are paid
1o eligible individuals irrespective of where

they live. Expenditure on other programmas

is allocated by looking at how all the projects
across the Department’s area of responsibility,
usually Ergland, compare. So the analyses show

482

the regional outcome of spending decisions that
on the whole have not been made primanly on.a
regional basis.

6.23 The Department’s expenditure
encompasses a wide range of programmes,
and the method of allocation by region will vary
according to the nature of each programme.
Transter payments to individuals are generally
allocated 1o the region of the residence of the
recipient. Transfer payments to institutions are
normally allocated an the basis of the location
of the recipient institution, as a proxy for tha
location that benefits from the spending. Wherne
directhy measured data is unavailable, suitable
formulae determined in consultation with
Departmental statisticians have been used.

Table 7 - Total spend by
Country/Region

6.24 Table 7 shows identifiable expenditure on
servicas, i.e, axpanditure which can ba shown
as being for the benefit of specific countries and
regions, It also includes, for completeneszs, a line
for non idantifiable expenditure |.e. that which is
deemed 1o be on behalf of the United Kingdom
as a whola. Motes 1o the table provide further
information about specific regional spending.

Table 8 - Total spend per head
by Country/Region

6.25 Tsble 8 analyses the data identifiabla
expenditure underlying Table 6, per head of
population, The explanatory notes at the foot of
Table 7 are also relevant 1o the regional analysis
shown in Table 8.

Table 9 - Spend on function/
programme by Country/Region for
2005-06

6.26 Table 9 shows the outturns for 2005-06
in Table & analysed into functional categonias.
These categories are the standard United
Mations Functions of Government ([COFOG)
categones, the imernational standard. The
presentation of spending by function is
consistent with that used in chapter 9 of Public
Expenditure Statistical Analysis (PESA} 2007,
These are not the same as Estimate Functions
used in ather tables in this report. Figures for
2006-07 wera not yet available at the time of

going to print.
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Table 7: Trade and Industry identifiable expenditure on services, by country and region i P
e = o L
Noorth et 1560 1931 el 2.4 2788 sl 7157 £
North West B2 Ll 7881 40 10568 008 10665 @ 5d
Yoorkshire and Humda sty 038 4157 4585 541.0 49 .5 4613
East Midiands i) 284 67 3183 348 T84 3168 |
West Midlands 706.3 7608 207 |08 e Mis 392
Eastarn 742 435 35 4594 4815 4683 42 g .
Lendon 38 4787 544 5900 6020 6284 5778 E 5
South East 5145 6244 B463 725 1078 11698 1428 S5
South West rries 007 308.8 79 2 35 4374 _E‘L' i; r
Total England 2286.1 38585 #0628 46613 5084.9 574 5060 9
Scotland 4775 48E1 5462 5103 5930 122 1207 "
Waies 1966 73 =7 257 2658 248 702 e
Northem Irafand 316 36.2 06 36,6 405 555 E1D E =
Total UK identifiable expenditure N8 #609.1 48933 54939 63642 £900.0 64628 -
Dutside UK 757 7542 340 a5 31 W8 a5 'E -';i
Total identifiable expenditure 41670 48633 5207.3 5843.4 67633 12518 68627 Ed
Nan-identifiabie eapenditure 5199 5028 EAZ.0 £50.0 654 4315 14628
Total exponditure on services wems  mee el Mma4 T mm3 mas |
H““ ! I a
E@wimm the Naorth YWest of England is comparatively hagh because of the allocation of the bulk of costs relating British Muclear Fusls pic and : o
mm Eﬂﬂlla!'lﬂ ks highar than the athes tritons cutsida England becaess of the allocation of over 50% of Depanmental spand on nuclaas I'é ® v_
[Expenditure in Smﬁn&?ﬁulnm &l Seotland shows a marked increase from 2005-06 follewing the ereation of the Roclear Decommessioning Authondy, ._g E 1:,
\ J =
Table 8: Trade and Industry identifiable expenditure on services, by country and region, per head -‘H' |
33
INarth East 614 Th: 30 1133 1050 1266 108 !E §£’;
Morth West 1230 1230 158 1418 1544 1515 1348 R
Yorkshre and Humberside B1.0 33 .5 04 %5 (1R F39
 East Mithands 5.1 04 827 744 B0 873 71 =
West Midlands 391 432 547 676 M3 634 BL.1 §
Eastom 93 818 08 g5 @9 ik B8 e
Londan 518 B4 740 194 Bl BB 755 i ‘
* South East B 6 794 %5 1271 1425 1386 32
South West 551 621 518 641 712 BB 840
Total England 865 n 815 931 1008 1084 593
Scotland B4 %54 0.0 1123 195 230 2141 |
Wiges B4 735 B4 64 B 923 77 _
Northern kretand 181 N3 179 24 75 w7 1 : ﬁ
%5 1 B2 08 1057 140 106.3 §
) |d#
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Section 6.4
Glossary of financial terms

o

AME - Annusally Managed Expenditure. Expenditure not controlled through the
Spending Review process. AME budgets are set in consultation with HM Treasury
during twice yearly reviews. AME expenditure is separated from DEL because

it is by nature volatile and difficult to effectively manage in the 3 year Spending
Review framework. The Department’'s AME expenditure is mainly concerned

with the discharge of nuclear decommissioning liabilities and payments to former
minewoarkers in respect of health claims.

Capital - Expenditure on tangible fixed assets (net of disposals and profitfloss on
disposal), new investments and capital grants.

DEL - Departmental Expenditure Limits; the Department’s 3 year budget set as
part of the Spending Review process.

Executive Agencies - For the purposes of these tables, the Department’s
Executive Agencies are the Small Business Service, the Insolvency Service and
the National Weights and Measures Laboratory. The Patent Office and Companies
House are Trading Funds, and their expenditure is not included in the expenditure
tables, though they are included in the headcount table,

Grant in aid — Cash payments made to bodies (normally NDPBs) to fund their
activities. Grant in aid is paid where the government has decided, subject to
parhamentary controls, that the recipient body should operate at arm's length from
the sponsoring Department.

Near cash — Transactions measured on an accruals basis which result in real cash
flows in the near future e.g. expenditure on pay, purchases and current grants,
subsidies and payments against provisions.

Non-Budget Expenditure — Expenditure approved in the Supply Estimates and
included in the Department’s Resource Accounts which does not score against the
Department’'s DEL or AME budgets. Most commonly refers to the cash funding of
NDPBs by grant in aid (see above). The actual expenditure by the NDPBs scores in
budgets.

Non-cash — Transactions which are included to reflect the full economic cost of
activities and the usage of long-term assets e.g. depreciation, profit or loss on
disposal of balance sheet assets, cost of capital and movements in provisions.

Non-Departmental Public Bodies - A list of NDPBs for which the Department
acts as sponsor is included in Section 3.3.

Supply Estimates — The means by which Parliament grants formal approval for the
Department’s annual expenditure plans. An Estimate can comprise one or more
Request for Resources (RfR). Requests for additional funds in-year are made in
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Annex A.1

Quality of data systems used

A

A1. Performance against the Department’s current public service agreement
targets is described throughout chapter 2. Various data sources are used to
measure this performance. This annex contains brief comments on methodology
and reliability of such data systems used to measure perforrance against the
Department's current PSA targets as well as our efficiency targets

A2,

In the interest of brevity, where such infarmation is available elsewhere (for

instance in the online publication of a survey used), this Report only provides a link
(internet links are correct at time of publication of this Report, but are subject to
changel. In particular, where performance is measured on the basis of ONS
"Mational Statistics” data, this Report does not provide details on the guality of

such data. The term
believe to be sufficiently reliable

Efficiency targets (page 140)

A3. Descripions of each of the major
efficiency delivery programme work streams,
and greater detal on measuramant matrics and
methodologies, data sources and quality
assurance measuras are included in tha

Department's efficiency technical note.!

Ad. Each Objective within the Business Plan

ncludes at keast one efficiency 1arget,

gemaonstratng that efficiency 1S delivered by avery

part of the Department’s business. The

apartment’s parformance managemant

rramawork damonstrates through quartery
scorecard reporting the impact of efficiency on
the Department’s progress towards PSA targets
and othar business planning objactivas, requirng
a balanced examination of specific budget lines
against performance management targets. To
date, scorecard reporis hawve shown maintained or
mpraved performance against the lines being

trackad as efficiency gains,

A5, The OGC Efficcency Team review the
progress of tha Department’s efficiency delivery
programme at 8 twice-yearly Moderation Panae
Thia Depariment receved positive feedback at is
The EHicier (=]

obpecivesiathiciency-technical-notefpaga2 5152 hitmil

"National Statistic” is applied to data series that the ONS

most recant assessment in November 2006
The Department’s Internal Audit Unit has also
commissioned penodic reviews of the
Department’s financial and quality efficiency
measures and Monitanng systaems, I.’1'\v'{:l|'v'll1§.]
independent assessment by
FricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) The
Dapartmeant’s threa main efficiency dalivery work
streams (Business Support, RDAs and Research
Councils) include within their delivery plans and
measurement methodologies detals of data
sources for both financial and qualitative data,
which are auditable

AB.  Aninitial audit report by PAWC
demonstrated robust efficiency reporting,
measurement and data sources by the RDAs and
included recommendations for improvement by
the Research Councils, which were targely
addressed through the publication and
implemeantation of the Research Councils’
efficiency measurement methodology by RCUK
(available at the RCUK websites}. A further audi
report by PWC 1ook place in 2006 and has
further supported engoing efficiency reporting.

Technscal Note s available from the Depariment's website. www.berr gov.uk/shout/strategy-
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AT. The ONS provide the data on labour
productivity. Data on labour productivity as
defined in per worker terms is classified as a
“Mational Statistic™ and recently data as defined
in par hour worked terms was upgradad 1o this
status as well from “expenmanial”. The term
“Matonal Statistic™ is applied to data senes that
the OMS balieve to be sufficiently reliable.

AB. Both versions of the productivity data may
be subject to future revisions and are affectad by
the economic cycle. To take into account the
changes in the economic cycle, an appropriate
base year is chosen for companson. Given thiese
issues the ONS publishes the following caution
with the ICP data releages: “differences of a few
percentage points betweean the productivity
estimates from individual countnes should not be
seen as significant because of the measuremant

1. World-class research at the strongest
centres of excellence in the UK

A11. The benchmarking study undertaken by
Evidence Ltd on behalf of the Department
compares the UK against a comparator group of
25 countnies including the GB. Data sources ara:
Thomson 151,! the world's premier source of
information on scientific journal publications and
their citations; and OECD,2 a major source for
international research and development
statistical analyses,

2. Sustainable and financially robust
universities and public research institutes

A12. The following data sources were used for
this attribute: the first report from the UK Higher
Education Funding Councils;? and the first
monitoring exercise on Public Sectar Rasearch
Establishment sustainability 4

Cuslity of data systems usad

difficulties that are present when making
international comparisons”.

AS9. Recently there have been significant
dovnward revisions to ONS data on Franch
output per hour worked data. This follows
revized estimates by INSEE (French national
statistics agency) showing greater hours worked
than previously estimated, back to 1590

A10. The sources of data used in the indicators
of productivity were selected fallowing an
extensive consultation that was undertaken in
1988, and again following Budget 2004, The data
for the indicators is derived from a variety of
sources, including national statistical agencies,
the OECD and the World Bank, each of which is
the subjact 1o peer review processes.

3. Greater responsiveness of the research
base to the needs of the economy and
public services

A13. HESA [Higher Education Statistics Agency)
is the official UK agency for collection, anatysis and
dissemination of quantitative information about
higher education. Data on university exploitation
activity is gathered systematically through the
HEBC! survey.t The Higher Education Council for
England has published the survey annually since
2001. The survey report analyses a wide range of
knowladge transfer and business inferaction
activities and also looks at Higher Education
Institutes and policies, prionties and resourcing in
business and community activities, Data is provided
as part of the HEls core reporting requirements 1o
their funding council and is venfied.

Al4. Thae PSRE datais drawn from the PSRE
Knowledge Transfer Survey,® which is managed
vy the Office of Science and Innovation, This has
anly been run for two years and is inewvitably a
less mature data source and still needs to be
daveloped further.

WA LSnEt oo
Wi oacd.org
wiwawedti.gov.ukfilesffile3 1812 pdf

wenwhesa.scuk

wwew dti. gov. ukjsciencefsclance-finding waww ditl gov. ukfmnovationfinnovation-statistics/cisfpage 10857 _htmi

wiwrwedii. gov.ukfscience/knowiedge-transfer/psrafpage 12062 himl
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4. Increasing business investment in
R&D and increased business engagement

A15. BERD data' is collected frorm R&D-
performing companies by the ONS using an annual
survey. The CIS2is a postal survey of a sample of
business enterprises, which collects guantitative
and qualitative information on a range of
innovation-retated activities as part of a survey
carmed out across EU countries. It is undemaken by
the ONS, on bahalf of the Departmeant. Patent data
is routinely supplied by the Patent Offices
concamed and normalised to eountry populations
by OECD.

Competiticn

A17. The KPMG 2004 peer review of
competition policy® asked 215 axparts from
diffarent countnes 1o rank the effectiveness of
the UK compatition regime with its peers,

A guestion early on in the survey ensurad it onhy
captured competition experts; howaver,
respoendants weare not split evenly between
countries, with a higher proportion of
respondents from the US and the UK. Thera
weara about 35 follow-up face-to-face interviews
to capture more qualitative information about the
parformance of the competition regima.

A18. In addition, the Global Competition
Review is anindepandent susvay, into which tha
Departrnent has no input, where enforcement
agencies’ aclvities are rated through a mixture
of “editorial opinion™ and a survey of 500
“users” (in other words, those who have had
cause to laise with a competition authorityl. This
represents a useful secondary source of
information, but the peer review remains tha
Primary Source.

Consurmers

A19. The OFT consumer awarenass survey
was carnied out by Synovate in early 2006.
Results are based on face-to-face interviews

http/hwserw enterpnse.ac ukfabout/
WWWLSOUTCeoaCd.Ong

Wiy barr gov.uk/filesfile 32813 pdf

wnnwe ol gov.ukfshared_oftfabout_oft/oftd Th. pof

o & W R W =

5. A more respaonsive supply of science,
technology. engineering and maths skills
to the economy

A18. Data on students receiving enterprise
training was praviously collected as part of the
contractual agreement with the Science
Enterprise Centres as part of their 0S| funding,
which has now ceasad. According to UKSEC
"well over 160,000 students and executives have
been touched by enterprize and entrepranaurship
courses since 2000, The indicator for PhD
awards comes from the OECD Education at a
Glance Database Yol 2006 issue 014

with 2,048 people and are comparable 1o
previous surveys camied out in 2003 and 2004,
The Department dees not fund or input into the
design of the survey.

A20. In January 2006, IPSOS Public Affairs
carried out the Consumer Direct survey and
sampled people who had previously called ona
of its eight contact cenires,

A21. There is currently no established
methadology to compare the performance of the
UK consumer regime accurately to that of other
countries. As described previously, the
Cepartment is leading the OECD research
programme to establish best practice in
consumer policy and work towards intermational
consensus on what makes an effective regime,

Competition and Consumers

A22. The findings of the OFT business and
cOnsumer perceptions report” are based on
independant surveys carried out by Synovate on
bahalf of the OFT and the Central Office of
Information (COl. The survey is based on the
responses of over 1,000 businesses and
consumers from interviews conductad aither by
tglephone or face-to-face respectively. The
Department does not fund of mput into the
dasign of the surey,

wew i gov.uk/science/soience-funding/set-siats/berdfindes_ htrml
wiewdii govaukfinnovationfinnovabion-statistics/oisipage 1085 7. himl

QFT (2006} Perceptions of Markets and Compatition: Business antl Consumer Research Reparl
Sew: wwwoft.gov ukishared: sitabout oftfoftBa7b.pai
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1. Greenhouse gas emissions/ carbon
dioxide ernissions

A23. The Naticnal Environmental Technology
Centre (METCEN]! publishes an annual inventory
on behalf of the Department for Emaronmant,
Food and Rural Affairs of histerie greenhousa
gas emissions in the UK, usually within 15
months of the end of the calendar yvear in
guestion. Data is available on an annual basis
back to 1990 and is subject to the requirements
of National Statistics. Analysis by NETCEM
indicates uncertainties in carbon dicxide
BMISSIons estimates ara +- 2%, and for the
"basket” of six greenhouse gases they are +/-
15%. Provisional data on carbon dioxide
amissions is estimated from energy data and
published annually by the Department in *Energy
Trends”™ in March following the end of the
calendar year in question.? Thera are
uncertainties associated with all estimates of
pollutant emissions. Although for any given year
considerable uncertainties may surround the
emission estimates for a pollutant, trends over
timea are hikely 1o be much more reliable

The majority of provisional estimates are within
1% of the final figures. The level of projected
emiszions iz dependent on the assumption of
future economic growth, The modelling
assumption for economic growth is compatibie
with HM Treasury’s current announced growth
forecasts given in last year's Pre-Budget Report
IPBA} and Budget Statement.

A24, Data on renewable energy sources is
available annually m the Digest of UK Energy
Statistics.?

2. Secunity of supply

A25. The Mational Grid Winter 2006-07
Consultation Report published by Cfgern on 21

Cluality of data systams used

September 2006 set out the detailed analysis for
the supply-demand outlook for last winter® This
was tha result of an extensive consultation with
all sides of the gas and electricity industry and as
such represented a broad consensus view of
industry expearts.

AZ26. Section 172 of the Energy Act 2004 requires
tha Secretary of State to publish and lay before
Parliament a report dealing with the short and long
term availability of electricity and gas for meeting
the reasonable demands of consumears in Great
Britain, The second of these reports was published
in July 20069 [t sels out the outlook for security of
energy supplies for winter 0607, including the
Mational Gnd preliminary outlook, The report also
looks at the longer terrm outiook for the next seven
to ten yaars, drawing on the more detailed
infarmation contained in the latest JESS report.”

A27.  JESS reports, generally published twice a
year, contain data on gas and electricity supply
margins, drawing in particular on information
published by Mational Grid as well as the
Department’s cwn analysis and data. The
seventh and final repant was published in
December 20069

A28. Inthe Energy Review we undertook 1o
develop new arrangements for the provision of
forward-looking enaergy market information and
analysis relating to security of supply. We will be
looking here to improve the quality and
dizsemination of forward-looking market
information and analysis, or example updating
the indicators maore frequenthy, an audit of
existing security of supply information 1o identify
where current gaps exist, and improving the
availability of the information on the webpage.
This work will drawy on analysis by Mational Grid
as wall as in-house data and expertise

W netcan co.uk

u om

Wiy berr.gov.uk/energystatistics/publications/trends/indax. html
For more information on these uncernainies see the DEFRA wabsite au

wianw dafra. goviukfemaronment/statisticsfarquatfagemissions.htm

wanw oigem.gov.uk/
wanwy berrgov ukfites/file3 1630, pdf

E

wanivy berr.gov ulkfenergystatistics/pubbcations/dukespage2 581 2. hitrm

In 2007, the Government and Ofgem established the Joint Energy Security of Supphy Group (JESS) working

group which manitars developments in the gas and eleciricity market and looks for ways of helping the market
to work effectively 1o secure energy supplies by providing info 1o market participants to help them plan

imvestrmant decisions,
wiaw. berr gov, uk/files/file 35389 pdf
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3. Fuel poverty

AZ9. The fourth Annual Progress Report on the
LK Fuel Poverty Strategy provides an update on
actions taken across, and outside of, government
and sets oul the fuel poverty data for 2004.' The
report takes its fuel poverty data from the English
House Condition Survey? conducted.on a
continuous rofling basis. The 2004 figures for fual
povearty in England have been provided using a
methodology that was updated following

A31. The Departments perfformance report on
PSA b is based on a qualitative assessment of
progress. Performance is regularly reviewed and
discussed with other Government departments
{including HM Treasury). Quantitative

1. An increase in the number of people
considaring going into business

A32. The data for this sub-target comes from the
Small Business Samice (SBS) Household Survey of
Entrepreneurship.® This sunvey is managed by the
SBS Analytical Unit. Each survey compnsas
telephone interviews in England by an external
research organisation, with 6,000 adults in 2001,
10,000 in 2003 and ower 15,000 in 2005, Itis not a
Mational Statistics product but results are weighted
to reflect the adult population in England, using
Census of Population 2001 data. Results from the
next surey will be available in 2008,

consultation and peer review. Full details of the
methadology used to produce the fuel poverty
statistics can be found in an annax 1o the Annual
Progress Report 3

4. Energy market compatitivenass

A30. Dala on competitiveness is measured

using a methodology developed with an external
contractor, OXERA, and peer reviewed by energy
market experts 4

assessment of changes in tariffs and changes in
the level of EU imports from least developed
countrias has not been possible at this stage
because of the time lag between policies being
agreed and them taking effect.

2. An improvement in the overall
productivity of small firms

A33. Productivity is measured using data from
the ONS Annual Business Inguiry (ABILE This is &
Mational Statistics product. The ABI is a large-
scale annual survey of around 70,000 registered
businesses in the UK, conducted in two pars —
financial and employment. Businesses with maore
than 250 employees are survayed every year,
with smaller businesses surveyed less frequantly
to reduce administrative burden on small firms.
As with any sample survey, there will be
sampling errors around any estimates from the
AB|. However, sampling errors are small for the
aggregatas of the main ABI variables such as
GVA and employaes, and indeed the sampla is
specifically designed to achiave this.”

httpcifcommunities. gov.ukfndex. aspfid="1502421
weww berr gov.ukfiles/Tile29694. pd

wisnwe barr gov. ukffilesfile 282 60 pdf
waw statistics.gov.ukjabl

wasnw detra.gov.uk/emdronment/enargy/fuelpowipdf/fuelpovatrat-annrptd_pdt

winew dtgov ukfenergyimarkets/competitivenessipage 28432 himl

The financial inquiry covers around twa thirds of the UK econormy. The coverage of the employment inquiry is
weder. Theretore the productivity measure, which combnes data fram the two inquiries, excludes some sectors
such as financial intermadsation, health and education, where a GVA per employes measura is not availabla,
Around o quarter of the businesses coverad by the measure are in the primary, production and constructon
seclors, and the remaining three-quariers are in services (based on 2002 datal. Since exactly the same sectors
are excluded from the measure for both small and large businesses, the conclusions about relative changes in

productivity over time are unaffectad.
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A34, Figuresin the graph shown for this
subrtarget may change if the ONS publish
revised data, particularly as regards the most
recent years covered. This was ithe case when
the ONS published revised 2003 ABI data in
June 2006. As a result, the 2002-03 data shown
in the graph differs from the numbers given for
this panod in the DTl Departmental Repon
2006." Similarly, the data grven above for
2003-04 should be treated as provisional,

3. More enterprise in disadvantaged
communities

A35. The Office for Mational Statistics Labour
Foree Survey (LFSI is a sample survey, with
over 120,000 people interviewed In gach three-
rmionth penod, and is a National Statistics
product. The sample sizes are not large enough
1o provide accurate data for individual wards, but

A36. Performance against this target is
measured through estimates of the trend rate of
growth in GVA per head in each region. The gap
in growth rates is measured by comparing the
average growth rate of reqions that currently
hawve above-average GVA per head with the
average growth rate of regions that currently
have below-average GVA per head. The key to
measuring this PSA target accurately is to
capiure as wide a range of economic acthities
pocurring within the regions as possible. GVA, by
definition, encapsulatas a very diverse range of
outputs.

A37. Toimprove and develop regional
estimates, the OMNS is involved in an ongoing
guality assurance process of the input data used
to calculate estimates of regional GVA In line
with Allsopp Review recommeandations, the
RDAs have agreed to work with OMS w deliver a

Guality of data systems used

they are large encugh to provide data for all the
mast deprived wards in Engfand collactivaly,
The deprved wards are identified using the 2000
indices of deprivation produced by the then
Depaniment for the Environment, Transport and
the Regions (DETR) and now held by the
Dapartment for Communities and Local
Government (DCLG). The wabsite! describes
how these were created for every ward in
England and how DETR consulted users owvear
their suitability. DCLG have since published the
2004 indices of deprivation, but these give a
deprivation measure for each Super Quiput Area
(SOA), rather than for each ward, and the LFS
has only recently added data for SOAs.
Consideration will be given in the future to
re-defining disadventaged areas using the 2004
indices,

| PSA 7 - Regional economic performance (page 53)

full regional statistical presence by March 2007
wihich will help us measure the targel more
accurately. Work is proceeding to strengthen the
regional GVA data, including production of a real
regional GVA senies by December 2009. Because
of the time required to develop a real regional
GVA data senes, the Regional Economic
Parformance Progress Report has reported an
reqonal GVA adjusted by a national deflator as
the most appropriate ntenm measure.

A3B. There are 21 PSA indicatars, coming from
a vanety of sources and drawing as far a3
possible from relevant indicators in other PSA
targets, which contnbute 1o regional economic
performance, The PSA Steening Group keeps
this list of indicators under review. and
supplemeants and ameands it where necessary.

www statistics. gov. ukfiabour
WA COmMmunites gov ukfindices

PR T

www. berr.gov.uk/about/stirategy-objectivesiannual-spending/page2 8303 hmi

G\t is the difference between oufput and intermediate consumption for any given sectorfindusiry, i.e. tho
differance batwean the value of goods and serices produced and the cost of raw matenals and other Inputs

which are usad up in production,
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A3%. Data for indicator (i} is collected via
internal monitoring of resource budget.

Ad40. Data for indicators (i) and (i) is collected
from guartedty independent momlonng survays.
Until 04 2005 thesa were carried out by Reading
Business School and covered B00 companies
each year. From the beginning of 2006 a new
systam, the Parformance Impact and Monitonng
Survey (PIMS), conducted by OMB, was
introduced. This extends covarage 10 2,500
companies each year and gathers a broader
range of performance and evaluation data. The
survey i5 based on telephone interviews with a
sample of users of UK Trade & Invesiment’s
principal sarvices, and includes questions both
on improverments in company performance
following LK Trade & Investment interventions,
and on the guality of the senace provided, There
are cross-checks 10 enable inconsistent
responses 1o be identified, and follow-up
interviews to provide a further check on the
accuracy of firms' initial respanses. Therefore
the data reported here, which is from the first
round of interviews, is provisional; as

subsequent mterviews are carnied out at two,

or i some cases three stages after receipt of
support, the results reported could be subject to
renvision,

Ad1.  Asg the introduction of PIMS does not
appear to have affected the “new-tosmarket”
indicator, one possible interpretation of the
significant increase in performance against the
"new-to-export” indicator is that responses from
less experienced exporiers may be more
sensitive to intarview timing than is the case for
expenanced exporters, Further rounds of foliow-
up interviews may help 1o confirm this.

Ad2. Data for indicator {iv) is taken from the
UNCTAD World Investment Report and onling
FDO database.

A43. Data on indicator (v} is based on the
alectronic project tracking system, using
definitions of success agreed by the Committee
on Overseas Promotion (COP), a joint UK Trade
& Investment Inward Investrment and RDA,
committes. The Departiment’s Intemal Audit
Team validates results.

SR04 PSA 10 - Maximising potential in the wnrkpiam 3

(page 77)

Ad4. The data 1o monitor ethnic minarity
enterprise comes from the Labour Force
Survey,! see page 295 above,

A45. The Fair Treatment al Work Survey is
Britain’s first large scale official survey of unfair
realment, perceived discrimination, bullying and
saxual harassment at work. It invoheed face to
face interviews with 3,936 employess across
Great Britain.? The final assessment will be
made using the next Fair Treatrment at Work
Survey expacted in 2008

AdB. The Workforce Emplovee Relations
Survey 2004 involved face to face interviews
with 3,200 managers, 1,000 worker
represeniatives and self-completion
guestionnaires from 20,000 employess, covering
both large and small workplaces,3

A47. The DT| Awareness Knowledge and
Exercize of Employment Rights Sumvey 2005
used computerassisted personal intenviewing,
and 1,038 interviews of employees were carried
out, ghing a response rate of 5% 4

i
Wit sTatstics gov.ukfabour

ﬂm Enecutive summary can be seen at: wwaw berrgov.uk/lilesile28388 pdf
* Initial findings fromy WERS 2004 can be seen at: wiww: routiedge. comftextbooks/04 153781 33 pdf insideVWP pdi

4wt gov.ukffilesfile27222 pdf
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Annex A.2

PSAs from previous Spending
Reviews

v/

A49. This annex contains an overview of all public service agreement targets since
the 2000 Spending Review (the final overview of the 1998 Comprehensive Spending
Review targets was published in the Department’s 2006 Autumn Performance Report.!

A50. This is followed by a performance report on some PSAs from previous
spending reviews, where such PSAs are significantly different from the current set
of PSAs, or where such PSAs still remain outstanding. Where PSA targets from
previous spending reviews are similar or identical to those from SR04, they have
been rolled over into the current targets and are not reported on separately

Spending Review 2000

Spending Review Target Performance

1. Improve UK competitivengss by narrowing On Course - This target was carmed forward in
the productivity gap with the US, France, similar tarms in SR04 PSA 1

Germany and Japan over the economic cycle.

{Joint target with HM Treasuny)

2. Help build an enterpnise society in which Partly Met - Fart (i} was not met, Parts (il and
small firms of all kinds thrive and achieve their i} were met, This target is camied forward in
potential, with (i) an increase in the numbar of similar terms in:' SROZ PSA 6 and SR04 PSA B.
pecple considering geing into business, (i) an The progress reports on these targets have
improvamant in the overall productivity of small more detail

firms and (i) more enterprise in disadvantaged
communitias

3. Make and keep the UK the best place in tha Mot Met - Final assessment of the target was

wordd to trade electromcally, as measured by tha s@t out in the 2005 Departmental Report

cosL of internet access and the extant of business- Retated 1o the SR04 National Standard
to-busmess and business to CONSUMEer Fansachons
carmed oul Over e-Comimernce networks.

4. Improve the economic performance of all On Coursa - This target is camed forward in
regions measuréd by the trend in growth of similar terms in SR04 PSA 7.

each regions GDP per capita. [Joint target with

HM Treasury and DCLG)

5. Improve the overall intermational ranking of Met - The LK's share of world citations in 2004
the UK's science and engineering base, as was 12.2% against & target of 11.5%. This
rmeasurad by international measures of guality, farget 15 carred forward in similar terms in SR04
cost-affectivensss and relevance PSA 2

6. Increase the laval of exploitation of Partly Met - Mixed outcomes for the basket of
lechnological knowledge denved from the indicators, APR 2004 has more detail. This
science and engineenng base, as damonstrated target is carmed forward in similar terms in S04
by a significant rise in the proportion of PoA 2

nnovating businasses citing such sources

It gone ukfaboutfsanace-standardsipardormance-rapons/pan
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Spending Review 2002 (caontinued)

Spending Review Target Performance

3. Place empowered consumers at the heart of
an effective competition regime, bringing UK
levels of competition, consumer empowearment
and protection up to the level of the best by
2008, measuring the effectivenass of the
regime by peer review and other evidence, 1o
ensure a far deal for consumers and business
working in collaboration with the retevant
regulatory agencies.

On Course - This target is camed forward in
similar terms in SR04 PSA 3.

4, Ensure the UK ranks in the top 3 most
competitive energy markets in the EU and G7 in
each year, whilst on course to maintain enengy
sacurity, to achieve fuel poverty objectives; and
{joint with DEFRA) improve the environment and
the sustainable use of natural resources,
including through the use of energy saving
techrolagies, to help reduce greenhouse gas
ermissions by 12.5% from 1990 lavels and
mowing towards a 20% reduction in carbon
dioxide emissions by 2000,

On Course — This target is carried forward in
similar terms in SR04 PSA 4 except sustainable
use of natural resources which is reported on
separately below,

B. Secure agreement by 2005 to a significant
reduction in trade barners leading to impraved
trading opportunities for the UK and developing
countries. (Joint target with DFID and FCO)

Not Mat - Final assessment of the target was
set out in APR 2006, This 1arget is camied
forward in similar terms in SR04 PSA 5,

6. Help 1o build an enterprise society in which
amall frrms of all kinds thrive and achieve their
potantial with (i) anincrease in the number of
people considering guing into businass, (i} an
improvernent in the overall productivity of small
firms, and (i) more enterprise in disadvantaged
communities.

On Course - Tha majority of this target is
carried forward in similar terms in SR04 PSA 6.
Part (i} is reported on separately below

7. To make sustainable improvements in the
economic performance of all English regions
and over the long term reduce the persisient
aap in growth rates betwaen the regions,
defining measures to improve performance and
raporting progress against these measuras by
2006. (Joint target with HM Treasury and DCLG)

On Course — This 1argel was carnied forward in
gimilar terms in SR04 PSA 7,

8. Make the UK the best place in the world for
e-business, with an extensive and competitive
broadband market, judged using imarnational
comparative measures of business uptake and
use of information and communication
techmques.

On Course - This F5A was replaced by a
National Standard. The current position on this
target and the Standard is reported on page 59
of this repor.

8. By 2008, working with all Departments. brng
about measurable improvements in gender
equality across a range of indicators, as parn of
the Government’s objectives on equality and
social inclusion,

3040

Mot Met - Final-assessment for 1his target is
st out balow.



PSas from previows Spending Reviews

Spending Review 2002 (continued)

R
10. In the three years to 2006, taking account of  On course - This PSA is raported on in greater 3o
the economic cycle, lm;maselhu m'lhlﬁ'ﬂ‘rinilt detail below, #‘-! o
rate and significantly reduce the difference i E §.
between the overall employment rate and the L S
employment rate of ethnic minorities. (Joint
target with DWP}

|

11. Deliver a measurable improvement in the On Course - This PSA was carmed forward in
business performance of UK Trade & similar terms in SR04 PSA 8. g
Investment’s international trade customers; and s -
maintain the UK as the prime lecation in the EU g e
for foreign direct investment, (Joint target with £88
FCO) j E '*
12. Achieve value for money improvements of Met - Final assessment of the target was set
2. 5% a year across the Department as out in APR 2006. The current position on the &
measured by a basket of indicators. Department’s efficiency programme is reported g

on page 140 of this Report, E6

ad

For further information on the links between the various spending reviews and PSA - 8

targets please see the 2004 Autumn Performance Report.! =

1 woveww dii gov, uk/about/sennce-standards/parformance-reporta/page252 73 hitml
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A51. Only the "Sustainable use of natural resources” element of this PSA is being
reported on here. The rest of the PSA was rolled over into PSA 4 in SR04 and is
reparted in chapter 2

Current position

AB2. The latest data, from 200304, showed a AS3. For the first time, recovery (recycling,

slight fall in the total amount of waste fire

re-use and land recovery) has overtaken landill
pusiness, from S5 million tonnes for 1955-99 10 as the most common method of waste

73.2 million tonnes for England and Walas in management for industrial and commercial
2002-03. Of that total, 29.2 million tonnes of waste, with 32 million tonnes being recycled o
waste were landfillad in 2002-03, some 82% of re-used and over 8 million tonnes being

the total of 35.6 million tonnes landfilled in incinerated, treated or spread on land (the way in

19896895 which a further 4 million tonnes of wastle was

managed Was nat recorded)

Quality of data systems used

AS4. Comprehensive information on on the types and quanlities of waste produced in
ommercial and industrial waste is imited 2002-03. Further information is available on the
Figures have been taken from the Environment Environment Agency website. The Environment
Agency's Commercial and Industrial Waste Agency 15 not currently planning another survey
survay 2002-03. Separate, but linked, surveys of of commercial and industrial waste, The future
commercial and mdustnal waste in Engtand and data source is 10 be considerad in the light.of

1 WWales were undertaken to obtain information Defra’s Waste Data Strategy

SR0OZ PSA 6 (i) On Cour

Mare enterp in di

Current position
AS5. In 2005,

par 10,000 residant adults in the 20% most {tha target is for a 1 percentage poir

Jepnived areas in cngland, compared o 42 VA of the gap per yearl. This target wall

& werg 27 VAT reqstrations mare than the 5 perce ntage points target sat

. T
L MArmWINGg

be finally

ons per 10,000 resident adults in the assassad in e 2007, based on 2006 data

20% least deprived areas. This 5 2 gap of 35% :
AS7. The widening of the gap between 2001

ABG. In every year since 2000, with the and 2002 occurred even though there was maore
f 2001 l'.»,, the gap in VAT registration anterprnise in deprived areas, since VAT
rates has narmowed between the most and least ragisiration rates increased mora in the least

Livarall, there has been a 6.3 deprived areas

it narrowing of the gap, which is



P5As from previous Spending Raviews

Figure A.1 - VAT registration rates (registrations per 10,000 resident adults) in the most and
least deprived areas in England, 2000 to 2005

~

Quality of data systems used

ASB8., Three data sources are used to produce
this measure;

o VAT registrations — estimates
produced by the SBS from the ONS
Inter-Deparimantal Business Register
(IDBR)," a National Statistics product;

® adult population - all people aged 16
and over - estimatas produced by the
ONS from the 2001 Census of
Population (mid-2001 estimates), a
Mational Statistics product; and

#® the DCLG Index of Multiple
Deprivation 2004, described in SR04
PSA G (il above.

AS59. The original target was set using tha
Index of Multiple Deprivation 2000. This Index
wias based upon 1998 wards, which are no
longer heid on the IDBR, The target now uses
the index of Multiple Deprivation 2004, This
Index is based on Super Cutput Areas (SOA),
which are held on the IDER. Therefore deprived
areas are the 20% most deprived lower [ayer
S50As in England.

ABD. A number of deprived S0As have
extremely high VAT registration rates, which distort
the results for all deprived areas. Thay have been
removed to ensure results are representative of
the vast majority of deprived areas. Also, some
enterprses choose 10 register their business in ety
centres, particularly in central Landon, when the
business activity mostly takes place elsewhere. In
total 197 of the 6,496 S50As are excluded (3%).
These areas had a collective VAT registration rate in
2005 of 274 registrations per 10,000 adults,
compared 1o 27 in the remainder of the deprived
areas,

AB1. Because businesses are not compelled 1o
raqister for VAT untl their turnover reaches the
VAT threshold (which stood at £61.000 on 1 April
2008), this measure does not capture all
enterprse activity. While some businesses will
ragister for VAT as soon as they start [or even
before), others may not register for several
yaars, This is why Spending Rewew 2004 uses a
different measure (SR04 PSA B (i} abowve) for
enterprise in disadvantaged communities.

1 wwwestatistics.gov.uk/fidbr
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gender equality

objectives on eqguality and =

s a range of indicators,

ocial inclusion,

AB2. The Government's Women and Equality Unit is responsible for overall
delivery of this cross-Government Gender Equality PSA. In 2006 the Unit was
moved to the newly-created Department for Communities and Local Government
(DCLG) as part of a machinery-of-government change, and with it the SR04 PSA
was transferred 10 the DCLG. Please refer to the DCLG's Annual Report for an

update on its progress.!

A63. The period covered by the earlier Gender Equality PSA for SR02 ended
before this change took place. The Department will therefore continue to report on

the SR02 PSA - see below
Current position

for this target were rolled into SR04 PSA 3 (see
abowe) with increased targets. The chart below
gives a bnef summary of performance. This FSA
has been assessed as not met because the

success definition was that measurable
improvements were to be achieved in a majonty
of indicators by 2006. The hinal out-turn was that
six sub-targets have been met, five wera not
rmet and the out-turn for one is not known

1 =
WA COMITIUNIes. gov ukindesx a80 T d=151 06844

304



PSAs from pravious Spanding Reviews

Motes:

1 Thas is the final data from the Work Life Balance Survey employee report published in Juby 2006, based on
figldwork in January and Febmuary 2006, wiwwdti gov. ukfMilesied21 16 pdf

2 This s the final data available for this sub-target and derives fram the 2004 Workplace Emplayment Relations
Survey: see Inside the workplace. first findings from the 2004 workplace employment relations survey
published in 2005, www.dti.gov, ukiiles/file 1423 pdf

3 2005 Equal Fay Aeview Survey [January 2006), waww.eos org ukipdfiwp_42_equal_pay_reviaw_survey,pdf

4 Business Link service providers’ customer satisfaction surveys

& Fgures chtamed from the ONS Labour Force Survey by e-skills UK, the Sector Skills Council for [T, Telecoms
and Contact Centres, 2006 ' '

6 Public Ba:i_aﬂ. Mm_:h 20068, wonrw publcappoinimants. gov uk/diversity. aspx

7 Source: Eighth Judicial Appointments Report 1 October 2005 to 31 March 2006 published by the Department
for Constitutional Affairs, www.dca.gov.ukfudicialija-arep2006/index htm

8 Source: Ofsted administrative data
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Quality of data systems used

A65. A number of different data sysiems wara
used to measura this target's indicators. These
includea surveys carmad out by iIndependent
bodies on behalf of the Department, such as the
Work Life Balance Survey, and statistics

collected v other Government Deparimeants,

such as the Catinet Office and the Home Office.

AB6. The domestic vidlence sub-target (8] was

measzured by an indicator which used the

SR02 PSA10

In the three

Current position

propgortion of arrests as a8 proxy for the responsa
to domestic violence. Although legislative
changes occurred in Quarter 4 of 2005-06,
revised guidance was not issuad to police forces
until the beginning of 2006-07. As a result forces
continued to use the onginal denominator for
that Quarter, and the data obtained appears to
reflact this. The Home Office are therefare
content that this final figure s an accurate
reflection of activity for 2005-08,

AB7. The Department is on course to deliver this target. Measurement for this
target was based on four-quarter rolling averages and the chart below shows the
progress made against it over the three years to spring 2006. A final assessment
ot this target will be made once further information on the economic cycle

becormes available

Figure 4.3
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Annex A.3

Public Accounts Committee
reports

S

57th Report of 2006-07: the closure of MG Rover: 25 July 2006

AT71. The PAC report examined the efforts made by the Department to provide
support to MG Rover prior to the collapse and the subsequent response by the
various agencies to alleviate the impact of the closure on the local community.
Amongst the Committea’s findings, it concluded that:

e The Department responded well where it had contingency plans, and that
local agencies did well in the immediate aftermath of the company’s
collapse. Where a major company is at risk, the Committee recommended
that Department should develop a plannaed response in good time which is
revisited regularly, The Department should also disseminate the lessons
learned from diversifying the West Midlands economy. The Department
welcomed the Committee’s positive comments and agrees that it is
important to learn the lessons, many of them positive, of the response to
MG Rover's collapse. With this in mind, the Department has been working
with other Government departments to develop a “Large-Scale
Redundancies Framework” for responding to major job losses.

e Although the Rover Task Force had been wound up, Advantage West
Midlands (AWM) and Job Centre Plus should continue to report the
number of former employees still unemployed and on the nature of work
obtained and the success of retraining initiatives. The Department agreed
with the Committee’s assessment of the positive impact of the Task
Force, and of previous efforts to diversify the West Midlands
manufacturing base and reduce reliance on MG Rover. Work is ongoing to
support former workers and the local community. Over 90% of former
employees of MG Rover and its suppliers who registered with Job Centre
Plus have now left benefits. Provision has been made by AWM for the
evaluation of the support package

A72. The Committee also noted that the Department had appointed Company Act
Inspectors to investigate MG Rover’s affairs, This investigation is ongoing. The
Department and the inspecters are intent on completing this inspection as guickly
as possible, with due regard to the fairness of procedures, and to the
thoroughness of the task. The total cost of the inspection as at 31 March 2007 was
£6,782,781 plus VAT of £1,247,766 and disbursements of £349,369, with spend in
the financial year 2006-07 of £3,192,149 plus VAT of £679.173 and disbursements
of £117.409



Pubbc Accounts Commiitiee reports

11th Report of 2006-07: supporting small business: 6 February 2007

A73. In May 2006, the National Audit Office published a report on the Small
Business Service (SBS). This was followed by a Public Accounts Committee
hearing on 19 June 2006, and a PAC Report published on & February 2007, The
main criticisms outlined in the PAC Report were the need for SBS to demonstrate
its impact against Government aims and objectives (and whether it represented
value for money), to reduce the Government’s small business support network of
3,000 programmes to under 100, to measure the burden of regulation on business
and to ensure SMEs are taken into account when planning regulatory changes, to
reduce the wide gap between the commercial default rate for small business and
that under the Small Firms Loan Guarantee Scheme (SFLGS), and to publish an
update to the Government's Action Plan for small business.

A74. The Government Response to the Report was published on 26 April 2007,

A number of changes have been made in response to the PAC Report. SBS is now
a strategic policy directorate within the Department, better placed to carry out its
role, and its effectiveness will be formally assessed through an annual stakeholder
survey. The number of business support programmes is being reduced through the
Business Support Simplification Programme and Government has committed to a
25% target net reduction of administrative burden by 2010, Changes have been
made to the SFLGS and an update to the Action Plan on small business is due to
be published later this year.

15th Report of 2006-07: the termination of the PFl contract for the
National Physical Laboratory: 13 March 2007

A75. The PAC report examined the termination of the PFl contract for the Natianal
Physical Laboratory. Amongst the Committee’s recommendations, which may be
applicable to future PFis, were:

e public sector clients should always satisfy themselves that contractors
have the technical and financial capacity to handle the degree of project
risk which they undertake to bear;

e for particularly challenging projects, departments should require bidders to
demonstrate that their designs will work before the award of contract;

« departments should plan standby arrangements so that if there are delays
to projects they can maintain business continuity without compromising
their requirements; and

e departments should be aware that project lenders are unlikely to exercise
their step-in rights unless they consider it in their interests to do s0.
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Annex B.1
Acronyms

v/

AP
ACH
U =Ta
BHR(

AME ol

A

-

AL AR
A

BBSRC -

BERD: =

hisory Committee on Carbon
Abatement Technologies

African Canbbean and Pacific

AME and Hurmanites
Annually Managed Expenditure
Autumn Performance Report
vantage YWest Midlands
Biotechnology and Biological
Sciences Research Council
Business Enterprise Research and
Development Expenditune

for Enterpnise, Business

ry Ratorm
Britishn Minonty Ethmic

British Muclear Fuels Limitad
British Manonal Space Centre
Business Plan Objective

Bet
Business Support Monmo

ter Regulation Executive
Fing Surveys
Confederation of British Industry
Climate Change Levy

e Cent

Rezearch Councils

Council for tt ral Labaratony of

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value
Companies Investigations Branch
Community Innovation Survey
Department of Communities and
Lacal l:_ir*.‘.-rA-r*'.r!':.-'l""I

Lhrons Ubstructive Pulmonany
LDiseasa

Comprehensive Spending Review
for Sc

LOHING

ence and lechnology
Consumer and rading Standards

nartrmant far Cu

STare
|

ture Media and

wi f

Doha Development Agenda

Department for Environment Food

and Rural affairs

B ntal Expanditure Limit

Skills

:"?f‘-'l"‘."l vant for Education and

Departrment for Intermational

Davalo;

Department for Tran SPOTT

Department for Innovation
Unrvarsities and Skills
Departnven

it of Trade and Industry

vV
el

EIT
ECC
EP&
EFPR
ERSRC

ERDF
ESA
ESRC
ETl
ET:

HEI
HESA
H=C
HSE

[P~

Cepartment for Wark and Pensions

=

Export Credit Guaraniee Deparfment
Enginsering Employers’ Federation
Enterprise Grants

European Geostationary Navigation
Owverlay Service
Equality Impact Assessments

& of Technology
Equal Opportunities Commission

European Institut

Economic Partnership Agreement
Equal Pay: Review
Enginearing & Physical Sciences

P

Research Council
Rural Development Fund
Europaan Space Agency

Economic and Socal Research

| = - e N
Europear

Council
Energy Technologies Institute
Ermissions Trading Scheme

Foreign and Commonwealth Office
Full Econormic Cost

Framework Programme 7

ial Reporting Counci

Full Time Equivalent

Gross Do

Government Offices

mastic Product

Global Science and Innovation Forurr
Gross Value Added

Higher Education Business and
Community Interaction Survey
Higher Education Institute

Higher Education Statistics Agency
Health and Satety Commission
Health
Information and Consultation
International Atomic Energy Agency
Information Age Partnership
independent Board Members
Inter-Departmantal Business

and Safety Executive

Register
3| Energy Forum
Intelligent Infrastructure Systams

nternations

Index of Labour Market Adaptability
shitut Natonal da la Statnstugue et
des Etut
Intellectual Property
Indepandant Performance

Assassments

jes Economiques



ITEC

ITU -
JESE -

LBRO -
LCBP -
LF5 -
LNG -
MAS -
MDUK -
MRC -
NAO -
MATS =
MCGE -

NDA -
NDPB -
NEP -
NERC -
NETCEN -
NISR -
NMS -
NMW -
NPL -
NRF -
NSAM =
NSSF -
WML -

OCNS -
ocPA -

DECD- -

OFT =

ONS =
DPCW —

OPPC -
OSCHR -

D51 =

PCFF -

PFI -
PPARC -

PSA -

Infermation, Technology, Electronics
and Communications

International Telecommunication Union
Joint Energy Security of Supply
Working Group

Knowledge Transfer Network
Local Better Regulation Office
Low Carbon Bubldings Programme
Labour Force Survey

Liquefied MNatural Gas
Manufacturing Advisory Service
Motorsport Developmant LIK
Medical Research Council

Mational Audit Office

Mational Air Tratfic Control Service
Mational Council for Graduate
Entreprenaurship

Muclear Decommussioning Authorty
Mon- Departmental Public Body
Mational Emergency Plan

Matural Ervironment Research Council
Mational Environmental Technology
Centra

Nuclear Industries Security
Regulations

Matianal Measurement System
Mational Minimum Waga

Mational Physical Laboratory
Neighbourhood Renewal Funding
Mational Skills Academy for
Manufacturning

Mational Standardisation Strategic
Framewaork

Mational Weights and Measures
Laboratory

Office for Civil Muclear Security
Office of the Commissioner for
Fublic Appointments

Cirganization for Economic
Cooperation and Development
Office of Fair Trading

Office of Government Commerce
Office of National Statistics
Cirganisation for the Prevention of
Chamical Weapons

il Pollution Prevention Control
Offica of Strategic Co-ordination of
Health Research

Oftice of Science and Innovation
Public Accounts Committes
Parliamentary Contributory Pansion
Fund

Public Finance Initiative

Particle Physics and Astronomy
Research Council

Public Service Agreameant

PSG -
PSRE -

ACUK -
RDa  —
REACH -

RIDDOR -

RoHS -

SBS -
SCS -
SD -
SEEDA -

SET -
SFIE -

SFLGs -
SITPRO -
aME -
S04 —
SR -
SRIF -
S5 -
STFC -

STEM: -~

SWRDA -

TDET -

THA -
TSB =
Tuc -
ucPr -

UKAEA -

UKCs -
UKERP -
UKIPO -
UKSEC -
UKTI -
UNCTAD -

VWF -
WEEE -

WERS: -

WETF -
Wi -

Acronyms

Professional Skills for Government
Public Sector Research
Establishiment

Research Councils UK

Regional Development Agency
Registration, Evaluation and
Authorisation of Chamicals Directiva
Reporting of injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
1995

Restriction of the Use of Certain
Hazardous Substances

Small Business Service

Senior Civil Servica

Sustainable Development

South East England Development
Agency
Science Engineenng and Technology
Salective Finance for Investment in
England
Small Firms Loan Guarantee scheme
Simpler Trade Procedures Board
small and Medium Enterprises
Super Qutput Area

Spending Review

Science Research Investment Fund
Sector Skills Council

Scence and Technology Facilitias
Coundil

Science, Technology, Enginearing
and Mathematics

South West of England Regional
Development Agency
Transdepartmental Science and
Technology Group

Tha Matonal Archive

Technology Strategy Board

Trades Union Congress

Unfair Commaercial Practices
Directive

United Kingdom Atomic Energy
Authority

UK Continental Shelf

UK Energy Research Partnership
UK Intellectual Property Office

UK Science Emerprise Centres

UK Trade & Investment

United Nations Conference on Trade
and Development
Wibration White Finger
Tha Waste Electrical and Electranic
Equipment Regulation

Workforoe Employes Relations
Survay

Women's Enterprise Task Force
Woearld Trade Organisation
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Report structure compared to

last year
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Last year's report (2005-06) This Report Page
Introduction Ministenal responsibilities Section 1.1 - The DTl and it 10
SUccessor gdepartments
Structure of the Section 3.2 = Structure and 122
Department organisation
Structure of the Report About this report g
Section 1 - The Department's Section 1.2 - The Department’s 12
Purpose and Objectives Strategy
Section 2 - Delivering the SHO4 PSAs Chapter 2 - Performance 14
Department's Public report
Service Targets
F5As from previous Annex A.2 - PSAs from 298
Spending Reviews previous Spending Reviews
Section 3 — Delivering the Supporting succassiul Saction 2.5 - Supporting 44
Department's Strategic business successiul business
Obhjectives
Promoting world-class Section 2.4 - Fromoting 23
science and innovation wiorld-class scienca and
fnnovation
Ensuring fair markets Section 2.6 - Ensuring fair &7
markets
Secura sustainabla Section 2.7 - Secure and 8B
aflordable enargy sustainatie enargy
Muclear security Section 2.8 - Managing 103
assets and babilities
Export control Section 2.6 = Enzuring fair B7
markets
Section 4 - Managing Section 2.8 - Managing 103
Government assets and Government assets and
liahilities liabilities
Section 5 - The Executive Section 3.3 - Delivery 125
Agencies partners - agencies and NDPBs
Section 6 - Managing the Governance Section 3.1 - Ministers and 116
Department QOVErnance
{other pans of this section) Section 3.4 — Professiona| 131

support, infrastructure,
capability

Annex A - Core tables

Chapter 6 - Budgetary spend 264
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ACAS, 81, 125, 221, 259, 262
Accounts, 190
Accounting policies, 207
Administration, 203, 210
expenditure, 210
incoma, 210
Age discrimination - legislation against, 68,
80
Appropriations in Aid, 202, 218, 219
Ashestos management, 166, 167
Assisted Areas, 57

Balance Sheet, 179, 204
BERR, 10
British National Space Centre (ENSC), 40, 43,
170
Budgetary spend, 264
Business
effective channels with, 60-63
on-ling, 59
supporting successful, 12, 15, 44-66
{FSAB), 49-52

regional economic performance (PSAT)

antarpnse

Business Enterprise Hesearch and
Development (BERD], 29

Business Link, support for business, 51

Business Support Simplification Programme

progress, B2

Capability Review, 130, 131-132
Civil nuclear
Constabulany, 111
Otice for Secunty (QCHS), 111
Civil Service
pensions, 162, 211
semor salanas, 158
Climate Change, 91-82, 251
Community Innovation Survey (CIS), 30
ntermational comparnsons, 31
Companies Act 2006, 10, 84
Companies House, B5, 211, 232, 234, 259, 281,
286
Company law, 84
Simplificauon Plan, 150
Competition

» . Py g T TS
authontes, 70 7

Comprehensive Spending Review 2007, 25,
132, 133, 172
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, 205, 245
Consolidated Fund, 202, 210, 211, 218, 234,
236, 237
Consolidated Fund Extra Receipts, 210
Consolidated Statement of Operating Costs
by Departmental Aim and Objectives, 206,
212, 247
Construction industry
Public Sector Construction Clhents Forum,
63
Strategic Forum for Construction, 63
Sustainable Construction Strategy, 144
Consumer law, 70
Simplfication Flan, 150
Consumer Credit Act 2006, 71
Consumer Credit Appeals Tribunal, 71
Consumers, 71-72
Consumers, Estate Agents & Redress Bill, 71
Contingent, 213, 254-257, 259
assats, 254, 259
liatilities, 213, 254-257
Cooksey Review, 25, 34
Corporate Communications, 138
Cost of capital, 211
Creditors, 237

Debt, 72, 75
Debtors, 235
Defence
industnal and technology strategies, 61
Delivery partners, 196, 260
Agencias, 125
Mon-Deparimental Public Bodies (MDFBs,
125-128
other bodies, 128-130
relationship betwean DTI and, 130
Diamond Synchrotron, 24, 34, 215
Digital
strategy, 62
television switchover, 61
DIUS, 10
Disability Discrimination Act (DDA), 165, 166
Dispute resolution, 82
sec ACAS
Dividends, 210



Doha Development Agenda DDAJ, 72

Employment law,
European discussions, 79
Simplification Plan, 79, 81
Employment Strategy (Success at work), 79
enabler objectives, 131
corporate communications, 138
corporate services, 133-137, 247
afficiency targets, 140-143
legal services, 139
setting/delivering priorities, 132-133
Energy (PSA 4)
carbon dioxide amissions, 91-82
emergency planning, 107
fuel poverty, 94
greenhouse gas emissions, 91-92
Group, 122, 123
infrastructure, 99, 240
Kyoto Protocol target, 88, 90
liberalisation in Evrope, 100
lenw carbon technologies, 97
market competitivenass, 95
Meeting the Energy Challenge, 96
microganeration, 98
Morth Sea Investment, 100
nuclear
new consultation on, 101
role in a low carbon UK aconomy, 91
offshore environmental incidents, 98
reanewables; 32
supply. security of, 93, 214, 251
sustainable, secunng, 12, 16, 88-102, 261
White Paper, 88, 90, 91, 93, 98
Energy Review, 90
Energy Technologies Institute, 34, B9
Enterprise (PSA 6), 47
social strategy, 51
current position 47, 48, 49
factors affecting performance, 47-48,
44, 50
improvament in overall productivity of
zrmall firms, 48

increase in number of people going into

business, 47
more anterprse in disadvantaged
communities, 49
Waek, 51
Environmental Transformation Fund, 97
Equality, 149
opportunity, of, 80
EU Company Law Action Plan, 85
EU Emissions Trading Scheme, 92
EU Industrial Policy Agenda, 61
EU Seventh Framework Programme
R&D, for, 24, 37

Indax

EU Structural Funds, 57
European Institute of Technolegy (EIT), 39
Expenditure tables, 270
Total public spending, 270
Total resource budget, 272
Tonal capital budget, 275
Total capital employed, 278
Administration costs, 279
Staff numbers, 280
Country/Region tables, 282
Export Control Organisation, 75

Face to Face Debt Advice, 72
Fair markets
extanding competitive markets, 74-76
cormpefition and consumers, 70-72
axport contral, 76-76
Group, 67, 122
illegal money lending, 75
state aid, 75
trade barriers, 72-73
workplace, maximising potential in, 76-81
Fair Treatment at Work survey, 78
Finance and Strategy Group, 123
Financial Instruments, 253
Fixed Assets, 207-210, 225, 226, 228-234
tangible, 207, 208, 225, 226
intangible, 208, 226, 228
investments 200, 22%-234

Gender equality (PSA 9), 304
General Fund, 243
Gibbons Review
employment dispute resolution, B2
Global Science and Innovation Forum, 37
Governance, 144
Audit and Risk Committes, 120, 194
Executive Commities, 118, 194
Management Board, 117, 194
Operating Committes, 119, 194
Government assets and liabilities, 103
compensation schemes
British Shipbuilders Corparation
liabilities, 109, 242
Coal Authority labilities, 109, 173

Chrane Cbstructive Pulmonary Disease

ICOPD), 104, 109, 182-183, 239
Vibration White Finger, 104, 109, 182,
239
Muclear Decommissianing Authaority
IPSA 11), 105-106
nuclear security and safety, 110111
Post Office, 108, 111, 173, 236
Rowal bail, 112, 230, 236, 255
Shareholder Executive, 107
Government Offices, 56
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Gowers Review, 39
Intellectual Property, 42

Grant in aid, 286

Grants, 210, 247

Gross domestic product (GDPJ, 210
productivity, 20
R&D as share of, 29

Health and safety, 166, 254

Heritage Assets, 208, 209, 227, 228

Higher Education Business and Community
Interaction (HEBCI) Survey, 28

Human Tissues and Embryos Bill, 24

lllegal Money Lending, 75
Index of Labour Market Adaptability (ILMA),
78
independent Board Members, 164, 194, 197,
259
Information Age Partnership, 61
Information and Consultation (1&C), 81
innovation, 30
Insolvency
law, B4
Service, 86, 249, 257, 258, 259
Intellectual Property Framewaork
Gowers Rewew, 39
Intelligent Infrastructure Systems
Farasight project, follow up, 24
International Energy Forum
Doha, in, 100

Knowledge transfer and innovation, 36, 38-41
Knowledge Transfer Partnerships, 39

Leases, 212, 248
Legal Services Group, 123
Losses, 258

Machinery of Government Changes, 10, 177,
260, 261
Manufacturing
Day, 60
Forum, 60
Meda Centre, 60
Manufacturing Advisory Service, 52
Metop low earth orbit weather satellite, 24, 40
Ministers
appointmeant, 124
remuneraton, 1568
State, 4
tearmn and responsibilities, 118

Mational Council for Graduate
Entreprensurship ([NGCE)

Flying Start programma, 48

316

Mational Measurement System (NMS)
wiorld-class measuremant standards,
access 1o, 38
National Minimum Wage (NMW], 79, 82
Mational Physical Laboratory (NPL), 38, 227,
228, 252
Mational Skills Academy for Manufacturing
(NSAM), 60, 83
Mational Standard
on-ine business, b9
Mational Standardisation Strategic
Framewaork (NSSF), 39
National Weights and Measures Laboratory,
41, 252, 259
Measuning Instrumants Directive, 38
rasponsibilities, 40
Met Cash Requirement, 202, 207, 246
Mext Steps, 25
Muclear Decommissioning Authority PSA 11,
105

Objectives, 16, 19, 32-41, 2086, 214, 247
competitive markets, extending, 74-74
corporate activity, B4
BERR work, covaring, 10
energy, secunty of supply, 98-101
enterprisa/growthfinvestment, 50
government assets & liabilities, managing,

103-112
insolvency activity, 24
knowledge transfer and innovation, 38-40
nuclear secunty and safety, 110
performance aganst, 16
research base, 32
spend by, 16
strengthening regional economias, 55-57
sustanability and the anvirenment, 96
UK Trade & |mvastmant, 63-64
wirkplace, maximising potential in the,
7383

Difice of Fair Trading |OFT), 71, 257
Office of Science and Innovation (OS1), 24
Office of Strategic Co-ordination of Health
Research [OSCHRI, 24, 34
Offshora installations and pipelines
guidance on decommissioning, S8
2012 Olympics delivery plan, 60
On-line
mantanng UK's standing, 59
Operating Cost Statement, 178, 203, 262
Operating Income, 178, 210
Operations Group, 124
Ordinary Shares, 230

Patent



grants at US Patent Office, 30

UK, 20
Permanent Secretary, 117
Post Balance Sheet avents, 193
Pu?t Office netwaork, 107, 180, 187, 259
Private Finance Initiative (PFl), 188, 212, 278
Productivity (PSA 1), 20-22
Programme, 210

gxpanditure, 210

ncome, 210
Provisions, 173, 178, 179, 182-184
Public Service Agreements [PSAs), 18, 197
Public Sector Research Establishments

{PSREs), 28

Regional Development Agencies (RDAs), 53
Regional economic performance (PSA 7), 53
Regulation
commitment 1o batter, 149
equality, 151
Impact assessmeants/consultations, 143
simplificationfadminisirative burden
reductions, 150
Related Party transactions, 259
Retail Enforcement Pilot, 71
Research and Development (R&D), 26, 210
business investrment in, increasing, 29-32
GDPE as share of, 29, 210
Research base, 32
Research Councils, 34, 226, 250, 260
Resource Accounts, 190
Revaluation Reserve, 183, 244
Roberts Review, 24

Science and innovation (PSA 2)
advice across Government, 36
knowledge transfer and innovation, 32
research base, 32
Foresight project, 37
Global Science and Innovation Forum
{GSIF), 37
Office of (OS]}, 24
Maxt Steps, 25
10 Year Investment Framework 2004, 25
Public Sector Research Establishments
(PSREs) 27
unwersities (HEls), 27
world-class research at strongest centres of
axcellence in UK, 26
Science and Technology Facilities Council
(STFC], 24, 33, 186, 260
Science Research Investmeant Fund (SRIF), 34
Sector Regulatory For a, 62
Selective Finance for Investment in England
(SFIE), 58
Self-employment

Il

rates, 49
under represented groups, 77
Shareholder Executive, 173, 126, 188
Single Market, 74
Skills strateqy, B3
Small Business Service [SBS), 52, 187, 259,
260, 286
Entarprise Insight {El), funds, 50
executive agency, as, 52, 187, 286
Simphification Plan, 150
Small Firms Loan Guarantee, 177, 183-184,
241
Special dividend, 177, 178, 180, 210
Special Payments, 268
Special Shares, 232, 233
Staff
divarsity, 135
efficiency targets, 140
European expertize, 135
IT, 137
leadership development programme, 134
operational efficiency, 137
performance appraisal, 134
professional skills framework, 134
project pool, 133
record manageament, 137
femuneration, 154
restruciuring, 136
sacunty, 137
transachon costs, 137
Staff numbers, 280
State Aid, 756
Statement of Parliamentary Supply, 174-177,
199, 202, 207, 212
Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses,
179, 199, 203
Statement on internal control, 192, 194-198
Strategic Policy Analysis Unit, 123
Strategy, 12
Structure and organisation, 122
dehivery partners, 125
antities conselidated/not consolidated, 130
Sustainable development, 40
Action Plan, 144
comrmitment, 144
Commuission, 144
anvironmental impact of 0TI estate, 145
{framework for, 1456

Tackling Over-indebtedness Annual Report
2006, 72

Technology Programme, 38

Technology Strategy Board, 24, 40, 186, 260

Third-party assets, 213, 260

Trade barriers [PSA 5), 72

Trade Unions, 80
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Annex B.4
Reference notes

oVerview
gz B-13

Strategic

For details about and references 1o data sources used for the public service
agreements described in chapter 2, please see Annex A.1. Internet links listed
below are correct at time of publication but are subject to change. The change
from DTI to its successor departments (see section 1.1} may result in DTI weblinks
becoming inaccessible.

| Performance
Report
Pages 14

1 whvewy. berr.gov, ukfabout/strategy-objectives/PSA-Targets/page25 148 him

Pl

whann berr. gov. ukfabout/strategy-objectives/Business-Plans/page 1261 1. htm

5

Lad

Wi Communitias gov.ukfindex. aspfid=1123045
[ More detail is available at wawdhi.gov.uk/about/economics-statistics/economics-

directorate/page21913 himl

Lor]

wian barr.gov.uk/science/science-funding/frarmework/page9306.him|

The Department

o

L]

nitphanw iim-treasuny. gov ukfmedia 1 E1/SEDud0E_science 332 .pof

|

hitpfwana hm-treasuny. gov. uk/media/56F/62/pbrl6_cooksey_final_report 636, pdf

g These attributes also provide indicators of progress against the measures set out in the ten
year acience and Innovation Investment Framework. Sea: wiane him-
treasury. gov.ukispending_review/spend_srO4/associated_

.-1-:Jf..-.|.""|c+"tt'..'*;pr-'1e1|ng_i.rﬁ-1 science.cim

a9 whanw.barr.gov ukistience/science-funding/budget/uk_research_basefpage29207 himl

finances

Pages

Introduction to

10 Sources: Thompson 151, OECD

-

11 Biclogical Znd, Clinical Znd, Engineering 4th, Environmental 2nd, Maths 3rd, Physic
dth, Pre-Clinical and Health 2nd, Social Sciences 2nd and Business 2nd. The broad disciplines
are an amalgamation of the 68 Research Assessment Exercisa (RAE) subject units of

assessmeant

ok

hitpfwnaew bermgov.ukffilesfile32024 . doc

190-262

-
Lo

waww hefoe ac ukfpubsfrdrepons/2006/rd17_0DE/

Resource
accounts

Pagas

i http i hefoe ac.ukipubshefor/2006/06 25/

15  Two of the indicators listed inthe Technical Mote (number of publications and

authored between scence base and industry, and level of business confidence) have bean

. 1

dropped, It has been decidad not to replace them with other indicatars. Some of the 2002-03

data shown here vanes shightly from that published in the last Departmental

because HEls are asked 10 rewvenfy the previous yvear's figures when the HEBCI survey is
issued. As a result, information on business interactions which had not been available when
tha figuras ware praviously collated is captured

16 Source: OMS for UK, OECD remainder.

| Budgetary spend

17 httpihsanarc statistics.gov.uk/STATBASE/Product asp?vink=8206

18 As a result of the revision of UK BERD figures by the ONS, the figure given in our Autumn
Performance Report 2005 for 2004 R&D spend by UK businesses (£13.4 billion) was adjusted
10 £12.8 mlhon

19 source: US Patent and Trademark Office and OECD's Patent Database and Mam Science and

Technology Indicatars. The data is for the inventor's country of residence
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85
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100
i[e3|
102
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104

105
106
107
108
109
110
111

112
113
114
115
116
117

118

119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126

127

128
128
130

iz

woanwolis. oecd orglolisf2005doc nsfi43bb61 30e5eBEabic] 2569fa005d004/
911996060467 a8e9cc1 2570dd003bd320VEFILEAITO0196254. PDF

hittpzifenwee din. gov.ukMilesfile36750. pdf

wwnw berrgov ukfconsumersfenforcement/retail-enforcement/index. him|

waanw hm-treasury. gov.ukibudget/oudget_08/ather_documents/bud_bud0&_hampion.cfm
wianw, berr.gov.ukfconsurmersiconsumer-finance/over-indebtedness/index html

httpidwenw berr.gov.ukiconsumersiconsumersbillfindex himl

"Secure agreement by 2005 to a significant reduction in trade barriers leading 1o improved
trading opportunitias for the UK and developing countries,”

wnnw.dti. gov.uk/filesffile9845. pdi

weww, berr.gov.uk/europeandtrade/key-trade-issues/marketacecassconsuliation/page 35423 hitml
wonwe. barr.gov.ukfeuropeandtrade/key-trade-issuesftradedetence/page382 15 himl

v, berr. gov ukffilesfile1 4307 pdf

w0, berr.gov.ukleonsultations/findex. htm

waand, barr.gov. uk/empioyment/amploymeant-agenciesivulnerable-ageancy-workers-
consultatonfindex. htrml

www, berr.gov.uk/consultations/page36338 . himl

www, berr.gov.uk/files/file16317.pdf |
whan. berr gov. ukfemployment/discriminationfage-discrimination/index, html

wwwn. berr.gov.uk/employmentitrade-union-rights/modermisation/page 16097 .himl

Full detaiis can be found at wawaw berr. gov.ukfemploymentfresearch-evaluationferrs

WA, ACAS. 0N Uk

Wi acas.org.ukfindect aspx famicleid=420. Acas’ annual repon for 2006-07 ray not yet be
available at the time of printing of this publication

wiwnw, berr gov ulkfermployment/Resolving_disputes/gibbons-review/indeax, htmi

wiwnw hmetreasury. gov.ukfindependent_reviews/leitch_reviewdreview _leitch_index.cfm
winnw, barr.gov.uk/bbffco-act-2006/indax. html

whwow, berr.gov.ukibbflau-company-lawfaction-plan/page 12064, htmi

wow barrgov ukfbbffeu-company-law/directives/page 19528 himi

wiww. companieshouss gov.ukfaboutfunctionsHistory.shtml. Companies House's annual report
for 2006-07 may not yet be available at the time of printing of this publication

wianaLinsoheency, gov.ukfaboutusfannualreponts.htm, Insolvency Sarvice’s annual report for
2006-07 may not yvet be available at the time of printing of this publication

wiww berr.gov.ukfenergy/index.html

Wi, dti.gov. uk/energyfreviewpaged 1995 htmi

httpaffwenw nuclearpower2007 direct.gov.uk

Source: DT, see: www.dti.gov.uk/filesffila31861 .pdf

wiinad, dafra.gov. ukfenvironment/climatechangefulkfukecpfindex, htm

wiww. dafra.gov.ukfenvironment/climatechangeftrading/ewpdiimanifesto-uk pdf
wwnw official-documents. gov. uk/documentfem70/7040/7040 asp

whanaw barr gov.ukfenergyfsourcesfrenewables/policyfobligation/ro-and-enangy- {
revievypage? 7959 himl

Prass notice Rf12 dated 27 March 2007 httpJ/fwww.ofgem.gov.uk/temp/
ofgem/fcachelcmsattach/19162_R1 2. pdffwifrom=jofgemiindex.jsp

woans dti. gov.ukfilesfile38981 . pdf i
wnew dti. gov.uk/energy/markets/competitivenessipage28432. hml f

wiwwe berr.gov.uklenargy/sources/sustainable/microgeneration/strategyfimplementation/ B
page36314.htmi
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